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2022 31 67.00 2,110,193,850
1,414
28
25
2022
8.1
10 10
2022
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2022

2022

2021 2,744
Qibao Vanke Plaza 50
2021 24 2022 31
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2021 28 2,108
Happy Valley Shopping Mall
( 2021 28 12
2021 10 27 766 Dongguan
Foshan 75
2021 11 538.2
Queen Victoria Building
The Galeries The Strand Arcade
50 2021
11
2021 12 31 5,818
2021 11 10
12 31 2022 22
2022 2022 596.1
49.9 2022
2022 31 140 129
2022 12 Jiaxing

Changshu 947
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7.2A
2022 31
10

2022 31

S&P

CICCHK
3.375 BBB+ - BBB+ 47,067 46,981 0.02
05/03/22

CICCHK
Float BBB+ - BBB+ 80,349 79,855 0.04
05/03/22

CATIC
3.5 - Baal A- 47,082 46,977 0.02
05/31/22

LNGFOR
3.875 - - BBB 59,229 57,828 0.03
07/13/22

HAOHUA
3.5 A- - A 94,314 94,211 0.04
07/19/22

CJIIANT
3.375 - - A+ 156,185 156,801 0.07
07/25/22

CHIOLI
3.95 BBB+ Baal - 24,048 23,617 0.01
11/15/22

YUEXIU
4.5 - Baa3 BBB- 47,297 45,970 0.02
01/24/23

POLYRE
3.95 BBB- Baa3 BBB+ 266,372 265,203 0.12
02/05/23

HAOHUA
4.625 A- - A 65,204 63,503 0.03
03/14/23

VNKRLE
4.15 BBB Baa2 BBB+ 80,310 78,149 0.04
04/18/23

VNKRLE
Float BBB Baa2 BBB+ 7,853 7,719 0.003
05/25/23

PINGIN
4.375 - Baa2 - 65,035 63,178 0.03
09/10/23

POLYRE
4.75 BBB— Baa3 BBB+ 47,203 45,779 0.02
09/17/23

YUEXIU
5.375 - Baa3 BBB- 90,771 86,401 0.04
10/19/23

HYNMTR
4.3 BBB+ Baal - 204,053 198,916 0.09
02/01/24
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VNKRLE
5.35 BBB Baa2 BBB+ 64,328 60,903 0.03
03/11/24

CHIOLI
5.95 BBB+ Baal A- 17,426 16,339 0.01
05/08/24

CCBL
3.5 A - A 156,630 156,921 0.07
05/16/24

SHGANG
4 - - A- 94,278 94,428 0.04
05/23/24

YXREIT
3.6 - Baa3 - 30,000 29,027 0.01
05/28/24

VNKRLE
4.2 BBB Baa2 BBB+ 38,914 37,523 0.02
06/07/24

HAOHUA
3.375 - Baa2 A 39,863 38,989 0.02
06/19/24

CHIMAO
4 BBB— - - 53,159 50,212 0.02
06/21/24

WB
3.5 BBB Baa2 - 39,923 38,241 0.02
07/05/24

CNBG
3.375 BBB - A- 127,189 124,447 0.06
07/16/24

JOHNEL
4.125 BBB Baal - 41,682 41,010 0.02
07/30/24

2,085,764 | 2,049,128 0.92

2022 31

0.92 2022 31 7.2C

3.62

Linkreit.com
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) )
CBRE CBRE Limited 4.4 22.8
Colliers International Agency 4.1 21.2
Limited
K 3.2 16.6
Cushman & Wakefield (HK) Limited ; .
2.1 11.1
1.0 5.0
( ) )
211.3 10.0
Synergis Management Services Limited 82.3 3.9
Savills Property Management Limited 68.9 3.3
Li Hing Environmental Services 67.1 3.2
Co. Limited
Wilson Parking (Holdings) Limited 63.9 3.0
30

23.4 10.0
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Nicholas Charles ALLEN

67 2016 2016

CLP CLP Holdings Limited
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited

Mordril Properties Limited
Hysan Development Company Limited
Lenovo Group Limited
AIM Vinaland Limited
Stevin Rock LLC RAK
RAK Rock LLC

2007
Securities and Futures Appeals Panel Takeovers and Mergers Panel
Takeovers Appeal Committee Share Registrars’ Disciplinary
Committee Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Financial Reporting Council
of Hong Kong 2047 Vision 2047 Foundation

The University of Manchester
Institute of Chartered

Accountants in England and Wales
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors 2017 Directors
of the Year 2017
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George Kwok Lung HONGCHOY

60 2009 2010

Tracker Fund of Hong Kong 104
Our Hong Kong Foundation Limited
Harvard Business Review 2019 CE0100 100
Best-Performing CEOs in the World 2019 EY 2017

EY Entrepreneur of the Year 2017 China Award
Country Winner of Hong Kong/Macau Region 2015 DHL SCMP
DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards Business Person of
the Year 2011 -

University of Canterbury
The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
Corporate Advisory Council
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Institute of
Shopping Centre Management

NG Kok Siong

50 2020 2018
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2005 CapitalLand
Group CapitalLand
Limited CapitaMalls Asia Limited

CapitalLand Mall Asia Limited

REIT
CapitaLand Retail China Trust Management Limited
CapitalLand Retail China
Trust REIT
CapitalLand Malaysia Mall REIT Management Sdn. Bhd.
CapitalLand Malaysia Mall Trust

Nanyang Technological University
Dartmouth College Tuck Executive Program

lan Keith GRIFFITHS

67 2007
1983 2006 10
Aedas 12
1,200
1978 1980
The Royal Institute of British Architects
The Hong Kong Institute of Architects
2009 Griffiths-Roch Foundation
Roch Castle Penrhiw Priory

Twr y Felin
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Christopher John BROOKE

53 2018

X VationX Proxy Inc

Kerb Holdings
Company Pty Limited

RICS 2018 11
2019 12
2019 12 2021 Governing Council
Hong
Kong Rugby Union
2016 10 2020 Brooke Husband
Limited 2002 2015 12
CBRE
CBRE
Asia Pacific Strategic Group 2003
Insignia Brooke CBRE CBRE 1992
2003 Brooke Hillier Parker

Brooke International

1992 1989 Hillier Parker

Ed CHAN Yiu Cheong

59 2016

Treasury Wine Estates Limited
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C.P. C.P. Lotus

Corporation Charoen

Pokphand Group Company Limited SoftBank

Investment Advisers Yum
China Holdings, Inc.

2020 2022
Gaorong Capital 2006 11 2011 10
Walmart China 2001 11 2006 11
Dairy Farm Group
Bertelsmann

Music Group

McKinsey & Co

The University of Chicago
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
Sloan School of Management

Jenny GU Jialin

53 2021
Richemont
PPG
PPG Consulting Company Limited TPG L.P. TPG
Capital, L.P. Nike, Inc.
1998 2009 2021
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants ACCA
2019 2020 ACCA

Kellogg School of Management at Northwestern University

EMBA Executive Master of Business Administration
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Lincoln LEONG Kwok Kuen

61 2021

SUNeVision Holdings Ltd.
Hongkong Land Holdings
Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

MTR MTR Corporation Limited

Jardine Strategic Holdings Limited

Mandarin
Oriental International Limited
The Community Chest of Hong Kong The Hong Kong
Housing Society University Grants
Committee Quality Assurance Council
1985 1987

Blair Chilton PICKERELL

65 2016
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NASDAQ Principal
Financial Group, Inc.
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

First Pacific Company Limited

104
Tracker Fund
of Hong Kong 2019 2021
Anthemis Insurance Venture Growth Fund
2008 12 2014 11
Faculty of Business
and Economics
Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong

2015
1984 Jardine Matheson Holdings Group
2003 HSBC HSBC
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited HSBC
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
2007 2010
Morgan Stanley Investment Management
2013 2017 12

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited

Harvard Business School MBA
Stanford University

Poh Lee TAN

63 2015 11
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2010 11 2012 10 Baker & McKenzie
2008 10 2010 10

Mighty Oaks Foundation Limited
Independent Schools Foundation
London School of Economics
and Political Science University of Cambridge
Queens’ College

Peter TSE Pak Wing
71 2014
2012 CLP
2013 1981 CLP
Co. Deloitte & Co. Swire
Group 2018 12 2018 11 29
Hong Kong
Aircraft Engineering Company Limited
University of
Stirling

Nancy TSE Sau Ling

69 2014
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1991 Hospital Authority

2013 Prince Philip
Dental Hospital The
Jockey Club School of Public Health and Primary Care of The Chinese University of Hong Kong

The Financial Reporting Council

Oversight, Policy and Governance Committee International
Federation of Accountants Business Advisory Group
Public Policy and Regulation Advisory Group

2021 The Wharf (Holdings) Limited
DBS
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited HSBC
HSBC Provident Fund Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited
Wheelock and Company Limited
2020 27

University of California, Los Angeles
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Kenneth Tai Lun WONG

52
2019
28
HNA HNA
Group (International) Company Limited
Hong Kong International
Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited
Hilton Grand Vacations Inc. HNA
LLP
(Nixon Peabody LLP) CWL Nixon Peabody CWL
14
2014 20

Greenery Elderly Home
New Territories

15 2015 2021
Elderly Commission
Friends of Caritas of Hong Kong Chu Hai College of Higher Education
Board of Governors Heung Yee Kuk of the New Territories

London School of Economics and Political Science

Gregory Robert CHUBB

53
2022 REIT

REIT Charter Hall Retail

REIT
Charter Hall Group
Coles Supermarkets Mirvac Lend
Lease 2009 2010

Jones Lang LaSalle
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Australian Property Institute
Shopping Centre Council of Australia

Ronald THAM Seng Yum

52
2022
Lai Sun Development Company Limited Lai Fung Holdings
Limited
Swire Pacific Group HSBC
HSBC Global Banking Macquarie Capital
Price Waterhouse PwC
Registration and Practising Committee
Christine CHAN Suk Han
47
20
China Resources Group
Harvest Capital Partners Limited ARA

ARA Asset Management (Prosperity) Limited
Hutchison Whampoa Properties Limited
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New York University Stern School of Business
General Practice
Surveyor The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

Hong Kong Advisory Board

Lorraine CHAN Kuen Kuen

53
2019
Link Together Initiatives
20
University of Strathclyde MBA
2016
Stanford Executive Program 2018
Gary FOK Yip Sang
55
2014
30
NF InfraRed

NF Investment Advisers Limited
New World Group
Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
Henderson Land Development Company Limited

China
Institute of Real Estate Appraisers
Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate
Administrators
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William LAl Hon Ming

59
2019
30
Kennedy Western University
Kenny LAM Ting Pong
44
2022

Management— Real Estate

Monetary Authority

J.P. Morgan Asset Management

Citigroup Global Markets

MBA

Keith NG Man Keung

50
2009
2020
IT 29
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2007

MBA

Manulife Investment

Hong Kong

Ping An Real Estate JP

Hutchison Whampoa Property Group

Hongkong Land Group

Committee

95/449
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Association of Chartered Certified Accountants CFA
Chartered Financial Analyst

Phyllis NG Yuen Fan

58
2016
17
2013
Guanghua School of Management of the
Peking University MBA
Max WONG Hon Keung
57
2013
30
HKR HKR International Limited

Wong Tung & Partners Limited
Kwan and Associates Limited

Authorised Person

Haiqun ZHU

52
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2022

Vanke Group SCPG
2003 SCPG SCPG
Capital
Shenzhen International Trust & Investment

MBA

2022

ESG

M&A
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2005 11 25
12
2017 LTI
2022 31 2,128,148
2023 30 2024 30 2025 30
12
2017 LTI 2022
31 507,782
2023 30 2024 30 2025 30
2005 11

2005 11
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90



2022

®

30
2021
31
—@)
1

30

12

31

—(#

50

2022

90
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@

123 2005
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31
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LTV 40

(

)

50

(i)

30
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50
50
50

Q)

LTV 45

(i)
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)
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Xiii Xiv
XV
XVi

2018
)
) )

)
10
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2018
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COVID-19

COVID-19

2020
2020 600
220

31

CovID-19

300
2022

120
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2022
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coviD-19

COVID-19

COVID-19

COVID-19

CovID-19
COVID-19
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2022 31 2021 30
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2005
2015 11

ACBMs
ACBMs
ACBMs
ACBMs

COVID-19
COVID-19

COVID-19
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90

2022 31 100

2 4

2022 31 61.4
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2022 31 2021 31
2021 30 29,594,984

10
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@

@

2008 31
2022 20

2023

®

15

2022 31 1,822.2
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@( )
0.006 0.02 (b) 0.015 0.06
30
150,000
)
@
(b)
0.05 (i)
Q)
20

2022 31 16.0

*
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®

104

2022 31
16.5

8.5
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2022 31
)
20 15
2013 2037 12 31 2.1
20 15 2013 2037 12
31 2.1
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2014

31

31

2016

)

20
12 31

(D

10

2023 12

15

NISA
37 14

120
37 14 5 8

37 14
31

NISA
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37 14
2014 2023 12
100 2016
2024 1 1 2028 12
102
2023 18
37 14
2016
80
2023 18
2013 2037
2.1



(in)

2037 12 31

2014

18

2016

)

10

20

20

122/449

15

2023

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2013
2.1

20 2023

18

50
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)

)

10
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5
€H)
2022 31
)
( ) ( )
1,436 0.883
415 0.255
201 0.124
30 0.018
122,878 75.530
40,102 24.650
7,614 4.680
25,697 15.795
6,782 4.169
1,715 1.054
4,112 2.527
3,862 2.374
212,761 130.779
10,873 6.683
(62,726) (38.556)
(302) (0.186)
162,688 100.000
— 2 —3

—@
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
31 31 31 31 31
11,602 10,744 10,718 10,037 10,023
(2,826) (2,506) (2,498) (2,348) (2,360)
8,776 8,238 8,220 7,689 7,663
(512) (428) (416) (405) (417)
426 (5,322) (23,948) 12,269 35,493
98 126 183 85 19
(1,005) (770) (630) (598) (665)
(kD) - - - -
364 - - - -
- - - 2,761 7,306
8,136 1,844 (16,591) 21,801 49,399
(1.229) (1,092) (712) (1,359) (1,420)
6,907 752 (17,303) 20,442 47,979
(6,425) (5,920) (5.,930) (5.,517) (5.254)
482 (5,168) (23,233) 14,925 42,725
2,030 (2,566) (24,835) 13,260 44,609
(1.561) (2,169) 1,783 1,552 (2,102)
13 (433) (181) 113 218
482 (5,168) (23,233) 14,925 42,725
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
31 31 31 31 31

6,894 1,185 (17,122) 20,329 47,761
714) 4,910 23,831 (12,151) (35,270)
172 12) (454) 250 368
(32) 32 (157) - -
(80) (320) (276) 90 -
51 54 4 - -
11 - - - -
(29) (129) (189) 87) (122)
- - - - (150)
- - - (2,761) (7.306)
146 290 291 53 150
6,419 6,010 5,965 5,723 5,431
159.59 141.65 141.47 130.62 121.50
146.08 148.34 145.72 140.55 128.28
305.67 289.99 287.19 271.17 249.78
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
31 31 31 31 31
212,761 199,074 193,224 218,496 203,091

12,955 10,811 14,395 8,441 13,313
225,716 209,885 207,619 226,937 216,404
62,726 51,192 47,502 37,611 37,336
302 Q@n 406 587 474
162,688 158,720 159,711 188,739 178,594
22.0 18.4 16.7 10.7 11.9
27.8 24.4 22.9 16.6 17.3
212,761 199,074 193,224 218,496 203,091
3.10-4.50 3.10-4.50 3.10-4.50 3.00-4.20 3.00-4.20
2.90-5.30 3.10-5.30 3.10-5.30 3.50-4.80 3.50-4.80
3.00 3.00 3.00
4.25-4.75 4.25-4.75 4.25-4.75 4.25-4.75 4.50-4.75
4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25
5.00
4.40 4.50
5.19 5.24
77.10 76.24 77.61 89.48 83.06
67.00 70.80 65.70 91.80 67.00
141,383 147,396 135,204 193,636 144,054
(13.1) @7.1) (15.3) 2.6 (19.3)
2,110,193,850 [2,081,862,866 |2,057,898,386 |2,109,321,254 |2,150,058,972
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
31 31 31 31 31
62.7 62.4 64.6 62.9 58.0
4.8 (1.8) 13.5 22.8 31.2
97.7 96.8 96.5 97.1 97.0
100.0
76.5 77.1 77.1 76.4 76.4
3,064 2,776 2,827 2,719 2,492
94.0 76.3 73.7
8.8 11.1 31.6 32.2 39.8
(8.1) (8.0) 7.9 27.0 14.4
88.5 96.3 97.8 98.5 99.5
97.0 95.8 97.4 95.5 99.3
100.0
73.5 76.7 77.2 78.7 77.4
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
31 31 31 31 31
1.60 22.19 2.77
(17.35) (19.99) (14.21) (23.68) (28.86)
4.6 4.1 4.4 3.0 3.7
10.30
29.7 28.2 27.9 26.3 24.3
78.70
2021 75.75 59.75 2021 56.25
2022 31 67.00 2021 70.80
2022 31 305.67
2021 289.99
97.7 5.4 22.0

2025 Vision 2025
5.4
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We Link People to a Brighter Future

2022
97.7
92.3
660
4.8
CovID
2022
226 29
3.5
2021 11
2022
49.9 2022 12
2022 31
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2.3

2022 10

24.9
Happy Valley Shopping Mall



Business as Mutual

220

2023
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2025

7.5

17
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17 2022
260
2022

2022 Link CentralWalk
18,000 36
43.1
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Kowloon East The Quayside
Hung Hom Chai Wan
CovID
2022 CcovID
CovID
98 2.7

13.2
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CovID 97.7
CovID 660
4.8
62.7
2022
7.8
13.1
CovID
120 220
20
40
10,000 Employment Support Scheme
2020
97.7 0.5 13.1
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2022 31 2021 31
¢ )

4,919 4,881 0.8

977 954 2.4

141 140 0.7

186 184 1.1

866 741 16.9

7,089 6,900 2.7

4,830 2021 4,826
89 2021 55
2022 2021
2022 2021 31 31 2022
31 31 31
98.1 97.0 2.9 (5.8) 84.0
95.2 94.4 19.0 18.2 9.2
97.0 98.4 6.7 5.3 6.8
97.7 96.8 4.8 (1.8) 100.0
2022 31

16.6 14.6
@.3) 10.7
10.3 14.4
7.8 13.1
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2022 2021
2022 31 31
2022 31
31 2022 2021
2022 31 31
31
)
6 26,436 1,225 76.5 79.3 97.7 94.0
35 67,364 3,514 69.7 69.2 98.2 97.6
57 29,078 1,484 45.5 44.6 97.1 97.2
98 122,878 6,223 62.7 62.4 97.7 96.8

3.4
34.1
2254
3 ARG

R -2 9.4
EUSERE 1.8
% 0 5 10 15 0 5 30 35 40

B sraticssimase [l AARSIZSHETE ) GT1)
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2022 31

9. 5%

AHIAHISHLRE(GE1)

ARPOmERIZSH H8E

10. 7% ‘
E pr L 10, 696
15 6% :

B aazvnn B s—vi—v=ryrruangs B HSoRIES W +-e=
B i=vearroEgs [l ERCRRRR. RUSRER B =ezaasz, ot [l sowce)

9. (%%

13.2 8.8
CovID
2021 12 31
52
sale and long-
term leasing arrangement
Jardine Matheson Zung Fu Company Limited
13.2

10.4 3,064

2022 31 8.8 607,000
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2022 31 2021 31
( )
1,517 1,432 5.9
561 451 244
52
8 5 60.0
2,138 1,888 13.2
2022 17 The Quayside 96.6
Kowloon
East
CovID A
flight-to-quality
7.6 76.3 2021 76.8
CovID

2023
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2022 31 2021 31
)
599 592 1.2
460 367 25.3
212 227 (6.6)
262 236 11.0
279 270 3.3
174 139 25.2
102 91 12.1
160 167 (4.2)
2,248 2,089 7.6
2022
Qibao Vanke Plaza 50 2021
Happy Valley Shopping Mall
2021 Dongguan Foshan
75 2021 10 2022

Link CentralWalk

urban paradise on the central axis of Futian

2022 20.9 15.9
97

24.4

100
8.8 27.5
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CovID
88.5
92.3
2022 CovID
8.8 92.3 97.0
Link Square 2022 31
97.0
8.1
2022 CovVID
99 A

2022
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2022 31

FEINRA

HHUEIAR

S IAR
ki

= g
1]
% 0 0 it 30 40 50 [21]
BRER #7142
B zmsthzansd [l AERNCEND B znattizsnd [ AMANCSSNE
TS (9 TS (%) GE1) BE () P& (el GE1)
100

75
2021 10 2022 31
First Priority Group 75 25
2022 31
2.5 3.4
2022
Fujian Dongbai Group
Jiaxing Changshu
e
e
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50 50 50
2067 2056 2055
2019 202e 2021
99,323 69,045 23,776 192,144
3.3 0.8 4.1
1.8 5.0
649 337 120 1,106
660 343 125 1,128
0.05 2022
0.8
2022
50
49.9
2025 Vision 2025 97
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Queen Victoria
Building The Galeries The Strand Arcade
50 2022 95.5

Vicinity

100 100 Market Street
The Cabot CovID

100
482 339

2022
Oxford Properties Group Investa
Gateway Office
Investa
126 126 Phillip Street 388 388 George Street
151 151 Clarence Street 347 347 Kent Street
567 567 Collins Street

2022

A flight-to-quality
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2022
2022 Hing Wah
Plaza Tai Wo Plaza 86
13.2 3.6
2022 286 11.0
20 18,000
10 43.1
Tai Yuen Market Lok Fu Market
Tak Tin Market
22 32 73
2022
Happy Valley Shopping Mall
Zhujiang New Town
2023 150
10
Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited
2022 31 2022 31

6.9 212,761
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2022 31
1.4 0.9
122,878 8,860 40,102
50 38,433
2021 31 27,160 11,273
0.2
2022 31 7,974
2022 2021
31 31 2022 2021
31 31
122,878 124,581 3.10 -4.50 3.10 -4.50
40,102 31,516 2.90 -5.30 3.10 -5.30
8,860 8,943 3.00 3.00
171,840 165,040
29,936 20,713 4.25 -4.75 4.25 -4.75
6,782 6,447 4.25 4.25
1,715 5.00
38,433 27,160
4,112 4,038 4.40 4.50
3,862 4,019 5.19 5.24
218,247 200,257
212,761 199,074

50
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co

12

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

2021

22

VID

2022
2022

2.8

2.8
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31

40
2022
2022 50

2022
600 2.75 10

500

650

250

800

27
15
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2021

2018
25

308

120
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2021 10

1.48 800

2.23 10 782

3.00 300

3.25 460
2021 12

50

2022
2022

2.75 10 600
2022

120
2022
500
600
2.3
2022 31 2.3
2022 31
116 502
18.4 22.0
226 29

3.5 17

1471449



2021 30

19.6

2019 11

150

2022 31

2021 11
2022
49.9

1.3

20
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1,267.1

64.795

220
2022

150

65.2

A2/Stable

50

2022 12
2022 31
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82.6

3.51

A/Stable S P A/Stable

2022 10
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2022 31
S o AR
HLEE RSN 4 008 09e) 23, 546, B%8) 23 7145, 296)

(%)

WeEsm WsFa7a-5=b-s=+ W ivr-0=2

Exdi-mRneiNonEna (g7 o FEnk

19. 4 (33, 654}

W mzen W =ney

ERNETOERMNORERE

eLl-F F:;'I- 17, 7(35. 396) 16, B(32 55:) B 817 5%)
{96

B ooz anan [ o AMpuasse s Aman [ oosws AR, HTes AREUes ARER [ A0 3 AR

ARHOABRE ANAD v FEAME)

368013 396) BTN 29¢) 4.0(8. 0%6) 3. B(T. 596)

1
Haern Wl Ainz WEcn W EfeF

2022 31 2005
14

HSBC

2022
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€))
2022 31

POLYRE 3.95 02/05/23 266,684 265,203 0.165%

HYNMTR 4.3 02/01/24 200,603 198,916 0.123%
3 | ccBL 3.5 05/16/24 158,464 156,921 0.097%
4 | CIIANT 3.375 07/25/22 157,528 156,801 0.097%
5 | cNBG 3.375 07/16/24 127,040 124,447 0.078%
6 | SHGANG 4 05/23/24 95,342 94,428 0.059%
7 | HAOHUA 3.5 07/19/22 94,612 94,211 0.058%

YUEXIU 5.375 10/19/23 89,596 86,401 0.055%

CICCHK Float 05/03/22 83,879 79,855 0.052%
10 | UNKRLE 4.15 04/18/23 80,336 78,149 0.049%
11 | HAOHUA 4.625 03/14/23 63,408 63,503 0.039%%
12 | PINGIN 4.375 09/10/23 63,565 63,178 0.039%%
13 | UNKRLE 5.35 03/11/24 62,112 60,903 0.038%
14 | LNGFOR 3.875 07/13/22 58,460 57,828 0.036%
15 | CHIMAO 4 06/21/24 53,022 50,212 0.033%
16 | CICCHK 3.375 05/03/22 47,622 49,981 0.029%
17 | CATIC 3.5 05/31/22 47,518 46,977 0.029%
18 | YUEXIU 4.5 01/24/23 46,689 45,970 0.029%
19 | POLYRE 4.75 09/17/23 45,992 45,779 0.028%
20 | JOHNEL 4.125 07/30/24 41,380 41,010 0.025%
21 | HAOHUA 3.375 06/19/24 39,851 38,989 0.024%
22 | w8 3.5 07/05/24 39,824 38,241 0.024%
23 | UNKRLE 4.2 06/07/24 38,893 37,523 0.024%
24 | YXREIT 3.6 05/28/24 30,371 29,027 0.019%
25 | CHIOLI 3.95 11/15/22 23,931 23,617 0.015%
26 | CHIOLI 5.95 05/08/24 16,791 16,339 0.010%
27 | UNKRLE Float 05/25/23 8,213 7,719 0.005%
28 — — — —
29 — — — —
30 — — — —
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18 C-006052
5701
+852 2828 9888
colliers.com
20-20854
2022 24
77 20
HSBC
HSBC
2022 31
SFC 2005
SEHK
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
2022
HSBC
129
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1VSC

2020 HKIS

RICS

100

HKIS

2020 12
RICS
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2022 31

SFC

1VSC



3.25
2.90
3.01
2.90

4.25
4.25
4.25

5.00

5.19

4.40

4.50
5.30

5.30

4.75
4.75
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. 2022

. 2021

. 2021

. 2022

. 2022

. 2021

. 2021

. 2021

. 2021

. 2021

31

31

2018

31

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022

2022

2017 10 12
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700



. 2022

. 2021

. 2022

. 2022

. 2021

. 2022

. 2021

. 2021

31

31

31

31

2022

2022

2022

2022
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2022 31 171,839,600,000 1,718 3,960
4.57
118,365,200,000 1,183 6,520
4.74
33,825,000,000 338 2,500
5.00
9,817,600,000 98 1,760
700
4,011,800,000 40 1,180
5,820,000,000 58 2,000
2022 31 31,222,000,000 312 2,200
3.80
6,630,000,000 66 3,000

3.61

157/449



ZGC

2,990,000,000
4.75

4,480,000,000
4.69

2,560,000,000
3.78

6,340,000,000
2.36

50

3,445,000,000
4.42

3,384,000,000
3.63

888,000,000
5.30

505,000,000
4.98

29

44

25

63

34

33

9,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

4,500

8,400

8,800

500
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375,900,000 7,590

700,000,000

10.764
3.2808

MSc MRICS MHKIS RPS

GP
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127

15

109

124

116

119

83

108

74

115

121

101

123

96

93

122

95

112

107

86

113

78

100

87

105

90

700
700 Nathan Road, Mong Kok

(Butterfly Plaza)
(Car Park within Ching Wang Court)
(Car Park within Chuk Yuen (North) Estate)
(Car Park within Fung Lai Court)
(Car Park within Hong Keung Court)
(Car Park within Ka Tin Court)
(Car Park within Kam On Court)
(Car Park within Kin Ming Estate)
(Car Park within King Lai Court)
(Car Park within Kwai Hong Court)
(Car Park within Lai On Estate)
|

(Car Park within Lower Wong Tai Sin () Estate)
(Car Park within Ming Nga Court)
(Car Park within Ning Fung Court)
(Car Park within Pang Ching Court)
(Car Park within Po Pui Court)
(Car Park within San Wai Court)

|
(Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (I) Estate)
(Car Park within Tin King Estate)
(Car Park within Tin Yau Court)
(Car Park within Tin Yuet Estate)
(Car Park within Tsui Ping South Estate)
(Car Park within Tsz Man Estate)

(Car Park within Upper Ngau Tau Kok Estate)

(Car Park within Wah Lai Estate)

94

110

114

97

99

129

10

62

14

28

16

22

26

45

54

32

48

24

46

35

40

67

53

63

64

34

160/449
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(Car Park within Wang Fuk Court)
(Car Park within Yee Kok Court)
(Car Park within Yee Nga Court)
(Car Park within Ying Ming Court)
(Car Park within Yue On Court)
Chai Wan Car Service Centre
(Cheung Fat Plaza)
(Cheung Wah Shopping Centre)
(Choi Ming Shopping Centre)
(Choi Wan Commercial Complex)
(Choi Yuen Plaza)
(Chuk Yuen Plaza)
(Chung On Shopping Centre)
(Nam Cheong Place)
(Fu Heng Shopping Centre)
(Fu Shin Shopping Centre)
Fu Tai Shopping Centre
(Fu Tung Plaza)
(Fung Tak Shopping Centre)
(Heng On Commercial Centre)
(Hin Keng Shopping Centre)
(Hing Tung Shopping Centre)
(Hing Wah Plaza)
(Hiu Lai Shopping Centre)
(Hoi Fu Shopping Centre)

(Homantin Plaza)



128

68

57

39

41

11

59

49

56

60

52

31

30

50

70

80

51

36

75

7

84

76

120

88

117

82

125

Hung Hom Car Service Centre

(Kai Tin Shopping Centre)

(Kin Sang Shopping Centre)

(Kwong Fuk Commercial Centre)

(Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre)

(Lek Yuen Plaza)

(Leung King Plaza)

(Lok Fu Place)

(Lok Wah Commercial Centre)

(Long Ping Commercial Centre)

(Lung Hang Commercial Centre)

(Maritime Bay)

(Mei Lam Shopping Centre)

(Nan Fung Plaza)

(Oi Man Plaza)

(Oi Tung Shopping Centre)

(Ping Tin Shopping Centre)

(Po Hei Court Commercial Centre)

(Po Lam Shopping Centre)

(Po Tat Shopping Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung On Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung Wang Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Ching Wah Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Pak Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Shui Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Yat Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hung Hom Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Ko Chun Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Ko Yee Estate)

106

79

102

104

91

118

85

89

92

103

71

81

98

111

66

27

33

72

23

43

44

47

18

38

29
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(Retail and Car Park within Lok Nga Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Lok Wah (South) Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Nam Cheong Estate)
11l
(Retail and Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (l11) Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wah Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wang Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Yat Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tong Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsui Wan Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsz Oi Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tung Tau Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Wo Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Yan Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Ying Fuk Court)
(Sam Shing Commercial Centre)
(Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre)
(Sha Kok Commercial Centre)
(Shun Lee Commercial Centre)
(Shun On Commercial Centre)
(Siu Sai Wan Plaza)
(Stanley Plaza)
(Sun Chui Shopping Centre)
T
(T Town)
(Tai Hing Commercial Centre)
(Tai Wo Plaza)
(Tai Yuen Commercial Centre)
(Tak Tin Plaza)

Temple Mall North

Temple Mall South



126

17

20

25

65

21

42

The Quayside
(Tin Chak Shopping Centre)
(Tin Shing Shopping Centre)
(Tin Shui Shopping Centre)
(Tin Tsz Shopping Centre)
(Tin Yiu Plaza)
TKO

TKO Gateway

TKO
(TKO Spot)

(Tsui Ping North Shopping Circuit)

(Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre)

Link Square

Link Plaza ¢+ Zhongguancun

Link Plaza « Guangzhou

Link Plaza ¢ Jingtong

Link CentralWalk

The Cabot, London

100
100 Market Street, Sydney

55

58

12

13

19

73

61

69

37
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(Un Chau Shopping Centre)
(Wan Tsui Commercial Complex)
(Wo Che Plaza)
(Yat Tung Shopping Centre)
(Yau Mei & Ko Cheung (Lei Yue Mun Plaza))
(Yin Lai Court Shopping Centre)
(Yiu On Shopping Centre)
(Yiu Tung Shopping Centre)

(Yu Chui Shopping Centre)

Qibao Vanke Plaza
(Happy Valley Shopping Mall)
Dongguan Warehouse

Foshan Warehouse
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2022 31
Lok Fu Place 361,569 793 313.4 4.23% 6,894.1 4._55%
Lok Fu Plaza 1983 1991
Wang Shun House Wang Tat House
Wang Yat House
Lok Fu Estate
362,486
361,569
793
Link Properties Limited
New Kowloon Inland 6451 107,428/335,530
2007 12 31 50
T T Town
206,934 1,177 266.6 4.03% 5,609.4 4._75%
Chung Fu Plaza 1999 2000
Tin Chung Court
1,177
— Tin Shui Wai Town 18 A
2,021/363,535
— 41 50,802/297,568
1999 50
B 196,744 940 208.5 4._34% 4,391.1 4._75%
Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre
1997
A
B
Tsz Lok Estate
940
6442 81,055/481,546
2007 10 50

163/449



4 TKO

TKO Gateway

Temple Mall South

Tin Shopping Centre

7 TKO

TKO Spot
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2022 31
165,935 623 192.7 4.01% 4,247.1 4._54%
11 Hau Tak Il Shopping Centre 1993
Hau Tak Estate
623
Tseung Kwan O Town 99 49,962/324,918
2005 10 14 50
146,528 688 176.8 4.13% 3,830.7 4.62%
Wong Tai Sin Plaza 1982 1983
Lung Kwong House Lung Fai House
Lung Lok House Lung On House
1] Lower Wong Tai Sin 1l Estate
688
6438 51,200/323,235
2007 17 50
Kai
184,878 461 173.3 4.33% 3,747.9 4.62%
1999 2003
Kai Tin Estate
461
6481 65,207/256,946
2009 29 50
130,649 1,280 177.0 4.24% 3,758.0 4.71%
Sheung Tak Shopping Centre 1998
A
B
C
Sheung Mei House
Sheung Tak Estate
1,280
98 95,092/467,545

2007 26 50
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2022 31
Temple Mall North 137,622 473 143.0 3.95% 3,460.2 4.13%
Lung Cheung Plaza 2001
Upper Wong Tai Sin Estate
473
6439 53,974/311,854
2007 23 50
Sau Mau Ping Shopping
154,767 611 183.0 4.31% 3,654.8 5.01%
Centre
2002
A
Sau Mau Ping Estate
155,554
154,767
611
6453 57,670/833,450
10/833,450
2007 23 50
10 Cheung Fat
Plaza 165,572 590 152.3 4._35% 3,158.5 4.82%
1987
Cheung Fat Estate
590
Tsing Yi Town 172 49,331/171,904
2005 50
11 Leung King
Plaza 184,012 616 159.6 4_45% 3,038.2 5.25%
1988
Leung King Estate
616
(Tuen Mun Town) 458 54,922/426,295
2001 50

165/449



12

13

14

Wo Che Plaza

Yat Tung Shopping
Centre

Choi
Ming Shopping Centre
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2022 31
170,612 828 147.2 4.14% 3,022.0 4.87%
1977
— Tai Wo House Foo Wo House
Hau Wo House Chi Wo house King
Wo House
Wo Che Estate
828
Sha Tin Town 549 55,437/474,742
2007 23 50
193,063 1,900 155.3 4.43% 2,950.7 5.26%
2001 2003
Yat Tung Estate
1,900
Tung Chung Town 30 107,811/930,819
2009 50
92,857 765 142.3 4.33% 2,841.4 5.01%
2001 2003
— Choi Ming Court
Kin Ming Estate
765
82 44,614/346,996
109 39,133/420,644
2001 50 82 2010
15 50 109

166/449



15
Plaza

16
Plaza

17

Centre
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2022

Butterfly
174,793 313 149.7 4.53%
1983
— Tip Ling House
House
Butterfly Estate
313
473 38,316/248,783
2005 10 14 50
Choi Yuen
125,394 536 134.7 4.39%
1982
— Choi Chu House
House Choi Ping House
536
Fan ing Sheung Shui Town
2005 17 50
Tin Chak Shopping
130,719 302 133.4 4.31%
2001
Tin Chak Estate
302
37 38,810/272,897

2005 10 14 50

167/449
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31
2,853.6 5.24%
Tip Sum
2,748.7 4.90%
Choi Yuk
Choi Wah House
230 34,746/286,392
2,740.6 4.87%



EDINETOOOO

00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 31
18 Tai Wo Plaza
125,272 454 128.9 4.41% 2,605.2 4.95%
1989
0i Wo House
On Wo House
Hei Wo House
454
Tai Po Town 176 40,117/414,930
2000 10 50
19
Yau Mei Ko
R 102,715 0 125.6 4._30% 2,525.5 4.97%
Cheung Lei Yue Mun Plaza
2001
Yau Mei Court J K L
6459 19,357/392,161
2005 50
20 Tin
Shing Shopping Centre 78,235 1,458 125.0 4.33% 2,548.8 4.90%
2000
— Ting Shing Court
1,458
17 A 1,480/357,800
1997 11 28 50
21 Tin Yiu Plaza
93,297 480 115.5 4.34% 2,321.6 4.98%
1992
Tin Yiu Estate
480

38 31,581/574,611
2005 17 50

168/449



22
Plaza

23
Plaza

24

25

Centre

Chuk Yuen

Siu Sai Wan

Fu Tung Plaza

Tin Shui Shopping

138,459

99,942

104,879

74,948
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1,103 114.2 4.45%
1984
Chui Yuen House
Sau Yuen House
Chuk Yuen South Estate
1,103
6452
2007 16 50
558 117.4 4.47%
1989
— Sui Yick House
558
Chai Wan Inland 176
2007 26 50
537 110.5 4.45%
1997
Fu Tung Estate
537
40 44,218/209,377
2008 30 50
577 108.2 4.40%
1992
Tin Shui Estate
577
39 34,646/599,404

2007 50

169/449

2022 31

2,322.4

62,198/354,665

2,237.0

34,606/418,894

2,172.4

2,136.0

4.92%

5.25%

5.09%

5.07%



26
Ch On Shoppi
ung On opping 82,430
Centre
1996
995
27
ha Kok ial
Sha Kok Commercia 96,488
Centre
1980
Martin House
662
28
Choi  Wan Commercial
167,660
Complex
1980
859
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2022 31
995 103.8 4._44% 1,991.8 5.21%
Chun Ping House
Chung On Estate
544 41,385/223,886
2005 10 14 50
662 100.6 4.34% 2,002.8 5.02%
— Osprey House Sand
Sha Kok Estate
552 32,438/340,309
2008 50
859 99.4 4.44% 2,010.3 4.94%
Fei Fung House
Choi Wan Estate
6461 61,003/394,552

2008 12 29 50

170/449



29

30

31

32

2005 10 14 50

171/449
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2022 31
Tak Tin Plaza
98,661 754 91.6 4.48% 1,915.2 4.78%
1991
A
B
Tak Hong House C
Tak King House
Tak Shing House
97,580
98,661
754
6326 25,782/308,756
1999 18 50
0i Man Plaza
180,959 808 94.8 4.48% 1,938.6 4.89%
1975
A D
Chiu Man House Hong Man House
Chung Man House
0i Man Estate
808
9826 54,395/204,983
1968 75
Nan Fung Plaza
81,342 0 72.2 4.00% 1,720.5 4.19%
1999
23 154,634/1,485,995
8648 1995 11 21 2047 30
Fu Shin Shopping Centre 106,231 525 84.5 4.36% 1,865.0 4.53%
1986
Fu Shin Estate
106,361
106,231
525
189 33,761/330,620



33

Centre

34
Plaza

35

Centre

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 31
Shun Lee Commercial
200,948 731 81.6 4.48% 1,719.5 4.75%
1978
1
11
A
B
o
Lee Foo House Lee Hong House Lee Yat
House Lee Yip House
Shun Lee Estate
731
6465 56,354/295,872
2010 31 50
Homantin
101,102 299 77.9 4.44% 1,649.0 4.73%
2001
Ho Man Tin Estate
299
11119 A 3,411/57,202
20,327/214,270
1998 11 20 50
Heng On Commercial
116,022 585 84.7 4.32% 1,761.8 4.81%
1987
Heng On Estate
585
500 C 39,206/40,831

812/247,314
1998 50

172/449
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36 Po
Tat Shopping Centre 82,260 1,083 77.1 4.30% 1,635.7 4.71%
2002
1
1
Tat Cheung House
Po Tat Estate
82,838
82,260
1,083
6470 75,195/546,029
2009 50
37 Yu
Chui Shopping Centre 112,769 1,175 80.3 4.22% 1,653.8 4._86%
2001
Yu Chui Court
1,175
462 48,967/361,200
2001 18 50
38
Tai Yuen Commercial
r 1 136,430 594 86.8 4.41% 1,823.0 4.76%
Centre
1980
A
B
Tai Man House Tai Tak House Tai
Wing House
Tai Yuen Estate
136,490
136,430
594
192 38,718/396,392

2007 29 50

173/449
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39
Kwong Yuen Shopping
81,542 736 78.9 4.35% 1,622.0 4.87%
Centre
1991
Kwong Yuen Estate
736
506 29,929/279,026
2001 50
40
Hin Keng Shopping Centre 94,374 636 83.2 4.36% 1,697.0 4.90%
1987
Hing Keng Estate
636
503 37,320/396,392
2000 10 50
41 Lek Yuen Plaza
106,156 438 75.3 4.23% 1,599.3 4.71%
1976
Wing Shui House Wah Fung House Fu
Yu House (Fook Hoi House) Kwai Wo House
Lek Yuen Estate
438
550 28,600/199,774
2007 50

174/449
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42
Tsui Ping North
R N 113,912 421 74.8 4.21% 1,618.4 4.62%
Shopping Circuit
1990
Tsui Tsz House Tsui Lau House Tsui Pak
House Tsui 0 House Tsui Yue House
Tsui To House
Tsui Ping North Estate
421
Kwun Tong Inland 754 31,542/345,220
2002 24 50
43 Stanley Plaza
98,382 411 66.1 4.20% 1,406.8 4.70%
1999 2000
Murray House
Village Square
Ma Hang Estate
411
Stanley Inland 98 37,045/116,974
2009 11 50
44
Sun Chui  Shopping
75,506 620 68.9 4.27% 1,425.8 4.83%
Centre
1983

Sun Yee House
Sun Chui Estate
620

554 27,934/395,903
2009 25 50

175/449
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2022 31
45 (Nam Cheong
Place) 56,519 547 69.7 4.33% 1,420.6 4.91%
Fu Cheong Shopping Centre 2002
547
6437 31,469/355,647
2005 17 50
46
Fung Tak Shopping Centre 68,317 487 49.9 4.29% 1,235.6 4.04%
1991
Bang Fung House Ngan Fung House
69,638
68,317
487
6318 A C
1,070/202,138
1998 50
47 Tai
Hing Commercial Centre 102,879 672 61.3 4.42% 1,332.3 4.60%
1977
Tal Hing Estate
672
484 27,288/474,882

2009 18 50

176/449
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49

50

51
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Fu Tai Shopping Centre 61,288 635 63.4 4.19% 1,292.1 4.91%
2000
Fu Tai Estate
635
418 38,769/382,833
2001 12 50
Long Ping Commercial
g m1ng 92,061 564 67.1 4.50% 1,363.8 4.92%
Centre
1987
Yuk Ping House Shek Ping House
Kang Ping House
Long Ping Estate
564
Yuen Long Town 521 32,958/498,969
2006 15 50
0i
Tung Shopping Centre 81,029 634 64.1 4.37% 1,260.3 5.08%
2000
Oi Sin House
0i Tung Estate
634
Shau Kei Wan Inland 849 34,910/194,191
2005 17 50
Po Lam Shopping Centre 85,610 398 59.7 4.46% 1,237.4 4.83%
1989
|
11
— Po Ning House Po Kan House
Po Lam Estate
398

88 25,495/341,494
2004 10 19 50

1771449



52 Mei
Lam Shopping Centre

53 Hing Wah Plaza

54 Fu
Heng Shopping Centre

55
Un Chau Shopping

Centre

75,926 375 60.5
375
558
2010 22
82,011 268 62.3
2000
May Wah House
Hing Wah Estate
268
177
2007 28
55,030 517 55.6
1990
Fu Heng Estate
517
178
2000 10
50,180 213 53.7
1999
213
2010 11

178/449
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2022 31

4.25% 1,251.9

Mei Lam Commercial Centre

Mei Fung House

29,125/273,313

50

4.38% 1,250.8
27,675/160,197
50
4.39% 1,149.6
22,900/358,013
50
3.88% 1,260.6
6478 17,388/355,830
50

4.83%

1981

4.98%

4.84%

4._26%



56
Lung Hang Commercial
Centre

57
Kwong Fuk Commercial
Centre

58

Wan Tsui Commercial Complex

64,037 440 55.3 4.26%
1983
440
557 23,047/289,255
2010 31 50
69,574 461 54.2 4_45%
1983
Kwong Yan House
Kwong Fuk Estate
461
196 23,946/351,384
2010 17 50
82,296 359 55.6 4.39%
1978

Yee Tsui House
Lee Tsui House
Wan Tsui Estate
359

180
2010 31 50

179/449
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2022 31
1,115.8 4.95%
1,139.8 4.76%
1,096.7 5.07%

Shing Tsui House

26,208/222,534



59
Lok Wah Commercial
Centre
60 Maritime Bay
61 Yiu

On Shopping Centre

62
Cheung Wah Shopping
Centre
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2022 31
98,078 650 47.9 4.30% 1,044.6 4.58%
1985
Po Wah House Kan Wah House Lap Wah
House Tat Wah House Ning Wah House
Shun Wah House
Lok Wah North Estate
650
6460 38,134/513,788
2008 50
41,017 0 42.3 4.00% 965.7 4.38%
1998
HK Great Land (HK) Limited
49 573/5,411
SK 8530 1995 27 2047 30
50,765 547 48.7 4.27% 955.1 5.10%
1989
Yiu On Estate
547
505 12,616/306,501
1999 18 50
72,166 353 41.5 4.34% 920.1 4.51%
1984
Cheung Lai House Cheung Chung House
Cheung Wah Estate
353
226 26,310/299,811

2004 16 50

180/449
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63 Hiu
Lai Shopping Centre 34,560 637 448 4.32% 923.5 4.85%
1996
Hiu Tin House
Hiu On House
637
6205 A 1,000/249,375
1994 11 11 2047 30
64 Hoi
Fu Shopping Centre 40,335 225 40.1 4.21% 871.0 4.60%
1999
E J—
D —
225
11141 9,413/204,120
1999 16 50
65 Tin
Tsz Shopping Centre 36,865 289 38.5 4.26% 808.5 4.77%
1997
Tsz Ping House
Tin Tsz Estate
289
40 17 511/202 482
2007 29 50
66
Sam Shing Commercial
69,580 176 43.8 4.38% 846.8 5.17%
Centre
1980
Chun Yu House Moon Yu House Fung
Yu House
176

481 14,434/115,271
2010 22 50

181/449
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67 Hing
Tung Shopping Centre 53,034 420 28.9 4.36% 615.4 4.69%
1995
420
851 23,786/155,258
2010 50
68 Kin
S Shoppi
ang >noppng 36,623 273 25.1 4.27% 550.0 4.56%
Centre
1990
Kin Sang Estate
273
441 A 14,100/28,621
1998 50
69 Yiu
Tung Shopping Centre 63,416 685 247 4.47% 551.2 4.48%
1994
Yiu Tung Estate
685
852 35,548/381,831
2010 29 50
70
Ping Tin Shopping Centre 24,400 406 22.9 4.52% 497.2 4.60%
1997
Ping Tin Estate
406
6446 16,966/362,174

2009 30 50

182/449



71
Retail
and Car Park within Tung 37,984 493 23.9
Tau Estate
1982
Cheung Tung House
On Tung House
Tung Tau Estate
493
2002 24
72
Shun On Commercial
80,993 459 22.7
Centre
1978
On Kwan House
Yat House
Shun On Estate
459
2008 28
73
Yin Lai t Sh i
in Lai Court Shopping 10,584 150 18.9
Centre
1991
150
389
1990 21
74
Car Park within Kin Ming
0 763 23.1
Estate
2003
Kin Ming Estate
763

2010 15

6413
50

6472
50

2047

109
50

183/449
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2022 31

4.45% 509.9 4.68%

Hong Tung House

Yue Tung House Wong Tung House

16,942/349,186

4.44% 498.6 4.56%
On Chung House On
20,130/179,429
4.26% 386.1 4.89%
A
30
5.00% 420.9 5.49%

39,133/420,644



75
Retail and Car Park

- 3,915 484
within Cheung On Estate

On Tao House

484
403/293,522
1998
76
Retail and Car Park
I 17,956 549
within Hong Pak Court
549
1991
77
Retail and Car Park
within Cheung Wang 11,532 333
Estate
333
2009
78
Car Park within Tin Yuet
560
Estate
2000
560
2010

18.7 4.58%
1988
160 D
50
18.6 4.39%
1993
6095
25 2047 30
18.6 4.64%
2001
178 13,010/259, 640
25 50
14.2 4.40%
41 50,802/297,568
50

184/449
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2022 31
376.7 4.97%
F
389.8 4.77%
A
353.1 5.27%
302.0 4.71%



79
Retail and Car
Park within Lok Wah South 16,086 226 12.4
Estate
1982
Chin Wah House
On Wah House
226
6460
2008 50
80
Po Hei Court Commercial
13,686 0 9.6
Centre
1993
A B
6117
1992 17 2047
81
Retail and Car Park 7,342 379 13.7
within Wo Ming Court
1999
Wo Yat House
379
52
1997 11 28 50
82
Retail and Car Park within
7,332 323 12.8
Ko Chun Court
1993
Chun Moon House
323
6189
1993 2047

185/449
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2022 31

4.66% 251.2 4.93%

13,231/513,788 667/513,788

3.30% 257.9 3.71%
1,354/20,256
30
4.30% 289.5 4_74%
A 728/82,796
4.47% 265.3 4.82%
A 530/81,791
30



83 Car
Park within Ka Tin Court

84

Retail and Car Park
within Ching Wah Court

85
Retail and Car
Park within Tin Yat Estate

86
Car Park

Estate

within Tin King

0 348

1988

348

1898

9,118 348

2001

348

1999

8,784 446

446

2008

0 380

1989

380

1999

186/449
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2022 31
11.2 4._40% 233.2
290 A
99 2047
11.0 4._39%% 234.7
137 2,516/36,665
20 50
11.0 4.57% 225.8
2001
15,485/226,221
10 28 50
11.0 4.30% 233.1
444 4,036/197,161
18 50

4.82%

30

4.67%

4.86%

4.71%



87 Car
Park within Tsz Man Estate

88
Retail
within Hong Yat Court

and Car Park

89
Retail and Car Park within
Tong Ming
Court

90 Car
Park within Wah Lai Estate

7,040

21,283

364

355

291

411

364

1994

2008

355

2001

291

6441

28 50

10.2

1993

6329
50

9.2

1999

Tong Wong House

Tong Fu House

1997

411

2001

2001

54

26 2047

10.4

445

25 50

187/449
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2022 31
4.90% 232.0 5.41%
9,121/139,291
4.39%% 218.1 4.69%
4,582/99,200
4.29% 215.7 4.26%
A 1,153/98,512
30
4.60% 207.8 5.01%
A 21,700/102,614



91

Retail and Car Park within Tin
Wah Estate

92
Retail and Car Park within
Tsui Wan Estate

93 Car
Park within Ning Fung Court

94

Car Park within Wang Fuk

Court

1,476

13,631

287

182

299

408

287 9.9
1999
43
2010 12
182 9.4
1993
166
1999 18
299 9.7
2001
477
1999 10 15
408 7.7
1983
27
1898

188/449

50

50

50

99
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2022 31

4.36% 208.4

11,225/236,423

4.39% 205.2
3,254/123,068

4.20% 209.9
3,072/78,707

4.10% 173.2

2047

4.74%

4.57%

4.60%

4.42%

30



95

Car Park within Po Pui

Court

96 Car
Park within Ming Nga Court

97 Car
Park within Ying Ming Court

98

Retail and Car Park within Yan
Ming Court

99

Car Park within Yue On

Court

7,019

277 8.5
1995
277
728
1994 2047
345 7.1
1985
345
36 A
1898 99
274 8.0
1989
274
Junk Bay Town
1898 99
262 7.1
1990
262
A
1987 22 2047
296 7.6
1988
296
117
1982 75

189/449

4._30%

30

4.00%

4.30%

4.38%

30

4_30%

75
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179.8

163.3

2047

170.4

2047

164.5

163.6

4.73%

4.32%

30

4.67%

30

4.29%

4_64%
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2022 31
100
Car Park within Tsui Ping
5,275 229 9.0 5.06% 161.2 5.56%
South Estate
1990
229
755 6,785/291,576
2009 11 27 50
101 Car
Park within Lai On Estate 0 181 9.0 4.80% 171.4 5.26%
1993
181
6482 5,099/90,111
2009 50
102
Retail and Car Park 8,112 156 6.8 4.32% 150.7 4.52%
within Nam Cheong Estate
1989
Cheong Shun House Cheong Yat House
Cheong On House Cheong Yin House
156
6427 3,670/109,764
2005 17 50
103
Retail and Car Park within
- 13,306 199 6.4 4.74% 148.9 4.33%
Tsz Oi Court
1997 2000
11
199
6211 A
1995 2047 30
6265 699/113,761
1999 50

190/449



205

2007

228

2002

2008

265

1898

395

2002

104 11
Retail and
Car Park within Sau Mau Ping 1,507
11l Estate
205
105
Car Park within
Upper Ngau Tau Kok 0
Estate
228
106
Retail and Car Park
- 12,616
within Lok Nga Court
265
107 1
Car Park within Sau Mau 0
Ping | Estate
395
10/833,450

2007

6.5

1996

6453

23 50

6.7

6471
50

5.1

1984

5969

99

6.2

6453

23 50

191/449
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2022 31
4.54% 132.5 4.87%
7,222/833,450
4.80% 130.9 5.15%
9,334/126,664
4.13% 123.7 4.14%
A 1/28,952
2047 30
4.00% 145.6 4.26%
14,364/833,450



108 Car

Park within Kam On Court 0
109 Car

Park within Ching Wang Court 0
110 Car

Park within Yee Kok Court 0
111

Retail and Car Park

within Ying Fuk 786

Court
112 Car

Park within San Wai Court 0

238 5.8 4.30%
1987
238
283
1898 99
179 6.1 4.30%
2001
179
137 2,516/36,665
1999 20 50
240 5.4 4.10%
1981
240
5911
1898 99
163 6.0 4.55%
2001
163
6266
1999 50
185 5.1 4.30%
1990
185
326 A
1989 2047 30

192/449
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2022 31
125.6 4.65%
2047 30
133.4 4.61%
124.5 4.35%
A
2047 30
124.3 4.79%
107.5 4.74%



113
Park within Tin Yau Court

114
Car Park within Yee
Court

115
Park within King Lai Court

116
Park within Fung Lai Court

117
Retail and Car
within Hung Hom Estate

Car

Nga

Car

Car

Park

3,994

192

159

158

134

45

192

1992

1992

159

1993

1991

158

1989

1985

134

1997

1996

45

4.7

10
23

4.4

120
22

3.9

3.7

3.2

1999

Hung Fai House

2047

2047

5943
2047

6240
2047

Hung Hom Inland

2008

29

193/449

50

4.30%

4.10%

30

4._20%

30

4.10%
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2022 31
105.0
101.2
92.3
A
86.2

1,512/33,911

30

4.15%

554

1,573/51,548

4_47%

4.37%

4.22%

4.27%

3.79%



118
Retail and Car Park
within Tin Wang Court

119
Car Park within Hong Keung
Court

120
Retail and Car Park
within Hong Shui Court

121 Car
Park within Kwai Hong Court

122
Car Park within Pang Ching
Court

9,946

345

79

93

102

88

67

79

1991

93

1999

1999

102

1998

88

1993

1990

67

1991

1990
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2.4 4.38%
1992
6131
21 2047 30
4.0 4.70%
6239
50
2.8 4.30%
1999
6227 A
14 50
2.6 4.50%
420 1,100/35,351
2047 30
1.9 4.70%
6121 A
21 2047 30

194/449

31

4.10%

4.92%

4.64%

4.38%

4.81%
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2022 31
123 1
Car Park within
o 70 1.4 4.10% 32.7 4.40%
Lower Wong Tai Sin 1 Estate
1982
70
6373 674/240,107
2001 50
124
Car Park within Chuk
0 61 1.1 5.10% 22.3 4.94%
Yuen North Estate
1987
61
6327 687/364,071
1999 18 50
125
Retail and Car Park
I 0 38 0.9 4.02% 20.0 4.73%
within Ko Yee Estate
1994
38
6480 1,518/80,343
2010 50

195/449



126 The Quayside

127 700

700 Nathan Road,

Mong Kok

128
Hung Hom Car Service
Centre

129
Chai Wan Car Service
Centre
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2022 31
883,127 9,817.6
2019
457
Century Land Investment Limited
6512
20240 2015 23 50
1,246
2022 31
175,153 4,011.8
Trade and Industry Department Tower 2017
Link Monte Hong Kong Limited.
10470 24,750/25,000
11419 1980 30 75
2022 31
421,401 3,120.0

12

Zung Fu Land Investment Limited

1980
13

932
27 A

1884 11 16 999
438,351
1989
45 20 25

Apollo Luck Limited
114
11525 1981 24 75 75

196/449

2,700.0
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2022 31
_ N 7,375 75,780 226 240.0 4.29% 6,630.0 3.61%
Link Square, Shanghai
2003
226
Shanghai Xing Bang Properties Co.,
Ltd.
2001 16 2051 15 50
ZGC Link Plaza
. 760 55,423 0 367 142.0 4.50% 2,990.0 4.75%
2009
367
ECM (ECM Property Holding (Tianjin) Co.,
Ltd.)
2011 13 2051 12 40
Link Plaza *
88,726 0 1,034 210.0 4.75% 4,480.0 4.69%
Guangzhou
2011
The Riverside
1,034
Guangzhou Qian Qing Hui Real
Estate Company Ltd. 271
2002 10 21 2042 10 20 40
(Link Plaza *
) 67,546 0 576 97.0 4.75% 2,560.0 3.78%
Jingtong
2014
B L
576

Beijing Yateng
Real Estate Management Company Limited
2010 12 2050 12 40
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CentralWalk

Qibao Vanke Plaza

Happy Valley
Shopping Mall

Dongguan
Warehouse

Link

83,900 0
2006
741
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
2002 29
148,853 0
2016
1,471
Co., Ltd.
2012 11 12
* 50%
90,113 0
2012
800
Management Co., Ltd.
1999 12
110,015 0
2019
11
2067 11 21

741 150.0
344
2042 28
1,471 304.0
2052 11 11
800 123.0
813
2039 11
0 47.0
2020
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2022 31
4.25% 6,340.0 2.36%
Baoyi Property Management
40
4.50% 3,445.0* 4.42%
Shanghai Xinbao Real Estate
40
4._75% 3,384.0 3.63%
Guangzhou Bilu Property
40
5.00% 888.0 5.30%

Dongguan Jiatian Warehousing Co., Ltd.
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2022 31
Foshan Warehouse 86,793 0 0 25.0 5.00% 505.0 4.98%
2020
Foshan Zhenglian Warehousing Co., Ltd.
2017 29 2067 28 50
2022 31
The
44,743 65 14 5.19% 375.9
Cabot, London
1991 2020
65
25 S.ar.l 25 Cabot Square S.ar.l
S.ar.l Cabot Square Retail S.ar.l
EGL 317234 EGL 513746
2022 31
100
100 Market Street, 28,339 0 29 4.40% 700.0
Sydney
1970 2011 Westfield
Sydney
Westfield Sydney Complex
No. Scentre Sydney No. 1 Pty Ltd

999,997/2,000,000 )

Ltd (999,997/2,000,000 )

Pty Ltd (6/2,000,000 )
Market Sub TC Pty Ltd

199/449

No. Scentre Sydney No. 2 Pty
Windsor Sub TC

TC

TC



19
31
60
80

74
78
83
86
87
90
93
94
95
96
97
99
100
101
105
107
108
109
110
112
113
114
115
116
119
121
122
123
124

2022

31
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126
127 700 ( )

128
129

50

L

1 100
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

(Lok Fu Place)
T
(T Town)
(Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre)
TKO

TKO Gateway

Temple Mall South
(Kai Tin Shopping Centre)
TKO
(TKO Spot)

Temple Mall North
(Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre)
(Cheung Fat Plaza)
(Leung King Plaza)
(Wo Che Plaza)
(Yat Tung Shopping Centre)
(Choi Ming Shopping Centre)
(Butterfly Plaza)
(Choi Yuen Plaza)

(Tin Chak Shopping Centre)
(Tai Wo Plaza)

(Yau Mei & Ko Cheung (Lei Yue Mun Plaza))
(Tin Shing Shopping Centre)
(Tin Yiu Plaza)

(Chuk Yuen Plaza)

(Siu Sai Wan Plaza)
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.238%

.448%

.699%

.611%

.355%

-304%

.310%

L127%

L247%

-941%

-868%

.858%

.814%

LT4T7%

.754%

-690%

.685%

.601%

.552%

-567%

L427%

.428%

.375%



24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

(Fu Tung Plaza)

(Tin Shui Shopping Centre)

(Chung On Shopping Centre)

(Sha Kok Commercial Centre)

(Choi Wan Commercial Complex)

(Tak Tin Plaza)

(Oi Man Plaza)

(Nan Fung Plaza)

(Fu Shin Shopping Centre)

(Shun Lee Commercial Centre)

(Homantin Plaza)

(Heng On Commercial Centre)

(Po Tat Shopping Centre)

(Yu Chui Shopping Centre)

(Tai Yuen Commercial Centre)

(Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre)

(Hin Keng Shopping Centre)

(Lek Yuen Plaza)

(Tsui Ping North Shopping Circuit)

(Stanley Plaza)

(Sun Chui Shopping Centre)

(Fu Cheong Shopping Centre)

(Fung Tak Shopping Centre)

(Tai Hing Commercial Centre)

Fu Tai Shopping Centre

203/449
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1.335%

1.313%

1.224%

1.231%

1.236%

1.177%

1.192%

1.058%

1.146%

1.057%

1.014%

1.083%

1.005%

1.017%

1.121%

0.997%

1.043%

0.983%

0.995%

0.865%

0.876%

0.873%

0.759%

0.819%

0.794%



49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

(Long Ping Commercial Centre)

(Oi Tung Shopping Centre)

(Po Lam Shopping Centre)

(Mei Lam Shopping Centre)

(Hing Wah Plaza)

(Fu Heng Shopping Centre)

(Un Chau Shopping Centre)

(Lung Hang Commercial Centre)

(Kwong Fuk Commercial Centre)

(Wan Tsui Commercial Complex)

(Lok Wah Commercial Centre)

(Maritime Bay)

(Yiu On Shopping Centre)

(Cheung Wah Shopping Centre)

(Hiu Lai Shopping Centre)

(Hoi Fu Shopping Centre)

(Tin Tsz Shopping Centre)

(Sam Shing Commercial Centre)

(Hing Tung Shopping Centre)

(Kin Sang Shopping Centre)

(Yiu Tung Shopping Centre)

(Ping Tin Shopping Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Tung Tau Estate)

(Shun On Commercial Centre)

(Yin Lai Court Shopping Centre)
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0.838%

0.775%

0.761%

0.770%

0.769%

0.707%

0.775%

0.686%

0.701%

0.674%

0.642%

0.594%

0.587%

0.566%

0.568%

0.535%

0.497%

0.521%

0.378%

0.338%

0.339%

0.306%

0.313%

0.306%

0.237%



74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

(Car Park within Kin Ming Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung On Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Pak Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung Wang Estate)

(Car Park within Tin Yuet Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Lok Wah (South) Estate)

(Po Hei Court Commercial Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Wo Ming Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Ko Chun Court)

(Car Park within Ka Tin Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Ching Wah Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Tin Yat Estate)

(Car Park within Tin King Estate)

(Car Park within Tsz Man Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Yat Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Tong Ming Court)

(Car Park within Wah Lai Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wah Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Tsui Wan Estate)

(Car Park within Ning Fung Court)

(Car Park within Wang Fuk Court)

(Car Park within Po Pui Court)

(Car Park within Ming Nga Court)

(Car Park within Ying Ming Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Yan Ming Court)
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.259%

.232%

.240%

.217%

.186%

-154%

.159%

.178%

.163%

.143%

-144%

.139%

.143%

.143%

.134%

-133%

.128%

.128%

.126%

-129%

.106%

2111%

.100%

-105%

-101%
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99
(Car Park within Yue On Court) 0-10%%

100 0.099%
(Car Park within Tsui Ping South Estate)

101 0.105%
(Car Park within Lai On Estate)

102 0.093%
(Retail and Car Park within Nam Cheong Estate)

103 0.092%
(Retail and Car Park within Tsz Oi Court)

104 I 0.081%
(Retail and Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (l1l) Estate)

105 0.080%
(Car Park within Upper Ngau Tau Kok Estate)

106 0.076%
(Retail and Car Park within Lok Nga Court)

107 ! 0.089%
(Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (I) Estate)

108 0.077%
(Car Park within Kam On Court)

109 0.082%
(Car Park within Ching Wang Court)

110 0.077%
(Car Park within Yee Kok Court)

1 0.076%
(Retail and Car Park within Ying Fuk Court)

12 0.066%
(Car Park within San Wai Court)

13 0.065%
(Car Park within Tin Yau Court)

14 0.062%
(Car Park within Yee Nga Court)

s 0.057%
(Car Park within King Lai Court)

116 0.053%
(Car Park within Fung Lai Court)

17 0.051%
(Retail and Car Park within Hung Hom Estate)

118 0.036%
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wang Court)

119 0.050%
(Car Park within Hong Keung Court)

120 0.038%
(Retail and Car Park within Hong Shui Court)

121 0.036%
(Car Park within Kwai Hong Court)

122 0.024%
(Car Park within Pang Ching Court)

123 |

0.020%

(Car Park within Lower Wong Tai Sin (I) Estate)
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124

125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

140

HKIS

(Car Park within Chuk Yuen (North) Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Ko Yee Estate)
The Quayside
700
700 Nathan Road, Mong Kok
Hung Hom Car Service Centre
Chai Wan Car Service Centre
Link Square, Shanghai
Link Plaza * Zhongguancun, Beijing
Link Plaza + Guangzhou, Guangzhou
Link Plaza * Jingtong, Beijing
Link CentralWalk, Shenzhen
Qibao Vanke Plaza
(Happy Valley Shopping Mall)
(Dongguan Warehouse)
Foshan Warehouse
The Cabot, London

100
100 Market Street, Sydney

2022 31
RICS 1vSC
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0.014%

0.012%

5.269%

2.466%

1.918%

1.660%

5.017%

2.262%

3.390%

1.937%

4.797%

0.000%

2.561%

0.672%

0.382%

2.374%

2.527%

130.778%

2022 31

2020
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2022 31 2021 31
9,533 9,285
7,892,030 7,821,857
6,223 6,159
) 8,074,656 8,076,429
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
31 31 31 31 31
97.7 96.8 96.5 97.1 97.0
2020 2021 31 2021
2021 2022 31 2022 31
2022 31 2021 31
836 703
1,381 1,154
665,671 378,750
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
31 31 31 31 31
88.5 96.3 97.8 98.5 99.5
97.0 95.8 97.4 95.5 99.3
100
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2022 31 2021 31
21 21
365 297
73,082 73,082
100 100
100 100
2021
10
10
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®)
15 16 17
( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )
( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
15
2020 ¢ | 159,711 (2,838,064 | 156,712 (2,784,772 77.61 1,379 76.15 1,353
16
2001 ¢ > | 158,720(2,820,454 | 155,631 (2,765,563 76.24 1,355 74.76 1,328
17
2002 ¢ > | 162,688 (2,890,966 | 159,605 |2,836,181 77.10 1,370 75.64 1,344
2019 12 10 2,966
2020 12 28 2,921
2021 12 31 3,336
2005 11 25
2021 66.75 1186.15
2021 10 69.00 1226.13
2021 11 67.60 1201.25
2021 12 68.65 1219.91
2022 66.75 1186.15
2022 63.10 1121.29
2022 67.00 1190.59
2022 68.10 1210.14
2022 71.05 1262.56
2022 64.00 1137.28
2022 65.70 1167.49
2022 60.85 1081.30
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15

2019 2020 31 5,965 287.19
16

2020 2021 31 6,010 289.99
17

2021 2022 31 6,419 305.67
15

2019 2020 31 (10.3) 4.4
16

2020 2021 31 2.0 4.1
17

2021 2022 31 5.3 4.6

A = Bx 100
A+ Bx 100
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4
- 477,632 0 51,900,500
2019 2020 31 . ,900,
16
2020 2021 31 29,964,480 0 6,000,000
17
2021 2022 31 29,594,984 0 1,264,000
2022 31 2021 31
2021 30 29,594,984

1,264,000

212/449



2
1
2
2008
2022 20
2022 20

2,110,193,850
211,019,385

31

10
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(H

(in)

)

)

(M) (i) (1ii)
(iv) )
(vi)
(vii)
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GAV - D % V

GAV

HKIS
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104
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)

)

)

31

@

CCASS

HKSCC CCASS
CCASS

CCASS CCASS CCASS
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)

)
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)

®

80

*

31

®

15
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(

(

(

20
i ii
20
iii
20
i ii iii
2022 31 1,264,000
— 1 —5 4 — 2
—2
)
)
)
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(

(

)

)

HSBC

2022

31

224/449

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

29

50,000,000

30



15
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@

15

0.10
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20

15

25
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10

10



(vii)

viii)

)]

Q)

(H

(i)
(iv)

(H

(i)
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(i)

(vi)

20
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15
2022 31
BlackRock, 187,976,551 8.90
Inc.
111,501,019 5.28
State Street Corporation
187,976,551
441,800
2022 31 2,110,193,850
15
2022 31
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15
2022 31
2022 2021
31 30
)
154,072 - - - 54,983 209,055 0.0099 184,055
650,451 - - - | 2,184,937 2,835,388 0.1343 2,724,497
68,937 - - - 450,760 519,697 0.0246 518,040
86,314 - - - 16,924 103,238 0.0048 103,238
8,914 - - - 17,903 26,817 0.0012 26,817
8,000 - - - 18,815 26,815 0.0012 26,815
- - - - 7,132 7,132 0.0003 7,132
8,500 - - - 19,089 27,589 0.0013 27,589
26,162 - 13,101 - 18,100 57,363 0.0027 57,049
40,859 - - - 19,601 60,460 0.0028 59,479
35,161 - - - 18,100 53,261 0.0025 53,261
2022 31 2,110,193,850
102,500
2022 31

15
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2022 31
2022 31 2021 30
2,521,408 0.12 2,150,887
2022 31 2,110,193,850
2022 31 2022 31
CEO CFO
2022 31
21,366 137,012 66,626 125,712
MTN
2009 The Link Finance
(Cayman) 2009 Limited 2011 10 2021 3.3 589
2022 2021
31 30
300,000,000
2009 2012 28 2027
3.55 500
2022 2021
31 30
100,000,000 20.00 | 100,000,000

500
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2009 2013 2028
3.1 500
2022 2021
31 30
50,000,000 10.00 | 50,000,000
500
2009 2014 2024
3.6 500
2022 2021
31 30
34,324,000 6.86 | 34,171,000
500
2009 2020 10 27 2038
2.18 400
2022 2021
31 30
300,000,000 75.00
400
2009 2016 21 2026
2.875 500
2022 2021
31 30
20,312,000 4.06 35,000

500
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2024
cB Link CB Limited 2019 2024
1.6 40
2022 2021
31 30
91,000,000 2.28 68,000,000
40
2017 LTI
2017 10 2017 LTI
2007 LTI 2007 23 2017 22
2017 LTI
2017 LTI i
i)
2017 LTI 2021

264,634
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2017 LTI
2017 LTI
10
10
12
12
0.1
50
50
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
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2017 LTI

10

2017 LTI

12

2017 LTI

2017 LTI

10

221,456,347

0.1
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CEO
8.1 (d)

2017 LTI 2017

12
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2022
Aon

2017 LTI 10
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2017 LTI

2022 31 2017 LTI

2021 2022 2022
31 31
2018 2018 10,500 -1 @o,500) - - - 129 877
2021 30
2019 2019 8,072 -1 .o - - - 123 653
2021 30
2019 2019 8,072 - - - - 8,072 120 474
2022 30
2020 2020 29 12,556 - - - - 12,556 436 782
29 2022 30
2020 2020 29 12,556 - - - - 12,556 291 521
29 2023 30
2021 2021 - 10,899 - - - 10,899 282 282
2023 30
2021 2021 - 10,900 - - - 10,900 188 188
2024 30
2018 2018 518,763 - -|  @o00,263) -] s.268 12,439
2021 30 (118,500)
2019 2019 591,693 - - -|  (s91,693) -1 aom 12,872
2021 30
2019 2019 591,693 - - - -| ose1.603| 3,622 9,360
2022 30
2020 2020 29 392,894 - - - -| 392,804 | 13,658 24,457
29 2022 30
2020 2020 29 392,894 - - - -| 392,804 | 9,105 16,304
29 2023 30
2021 2021 -| 403,727 - - -| 403,727 11,288 11,288
2023 30
2021 2021 -] 403,720 - - -] 403,720 | 7.968 7,968
2024 30
2018 2018 65,800 -| @s.080) - (50,770) - 668 1,578
2021 30
2019 2019 116,443 - - - 6,43) - 801 2,533
2021 30
2019 2019 116,443 - - - -1 16,443 713 1,842
2022 30
2020 2020 29 63,879 - - - - 63,879 | 2,221 3,976
29 2022 30
2020 2020 29 63,879 - - - - 63,879 | 1,480 2,651
29 2023 30
2021 2021 -] 103,279 - - -] 103,279 | 2,888 2,888
2023 30
2021 2021 -| 103,280 - - -] 103,280 2,038 2,038
2024 30
2018 2018 3,250 -1 @.2s0) - - - ) 272
2021 30
2019 2019 2,414 -1 e - - - 37 195
2021 30
2019 2019 2,414 - - - - 2,414 36 142
2022 30
2020 2020 29 3,799 - - - - 3,799 132 236
29 2022 30
2020 2020 29 3,799 - - - - 3,799 88 158
29 2023 30
2021 2021 - 3,456 - - - 3,456 89 89
2023 30
2021 2021 - 3,456 - - - 3,456 60 60
2024 30
2018 2018 3,250 -1 G.250) - - - 2 272
2021 30
2019 2019 2,414 -1 e - - - 37 195
2021 30
2019 2019 2,414 - - - - 2,414 36 142
2022 30
2020 2020 29 3,799 - - - - 3,799 132 236
29 2022 30
2020 2020 29 3,799 - - - - 3,799 88 158
29 2023 30
2021 2021 - 3,945 - - - 3,045 102 102
2023 30
2021 2021 - 3,946 - - - 3,946 68 68
2024 30
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2018 2018 3,250 - -l @.250) - - ) 212
2021 30

2019 2019 2,642 - - 642 - - 20 214
2021 30

2019 2019 2,642 - - - - 2,642 39 155
2022 30

2020 2020 29 4,141 - - - - 4,141 144 258

29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 4,141 - - - - 4,141 96 172

29 2023 30

2021 2021 - 3,945 - - - 3,945 102 102
2023 30

2021 2021 - 3,946 - - - 3,946 68 68
2024 30

2021 2021 - 3,566 - - - 3,566 92 92
2023 30

2021 2021 - 3,566 - - - 3,566 62 62
2024 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - @.250) - - ) 212
2021 30

2019 2019 2,719 - -l @n - - M 220
2021 30

2019 2019 2,719 - - - - 2,719 ) 160
2022 30

2020 2020 29 4,267 - - - - 4,267 148 266

29 2022 30

2020 2020 29 4,267 - - - - 4,267 99 177

29 2023 30

2021 2021 - 3,918 - - - 3,018 101 101
2023 30

2021 2021 - 3,918 - - - 3,018 68 68
2024 30

2018 2018 3,500 -1 @.500) - - - ) 203
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2022 2021
3,862 3,844
86 204
3,948 4,048
( ) 2015 23 60
40
77
2.3 2021 2.8
)
2021
( )
2022 2021
204 530
(118) (326)
31 86 204
24
( )
2022 2021
18,633 14,448
3,920 3,416
23,161 16,770
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( )

2022 2021
4,297 1,751
209 56
1,229 1,441
5,735 3,248
8,205 299
215 78
1,228
8,420 1,605
1,635 8,038
174 89

6,624
8,433 8,127
3,005 1,249
2,755 89
1,877 4,692
7,637 6,030
1,491 3,111
157 2,725
6,014 1,899
7,662 7,735
410 379
7,417 7,510
7,827 7,889
45,714 34,634
5,625
2021 2,834 3,996 2021 3,861 3,759 2021
3,833
LIBOR 2,047
SONIA
2022 31 2.21 2021
2.40 3.68 2021 3.84
1.13 2021 1.06 1.44 2021 1.02

279/449



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

25
2019 2024 1.6 40
109.39
130
2022
2022 31 3.12 2021  3.12
2022 80.3 32.13
2022
( )
2022 2021
3,970 3,910
125 125
(64) (65)
31 4,031 3,970
32
(32) 32
31 32
4,031 4,002
26
( )
2022 2021
404 43
9 146
18
11
1
414 218
(11)
(241) ©))
)
(93)
(81) (116)
™
(429) (129)
(15) 89
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)
)
2021
( )
2022 2021
(15) 89
29 372
2021 120
2022 31
10,048 3.53 2021 8,654 4.68
2022 31
10,048 2021 8,654 0.73 2021
0.77
2022 31
2022 31
12,431
2021 7,753 400 2021 400
2022 31 29
2022 31
2022 31
2,276
2021
2022 31
4,148 2021 3,754
2022 31 803 2021 33 2021
10 2021
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29
)
2021 32 32
312 312
60 60
2022 31 404 404
2020 (88) (88)
63 63
57 57
2021 31 32 32
27
)
2022 2021
104 58
522 401
2,074 2,045
2,700 2,504
)
2022 2021
2,695 2,502
5 2
2,700 2,504
)
2022 2021
30 65 42
31 90 6 6
90 33 10
104 58
28
2022 2021
2,081,862,866 2,057,898,386
(1,264,000) (6,000,000)
29,594,984 29,964,480
31 2,110,193,850 2,081,862,866

1,264,000 2021

82 2021 379
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2022 31 2021 30
2021 31
29,594,984
2022 31 67.00 2021  70.80
2022 31 2,110,193,850 2021 2,081,862,866
141,383 2021 147,396
29
( )
2021 32 22) (10)
312 312
60 60
)
372 372
1,326 1,326
137) 137)
1,189 1,189
1,561 1,561
() ( ) ( )
2022 31 404 1,167 (1,571)
( )
2020 (88) (2,071) 2,159
63 63
57 57
)
120 120
2,099 2,099
(50) (50)
2,049 2,049
2,169 2,169
() ( ) ( )
2021 31 32 22) (10)

~

o A
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30
@
)
2022 2021
8,136 1,844
118 14
84 91
2 21
(98) (126)
1,005 770
11
(364)
(31) 40
(426) 5,322
(411) (130)
73 (299)
114 22)
“n (68)
(1,468) (379)
6,698 7,078
()
2,020 2021 1,954
©
)
2021 34,634 4,002 72 (89) 3,844 42,463
25,237 25,237
(14,948) (14,948)
29 29
(64) (802) (20) 92) 978)
() (&)
10,289 (64) (804) (20) (63) 9,338
1,164 1,164
(312) (312)
(400) 400
51 93 866 36 81 1,127
(29) 1 (23)
791 93 867 124 81 1,956
2022 31 45,714 4,031 135 15 3,862 53,757
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( )
2020 30,688 3,910 101 (143) 3,777 38,333
) 20,627 20,627
(17,458) (17,458)
49 49
(65) (759) (26) (78) (928)
(5) (5)
3,169 (65) (764) (26) 29) 2,285
(63) (63)
(69) 69
47 157 734 74 96 1,108
799 1 800
777 157 735 80 96 1,845
2021 31 34,634 4,002 72 (89) 3,844 42,463
31
2021
HK PD20
2,108 2,530 )
10 2021 28
36
2021 23
75
547 666 75
219 266
2021
10 27
281
2021 11 10
HK
2,695 3,123
12 2021 12 31
60 50
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( )
15 3,857 1,619 5,872 11,348
53 248 301
(713) (713)
(68) (39) 42) (149)
(589) (575) (1,164)
(312) (312)
2,540 941 5,830 9,311
(53) (248) (301)
2,487 693 5,830 9,010
32
( )
2022 2021
3,568 709
33
@
REIT HKAS 24
2022 31
HSBC
HSBC
REIT
V)
HKFRS
( )
2022 2021
) (16) (15)
HSBC ) )
HSBC (52) (65)
HSBC 36 35
HSBC 12 17
) )
) )
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)
)
0.006 0.015 2021
0.006 0.015
150,000
)
( ) HSBC HSBC
)
©
( )
2022 2021
@ @
HSBC (1,359) (2,531)
HSBC 2 2
HSBC 3) ®)
HSBC 0 31
HSBC 1,117 1,688
@ (O]
@
2022 31 10
2021 11
“ Audited” 26
28
( )
2022 2021
11 10
123 100
97 13
231 123
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2021 2022 HKFRS
2021 2022
2022 2021
)
3,000,001 5,000,000 3
5,000,001 7,000,000 3 4
7,000,001 9,000,000 2 3
9,000,001 10,000,000 1
10,500,001 11,000,000 1
14,000,001 14,500,000 1®
16,000,001 16,500,000 1
16,500,001 17,000,000 1
27,500,001 28,000,000 1®
31,500,001 32,000,000 1@
97,000,001 97,500,000 1®
11 12
)
b
() @ (®)
26 27
74
77
2021
2021
)
2022 2021
11 10
19 11
14 4
44 25
34
2022 31
)
2022 2021
6,704 6,437
9,871 9,989
1,878 2,508
18,453 18,934
2021
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35

2022 31
100
22,000,000 100
160,539,360 100
100
100
39,500,000 100
162,500,000 100
HK 100
S-a 11,000 100
r.1
HK 100
60
5,000 100
317,000,000 75
ECM
1,242,300,418 100
R.E. 100
138,000,000 75
HK 1,000,000 100
600,000,000 100
205,200,000 100
1,000,000 100
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HK PD20 1,002,261 100
HK 10,000 100
50,000,000 75

100

252,000,100 100

CB 100

¢ 5,000,000 100

HK 100

100

1,000,000 100

252,000,100 100

615,014,654 100

HK 100

287,595,000 100

100

100

2006 100
2009 100
100

100

100

» 1,000 75
25 sar.l. 11,000 100
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2022 AOFI 1 49.9
596 3,310 AOFI 1
2022

37
2022
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Gavernance, Disclosues and Financial Stakements | Consclidated Income Statarmant

Consolidated Income Statement

Fod the year ended 31 March 2032

2022 2021
Hote HKS'™™ HES™M
Revenue E 1L.602 10744
Froparmy operating expanies il [2.626) [2.506)
Met property incame B.776 BIiE
Ganeral and acminkstrative expenses 1512) (4284
Changes in fair values of imestment properties and impaimment of goodwill 14 & 15 [ ] =3I
Interest Income an 176
Frnande coils & [1.0405] (o
Lass on disposals of financial assers #T amanisen cosy i -
Share af net prodit of a joint venture 16 364 -
Profit before taxation and transsctions with Unitholders 10 B.136 1844
Taxation 12 1,239 10y
Profit for the year, before transactions with Unithadders 6,507 TE3
Digtributions paid to Unitholders
— 2022 ivterim distibution [3.336) -
= 2021 fnal diEtningion 3,063 =
= 2021 interim distribtion rLFid)
= 2020 final distiibution (2599
FiF] 5y
Represented by
Change in net assers attributable to Linithelders, secluding
Fgues of rew urits and wnils bowght back 2.030 [2.566)
Amaunt arsing from reserve movemernts 29 [L.561] [2.16H
Mon=controlling inforests 13 LEET]
LioF] iy
Proft for the year, befone transactions with Ungholders atinbutable to
= Linitheiders [Mote) 13 B804 1185
= Mor-controlling interesis 13 433y
8,907 Fha

The nates an pages 100 1o 153 ane an integral part of thess consalidated financial statements

Matar Earnings por urit, Bazod moen profit for the year, befons tantactons with Unithoidem attribistable o Unisholders and the wsghtsd seeaga
nigrdver of Unig in s, s s out in Nots 13 1o the consolidated frnasncal steamanis

94 Link Real Estate iveestment Trust
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Governance, Disclosures and Financial Statements | Consolidated Statement of Comprehanswe Incomsa

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Fof the year énded 31 Mandth 2022

Afver
Bafore Transactons transactions
transactions with with Han-
wiith Unkthliders Unithodeders controlling
Unithalders (hata (ijh (e (1) Interests Tatal
HES™ HES' M HES ™ HES'™ HES™M
For the year ended 31 Maich 2022
Profit for the year 6,B34 [3.455) 11.561) 13 | 1,548
Other comphehensive income
It et fride be feclassifiod subdeguently
1o e coisolidated inoome statemerl
- Cash Raw hedgng resene irn - 372 - il
— Exchange resene L1839 o 1,183 4 1,193
Total comprehensiee income Tar the year B.A45%5 [8.455]) - 17 7
Faor the yeds éncded 31 March 2021
Profit for the year 1185 (3.354) (2165 [EEE]] (A= urs ]
Other comprehensive ingome
It hat iy’ be reclassified 4u bdequently
o the corsobdated incomae statemant

- Cash faw hadging reserve 120 120 120
— Exchange mesene 2048 ~ 2043 ~ .04
Tekal comprehendive income for the year 3,954 {3.354] - 433 433

Thie rotes on pages 100 to 153 are an intogral part of these conselidated financial statements.

Mol

1 Traevactons with Unitholders comprme the deirnmoen o Unithciders of HESG 35 milion (202 1 HCS5300 mallon) end chsnge in neLisses
stiributabie to Unitholders, awchading e of new units and units bowght back, which is an increass of HES2030 mllon (2021 8 decieate of
HESE 566 milion).

) In aocoedancn with tha Trust Doed, the units of Link Fieal Estate ivestiment: [rust contan contractual obbgations 1o pay o s Unithoionrs cash
dibtibiitsors and $so. o the Bemmenation of the trust, & share of 8l net cash proceeds defved Trom the sale of realisstion of the sssets of the
irusd bess ary Habslities in accordance wath thetr proporbonatn rienesks in ik tnest at the date of the iemnstion, Unitholders” fumnds are therolfore
classified a5 8 Nnaccis! Riklay raer than edquty in accardance with Hong Kong Accountrsg Standard 12 Mnercial Instrumhents Presentstson,
Consistant with Linitholdens’ furds being classified as afinancial kablity, tha distnbutions to Lindtholdens and changs i net asssts atinkurtabbe o
Uit baodiests. e hudsreg esssinh off reevy unils s urls botght etk are fGnance coss. Accondingly, 1he total cemrprehemee imcome stirdnitibie o
Unithaoécien: after the tansactiong with Unitholders & mo

Annual Report 202172022 95
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Consolidated Statement of Distributions

Fod the year ended 31 March 2032

20612 2021
Mote HKS'™™ HES™M
Prafit fof the yeat, before trarmactions with
Unithalders attributable to Unitholders 6,854 1185

AGusTments:
= Changs in fair values of imestmant properties and impaiment of goodwill

atiributable 1o Linithoidery (714) 44910
- Diefisrred tnxakion an change in fair volues of investiment pioperties

atiributable to Linithoiders 173 1A
- Changa in fair values af derivative component of corneertibile bonds {32) T
— Changes in fsr alues af financal matruments §B0) |04
= Diepreckation and amortisation of resl estate and related assets 51 G4
= Loss on deposals of financial assets 31 smolthed cost 11 -
= Cther non-cash lncome {25 L]
Discraborary distribution (ot i) 146 Fazi)
Total Distribwtable Ammount (Mot () 5,419 L nhin]
Intarim distribation paid 3336 2921
Fimal distmbuten, to be paid ta the Linithaldars 3083 305
Total distributions for the year 6,415 6010
Linits in ksswe at 31 March 28 2,110.193.850 1081052 B66
Dlistribitions par unit to Unitholders:
= |ntenim distibution per urst, paid (Mote f§)) HE159.50 conts 14165 cenla
= Final distribution per unit, ta be paid to the Unitholders MNote ) HE146.08 conts: HEL4E 34 comts
Distribution per unit for the yoar HEIN5.67 conts i 00 O cil

The nates an pages 100 to 153 are an integral part of thess consalidated financial statements,

Mater

0] Lbnader thee tesrmes, of the Trust Deed, Link Real Extate rrsestment Troat is reguined o detmboin o Unithosders po less, than 90% of iy distributatie
Incame fer sach financial yesr. Crstributable income, atcording io the Trust Deed, is the Greup's consoldated predit afer Linatien atiributable o
Linitholders, as adursted 10 sbminate the sifect of ootain non-cash adjustrsns adich have been recorded in the corsolidated noome stassment
for tha relinvant year, For th year arded 31 March 20732, the Manager had decded 1o dintriie 1005 (20212 1009 ol its distrbutable incoms
to Urithoiders. i sddetion. the Manager disiributod & capital rotun in the form of @ discregionany destritution of HICS 146 milkon (2021 HKS290
o], Tegaithes with the decretionary detriubon, Total Drabriboutable Amount regresented 102% (D021 105%) of tha distributable incon of the

Goup tor the yoar enced 31 March 30032,

0l The intecm divtritution per ol of BICERS 59 cemts (20310 HICEA 1LAS centa] for the Lxomentha ended 30 September P07 1w cafculsted bated on
it s s bt ian of HICS3, 336 muilbon (A0 L HIKS2.92 0 prdloe) Tor S g aind 2090537 780 units (2021: 2062427 353 wrils) in msue o

830 Septimber JIE] The sletm dalribution was piid to Unilholders 50 31 Deceenber 2021

[ish Tha final datributes pof weel of HL14G.06 conty (202 1 HICL40 34 corts) fo the voar erded 31 March FI22 i caloulsd nd Bated oo the final
dairibubon to be paid b the Unithalders of HIZS 3,083 millon (2031 HKS3.089 million] for the secsad hall of the financal yeat and 2,110,193 850
wu:uu-lﬂﬂlﬁlﬂﬁﬁ urdta] in issue g1 Al A1 Mareh Iﬂiz.wﬂmuildmm-tm-w:hm-nhmnﬁrn!mmm audrisduent
o the apoioval of the consalidated francial statements. The nal distribetion will be peid to Unitholders an 2 fugust 2022

96  Link Real Estate ivvestment Trust
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Governance, Disclosures and Financial Statemants | Consclidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2022

2032 2031
L] HES'M HIES'™
Banels
Gopdwall 14 400 3
brvBstment peoparties 15 212,761 196,074
Intenests ina joint venture 16 3,756
Property, plant and eguipment 17 1,248 1301
Financial adtets it amortised cost 18 2.082 2742
Desporsifts and pregeayments 72X 2433
Derivathom fnancal instruments 26 a4 218
Trade and other recehvables 19 1,384 1155
Barik deposits 20 7o
Cash and cash equivalents 20 2,779 25300
Total assets 25716 08 BES
Liabilities, excluding net sasets attributable to Unitholders
Deferrod tax fabiities 21 1,348 3,03
Long-1edmm indertivé Scheims provison az2 163 E2
Crhar sabilties rE} 3,948 4,048
Interest bearing habiiticn a4 45 714 34634
Convertible bonds 25 4,031 4,003
Secumity deposiy 1,920 I TED
Deihwative financial indtivinents 26 439 129
Priovesiam fial Tanition 483 §¥5
TI'BUED&\'&EE’S. FRCAIRIS i &dvance and acoruals 27 4,700 L5504
Tatal hablitios. eichuding nel sesets atfributabde (o Unitholdors 6i. 716
Han-controlling infefests nz
HMet assets atiributable to Uinitholders 162, 6E8
Linits in fetue 28 4.110,193,850 1181 862, BEG
Mef assats per unit atbibutabile to Unitholders HESTT. 10 HESTE 24

The nates on pages 100 to 153 are an integral part of these comsolidated financial staterments.

O behalf of the Board of Directors of
Link Asset Management Liméted, &5 manager of Link Real Estate Imvestment Trust

Hichalas Chardes ALLEN George Kwok Lung HONGCHOY
Chairman Ot Execrtive Officer
1 June 20232 1 une 1022

Annual Report 20212022 97

295/449



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Gavernance, Disclesures and Financial Staterments | Consoletated Statemant of Changes in Equety and Met & ssets Atirisutable to Unsholders

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

Fot the year ended 31 Mareh 2022

Met sty
Unitholders' anributabie to MHon-controlling
enquity LEnithalders intorests
Blerte HEG™ HES'M HESM
At 1 Apil 2021 = 158720 7
lssiance of units under distriotion remveshment scheme - 2020 -
Linits bought Dk for cancellation . |83} -
Acguhition of pon-conroliing interests - . iz
Profil fior the yes ended 31 March 2072, [ 1 1
before transactions with Unithalders - B854 13
Diistribotions pald to Uinitholders
— 2022 interim distribution - [333E) -
= 2021 final distribution - {2.085) -
Changs in fair values of cash Now hedges 8 Az " =
Aot transferned to the comsoliidated Income statemend 28 (h] - -
Fansign curency translatons 29 1165 - L
AdPOUNT BfiSinGg Trom FEServe movments 29 [L,561) 1561 -
Change in net assets attibitadle to Uinithelders and nan | i
controfing interests for the year ended 31 March 2022
Exciiing issuis of mey units, units Bought back and
acguesithen of non-conzreling irteresis = 2030 17
At 31 March 2032 = 162.588 302
At 1 Apil H020 - 150,711 04
Issuance of unmts unSer disirknion remvestment sctheme: - 1954 -
Linits beought back for cancellaton 374
Profit far the year ended 31 Madch 202 1 before transactions
with Linithclders 1188 W33
Chstiibutions pald (o Uinitholders
= 2021 imierim distsibution - 2921 -
- 2020 final distribtion - (200D -
Changs in far values of cash Now hedges 28 B3 = e
At trarsferned to the conschaated income statement 8 =14 - -
Fammign cumency translatons 29 7049 - .
Amaunt atiming from redenie mossmsnts s 163 2153 -
Charge in nat atsits attriburtabln to Unitheiders and inon-
conbioling Interest Tor the vear ended 3] March 2021,
exchiding issues of row units and units bought back 2.5G6| |433)
At 31 March 2021 158720 7

The nates on pages 100 to 153 ane an miegral part of thess consalidated financial statements

98 Link Real Estate Investment Trust
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Govearnance, Disclosures and Financial Statements | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Fer the year ended 31 March 2022

2032 031
Mate HES'M HES'M

Dperating acthities
Hat carh generated from opetating sctivities 30(a 6,698 g

Enresting activitios
Acquishion of assets 3l 9,010 6720
Acquisition of a joint venture {945 =
Acquisition of businesses - |TEH
Additions to imvestment properties {B5E |{BEDy
Addtiors 1o propeity, plant and equipment {28 (r ]
BNDENEsT incomes recerved 116 138
Froceeds from dsposal and maturity of financial assets at amortised costs G647 -
Deposits paid Tor acquisition of joint ventunes (EEF] 12305
Increase in bank deposits with original rmatusity of mones than thres months {170 -
Met cach used in imvesting activitien (10, 582) {10542

Flmamcing activities
Procseds from interest bearing Eabilities, not of transaction costs 25237 20637
Aeparyment of interest bearing liabilites (14,945 {17,458

Repayment of Bormowings scauined in aoguisition of asets £} 713

Increase in emcun due Lo & non-conbrofing inferest F: | as
Interest expenes paid |97E {E gy
Payment of lease linbilites [k} i ]
Desttibuticns paid o Urithalders |4, 405] [3.066)
Lirils bought Back fof Canoelation [=Fi] 37y
et carh generated from|used in) financing acthvities 4,138 [.0E0
Met increase/[decreass) in cash and cosh equivalents 254 (5,534}
Cash and cirih eguivalents at 1 Aprd 1,520 FBTY
Efipct on exchange rate changes on cash and canh eguivalents 5 177
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2,779 1530

The nates an pages 100 to 153 are an mtegral part of these consolidated financial statermnents.
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Gavernance, Disclosues and Financlal Stakements | MNotes to the Conspicated Financial Statemants

Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

1 Corporate Information

Link Rieal Estate irvestrmsnt Trust ("Link") is & collective investment schems authadsed under section 104 of the Seowities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Link Is governed by a Second Amending and Restating Deed
entered into on 30 Juby 3021 (the “Trust Doed™).

The principal actvity of Link and its subsadiares fthe “Group’) is imvesting in real estate and may be undertaking property
development and related activitles in respect of all types of developments. The addresses of the regestened offices of the

Manager, Link Asset Management Limited, and the Tiustes, HSBC Instiutional Trust Senvices [Asia) Limited, are 200F, Tower 1,
The Quayside. 77 Hol Bun Read, Kwain Teng. Kewloon. Hong Kong and 1 Queen's Road Central, Hang Kang. respactively.

2 Basis of Preparation

(a) Statement of Compliance

Thet consolidated financial staterments have beeh prepared in acocrdance with the Hong Kong Financial Regarting
Sandards THKFRSs"), the requirements of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure requirements as set out in Appendix
C o the Coubet on Real Estate Irvestment Trusts (UWie "REIT Code”) issugd by the Securities ard Futures Commission ol
Hong Eang HEFRSS i & collective term which includes all apphcable HEFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards [THIKASE')
ond Interpretotions Exued by the Hong Kong Insttute of Cortified Public Accountants

(b) Accounting Convantion

The eancolidated financlal statemants have been prepared under the histoncal cost comenticn, as modified by the
revaluation of dervative finandal instruments, long -tefm incentive scheme provision, the dervative companent of
cofvertibée bonds, imvestment properties. and non-controlling interest put opton obigation, which are stated at fair values
a3 explained in the significant accounting poficies set out in MNote 3.

(e} Adoptien of Mew and Revised Accounting Policies
Far the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has adopted all the new standards and amendments that are cumently in

msue and eflective,
HIEFRS 4, HEFRS 7. HEFRS 9, HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmak Retom = Phase 2
and HECAS 39 Amendmants
HIEFRS 16 Amendiments COVID- 19-Relaimd Fent Concession:
HEKFRS 16 Amendiments COVID- 19-Reloted Rerm Concessions beyand 30 lune 2021

The adoption af these new standards snd amendments has not had any sigrificant effect on the resdts reported and the
financial pasition of the Group.
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2 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(] Adoption of Mew and Revised Accounting Policies (Continued)
The follwing new standards, amendments. nterpeetations and revited sccounting quidelines which haee been published
bt are not yet effective. hiave not been early adopted in the consoldated financal statements. These are effective for the
Group's sccounting pefiods beginning on of after 1 April 20232,

HEAS 1 Amandments Classification of Liabilities as Curment or Mon-current™
HEAS | and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Dhiscionune of Ascounting Polices™
Amendmernts

HEAS B Amendments Diefinition of Accounting Estimates™

HEAS 12 Amendments Drederned Tax Related to Assets and Liabslithes Arising from a Single
Transactian™

HEFRS 3, HEAS 16 and HKAS 37 Amendments Marrow-Scope Amendments™

HEFRE 10 and HICAS T8 Amendments Sale ar Contribution of Assets bets an Investor and [ty Assodate
or jpint Venture™

HEFRS 1T Insuranoe Confracts™

HEFRS 17 Amendments Amendmerts ta HEFRS 170

Rewited Accounting Guidaline 5 Marger fuecounting for Cemmaon Control Cambinatssns

Heng Kang Interpretation 5 (2020 Presentation of Financial Statermnents - Cassifeation by the Bomower

of i Term Loan that Containd & Repstment on Demand Claosss
Annual Improvements 2018-21020 Cycle™

W giinczve for accounting pencds beganning on or ather 1 lanuany 30232
¥ pifsctive fior accoonting peviads beginning on of after | lanuany 2073
*  ma mandabony effeciive date 1s delermened yel, but sarly applcation s permiftiod

The Group is n the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new standands, amendments, interpretations
and revised acoointing guidalines upon initlal applcation.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Falicies

The significart acoouriting pobdes sdopted in the preparation of the consalidated financlal stalerments ore set out belyw. Save s
the adaoption of new and revised accounting palicies, these policies have been (onsistently applhed to all the yvears presented.

(a) Basis of Consolidation
The concsolidated financial statemeants ncorporate the accets and fabdities af Link and all Its subssdiankes a5 at 31 March
2022 and thewr resuts for the year then ended,

Subsidiaries are entites, including structured entities. aver which the Group has contiol, The Group controls an entity when
the Group ks exposed o, or has rights to, variabde returns from its invelvernent with the entity and has the abilty to affect
those returmns through i power over the entity,

Subskdiarhes are consolidated from the date on which contral is transherred 1o the Group. They are deconsolidated fram the
date that control ceases,

Imes -company Transactions, batances and unrealised gans on transactions between group companies are eliminabed
Unreafised losses ane also ebminated unfess the transaction provides evidence of impaiment of the asset transfamed.

The Group applies the scquizition methad to account for business combinations, The considaration transferred for the
acquisiion of @ subsidiary |s the fas values of the assets transferred, the llabslties incurred to the former cwners of the
acquinee and the units issusd by the Groun. The consideration transfermed includes the fair value of oy asset o lability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. kdentfiable assats acquired and Rabilities and contingant Kabikties
nasumed in o business combination ane measured initially at thedr fair values at the acquisition date, Acguisition nelated
Corsls are axpensed in the consofidated incorme statement during the period In which they are inoured.

Where the Group entors inlo a contract that contains an obligation for ecample. a written put option exercisabie by the
coniract countenparty] to aoquire shares in a parthy-owned subsidiany compary fram the non-contralling erterest, wihech is
nat part of a business combination, the Group records a financial llability for the present value of the redemption amaunt
‘with a comespending charge directly to net assets atnbutable (o Unithalders. Changes 1o the value of the financal Kability
are recognised in the consolidated income stalament.

(b} Segment Reporting

A -ssgment i a distinguishable campanent of the Group thatis engaged ether in providing a partculas bype of tendce, o in
providing senvices within 3 particular economic environmaent, and which s subject to rigis and mowards that ane different from
those of other segments. Consistent with the Group's intemal financial reporting to the Manager, besng the chief cperating
decision malker, o the purpose of making decisions about allocating resources and assessing performances, segment assets
consist primarily of tangible assets and recebrables and segment llabidites malnly comgrise operaking labilitles.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(e) Fereign Currency Translation

it

{ii)

Functional and Prosentation Currencies

Items Included in the financial statemants of each of the Group's entithes ae measured using the curmency of the
pimary econamic envirehiment in which the entity eperates [the “functional currency”). The consalidated financial
statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong Dollars. which s the tunctional currency of Link and the Group's
precentstion Cummency.

Transactions and Balances

Foresgn cummency Iransactions ane translated into the functional currency using the exchange fites prevailing ot the
dates of the transactions oo valuation wheane Rems are re-measured. Foresgn exchange gains and losses resulting
fram the setthement of such transactions and from the translation at the reporting date exchange rates of monetary
assets and Haklides denaminaled in fedeign cutrenches ane recogresed in the consolidated income statement, except
when defered in ofher comprehensive income as qualifying cash fiow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges,

Group Companies

The results and financial posison of all the Group's enities that have a funcdonal cumency different fram the

presentalion curendy ade tranlated inio the presentation curmency as follows

- asgats and liabilives for asch staternent af finandial potition of the Group's emities are trancisted at the repoding
date chosing rake:

= intome snd expenditires for each income statement of the Group's entities ahe translated at average exchange
rates (unless this aversge |s not a reascnable approximation of the cumulatie sffect of the rates prevaling an
the transaction dates, in which case intome and expenditisres ang translated af the rates on the dates of the
transactions); and

= il resulting currency translition differmnces are fecognised in other comgrenensie income.

Goodwill and fair vahse adustments ansing from the acquisition of a foresen entity are troated as asscts and liabiitics

of the foreign entity and translated at the reparting date closing rate. Currency translaticn differences asdsing are

recogrided in other comprehensive income.
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Falicies iContinued)

(d) Investment Properties

A propey that is held for lang-tesm rental viekle or for capital sppreciation ar both, is classified as sn nvestment property
it also inchudes properties that are being constructed of developed for future use as investment foperties.

investment property comprises land held under government leases and treated under finance lease and buildngs held
undes finance leases.

An irvestment property is measured initially at its cost. induding refated transaction costs,

After initial recognition, an investment progerty 5 caried at foir value, representing open market value determined ot sach
reporting date. The eainging value of the investment property is reviesved every 2ix manths and i@ ndependently valeed by
axtemal valuer at least annually,

Ay gain of loss arising on disposal of the investment propenty (caloufated as the difference betwesn the diuposal proceeds
and the carmying amount, including revaluation, of the asset] is recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
periad i which the imesirment propesty i disposed of.

Changes in fair values of the vestment pregerties are recogniced in the consolidated income statermant.

‘Subsequent expendiure i capitalised to the asset's carmying amount cnly when it is probakle that futune economic
benefits associated with he Rem will fiow to the Group, and the cost of the (tem can be measured relably, All other repar
and maintenance costs are expensad in the consolidated income statement during the pavicd in which they are incurmed,

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and sguipment, including right-of-wss awets arising from property keased for own use, ae stated gt
héstoricad cost less accurmalated depreciation and accumulated impalrment losses, Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the Rema

‘Subsequent costs are included In the asset’s carmying amcunt or recognised as a separate asset. as appropriate, onky when
1t ks probable that future ecanomic benelits associated with the Rem will (w10 the Group nd the cost of the item can be
measured refiably. AR other repalr and maintenance costs are expensed in the consoldated incoms statement during the
iperiod in which they are incurned,

Depreciation of propedty, plant and equipment k= caleulafed using the straight-line method o allecate cost less astimated
mesidual value less accumulated impairmaent losses over the estimated usefud ives as follows:

Land and bullding Lease terms

Leasshold improvemants Five years or lease tesmns (if applicable)
Right-of-use assets Lease lerms

Equipment Three to five years.

Motor yehiches Flve years

An astel's residual value and usedul life are reviewed and adjusted, if approosiate, at each reporting date.

An assel’s Camyng &mount 5 written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount if the asset’s camying amount is greater
than A4 estimated redoverable amount. a3 an impalmment loas;

Gand and baszes on dispesals sre determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts and are recognised in
the consolidited come statement
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

()

(a)

{h)

Joint Ventures

A joift wenture i an arfangement in which the Group has joint control, whenebny the Group has dghts o the net assts of
the arangement. rathar than rights ta its assets and cbligations for its kabikties. Joint contral is the contractually agreed
sharing of comrol of an arrangement, which exists only when decshons about the elevant activilies requile unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

Interasts in & jont ventfure are accounted for usng the equity mathaod. Interests n a joant venture are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thareafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition peofits ar losses of the investes in the
consalidated mcome statement, and the Group's share of movements in othes comprehensive income of the inestes m
cther comprehensive ncome. Divicends received or receivabie from the joint venture are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the mestment

Where the Growp's thare of bosses in a joint verture equals or excesds its interests in the joint venture. including army other
unsecumed receivables, the Group does nat recognése further losses. unless it has incurred obligations or made payments
o behalf of the jaint venture.

Uinreaktsed gains on transacticns between the Group and the point venture are elimanated to the extent of the Group's
intenests in the joint venture. Unrealised losses ane akzo eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
Impairment of the assat transferred. Accounting policles of the folnt venture have been changed where necessany to
ensure cansistency with the polices adopted by the Group

The carmying emoun of the joint verture & tested for Erpaiment in sccordance with the policy descnbeed nnote 3{g),

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assots at amontised cost are recognised initially at fair value and subsequenty measured at amortised cost, bess
provdsion for Impaimment. The Greup holds certaln dett saciities with the abjective to collect the contractual cash flews,
which represent solefy payments of princpal and interests and therefore measures them subsequently at amortrsed cost
using thee effective interest method Regular way parchasas of sakes of debt securites are recognised and devecognised on
a tracde date basis.

Interest income from financial assets at amontised cost i recognised using the effective interest rste method. The Group
assesses on a forwand -looking basis the expectad credit losses associated with the financial assets at amortised cost. The
impairment methadology apobed depends an whether there has been a significant increases in credit risk,

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initinly at fair vahee and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less
provison for impairment. The Group holds the trade and other recervables with the abjective to callect the cantractual cash
flovrs and themsfore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective inferest method. The Group applies
the HEFRS 9 simplfied approach in assewting expected credit loises which uses a lifetime expected lass allowance for
trade recefvables. The expected credit losses on trade receivables are calculated using a provision matrix whens a provision
rate applies baged onits histothcal obeerved defaull rates adjusted by current and ferwand-|losking Infarmation

Other recefvables are considered to be kow risk, and therefore the impairment prowvision is determined a3 12 months
expected credt losses which consider curment and forwand-locking information, The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been & significant inoreass in credit rigk.
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Falicies iContinued)

{i) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash andl cach equialents include cash in hand, deposits hald ot call with hanks, ather shart-teem kighly Fauid
ivwestments with onginal maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafis.

i) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an scquesstion cver the fair value of the Greup's shane of the net identdfiable
assats of the acquired business at the date of acqusition. Goodwil on business combinations is stated as a separate asset
Separately recognised gaadwil i tested annually Tar impairment and carried at oot bess sccurnalated impairment losses
Impaiment kasses on goodwill ane not reversed, Gains and osses on the disposal of an entity inclede the carmying amalsnt
of goodwill relating 1o the entity sald. Goodwill is allocated 1o cash-genserating units Tor the purpase of impasment Testing.

(k) Unitholders® Funds as a Financial Liability
In accordance with the Trust Deed, Link is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the Group's Total
Diistriutabls Income for sach financial year, The trust alsa has a limited life of BO yeass from the dote of establishment.
Accordingly, the urits contaln contractuad obligations of tha trust 1o pay to its Unitholders cash distibutions and also
i termination of the trist, & share of all net cash procesds derved lrem the cale or reakaton of the assets of the trst
less any llabilites, in accordance with their proportionate interests in the trust at the date of the termination, Unithalders’
funds are thenefore ciassified as a financial Rability rather than equity In sccordance with HICAS 32 Financial Instuments:
Presentation. This liability Is showe on the consclidated statement of financial position as the net assets atbibutable 1o
Unitholders, Distributions to Unitholders are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(I} Trade Payables and Provisions
i) Trade Payables

Trade payables are recognised intially at falr value and subsequently measured at amestised cost using the effective
mterest method

{ii} Provisions
Prewvisions are recognised when there |s a present legal or constrsctive obligation as a result of past events, and it is
probable that an outficw of recouces will be required to tetile the obigation and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Whare a provision is expecied to be reimbursed. the resmbursement is recognized as a separate asset
Bt onky when the resmbursement is viruslhy certain

Presvisions ane measured at the present value of the expanditures expected 1o be reguired to seitle the obligation
using & pre-tax rate that reflacts current marcet assessments of the time value of money ard the fidks spechic to the
ohligation. The increase in the provesion dise to passage of time is recognised s inferest expense.

{m) Leases
Leases are recognised a3 a right-of-use asset and & comesponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
avallable for use by the group, except for short-teem beases that have a bease term of 1.2 months or less and leases of low-
walue assets. Assets and lab#ties aricing fram a lease are inHislly measured on a present value basks. Lease Rabdities are
tha mat present value of the fied lease payments discounted using the interest rate implick in the lease and subsequently
staredd at armariced cost

Leass payments are alocated betwesn pinclpal and financs cost. The finance cost s changed to the comsolidated income
staterment over the lease period 50 a8 to produce a consiant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
Eability for each perled.

O the Group's consolbdated statement of financial position, ight-of-use asset has been induded n property, plant and
equipment and lease Babiltes have besn included in storuats,
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

[n)

(=)

Current and Deferred Taxation

The tax expenses for the year comprises cusrent and deferred ta. Tax s recognised in the consalidated come statement,
except to the extent that it redates (o ftems recognised in ather comprehensive iscome o deectly in equity. In this case. the
tax is also recognised in othes comarehenan'e iIncome of dinectly B equity, respectivey,

The current income tax charge |5 caleulated on the basis of the tax lews enacted or substantively enacted at the reparting
date in the countries where the Group’s subsidiaries operate and generate faxable income. Management peviodically
evaliates positions taken in tak rehums with espact to siuations in which applcable tax reguistion s subgedt in interpeetation.
It establishes provisons where appropnate on the basis of amounts expected 10 b pasd 10 the tix authosities.

Deferred taxation is provided in ful, using the liability method, an temparary diferences aneng between the tax bases of
assets and labilites and their carrying ameunts in the consoldated Frandal staterments. Defored taxation (s determined
using tax rates [ond Lows) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date and ate expected to apply
when the related defermed tax asset &5 realizad or the deferred tax liability fs settied.

Defermed tax assets are recognésed to the extent that it is probabile that future tasbie profit will be availabie against which
e temporany differences can be utfised

Deferned taxation is provided on temporary differsnces arising from iniestments in suhsidiades, sccent where the tming
of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it s probable that the temporany differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future

Dederred taxation atisng from investment property is determined based on the expected mannher as 1o how the investment
propetes will be recovered {theough sale or through wse) with the cormesgonding tax rate applied,

Interest Bearing Liabilities

Interest bearing lisbities aré recognised inftially at fair value, net of ansaction costs incurred. Inenest bearing llabdites
are subsequently stated at arnortised cost any difference between the protesds et of transaction costs] and the
redemption vale is recogrised In the consalidated income statemnent aver the period of the instrument wsing the effective
Interast method,
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Falicies iContinued)

{p) Convertible Bonds
Canvetible bands with conversion right comarize a detivative component and a liability companent

At initllall recognition, the dethvathve commponent of the cosvertible bunds (s measured at fair velie Ay excess of the
praceeds over the amount initially recognised as the derivative comiponent is recognised as the liability component.
Transaction costs relating to the ssue of the comvertible bonds are allocated to the liability and dethvative components
m proportion 1o the aSocation of proomeds. The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liab#ity componant is
recognised intially az part of the liahility component and the porticn relating to the derdvative component |s recognisad
mmmediately in the consolidaled income staternent,

The desrwative component is subsaquently rernessured at fair vahes, with changes in fair value recognised immediately
In the censolidated incoeme statement. The Rabdity component & subsequently measured at amortised cost. The interast
expense recognised in the consolidated income statement on the iabiity cornpanent is calculsted wiing the elfective
nterest method

(q) Impairment of Non-financial Assets

Assets st are sublect to depreciation and amonisation are reviewed by the Group for Erpaiiment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carmying amount may not be recaoverable, An impairment loss is recognised

fiar the amount by which the saset’s camying amount exceeds il recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fakr value less costs 1o sell and value in use: Mon-financial assets other than goodwill that i subject to
mpairment ame reviewed for posoble reversal of the imparment at each reporting date.

{r} Revenue Recognition
(il Rentaks

Oparating lease rental incorma s recognised on a straight-Ene basis over the tarm of the lease agreement. Contingent
rental incame (representing intome ouer and above base rentl) such as turmaver rend, ls recognised according 1o

the terms of the lease agreemants when the amount can be reliably measured. in the accounting period in which

it B earmed Lease ncenthves provided, such o5 rent-free peniads, aie amonised on B Siraight-Ine basis and are
recognised as a reduction of rental income over the respective term of the lease.

[il Service Fees and Charges
Sendce fees and charges such as sr conditioning income ansing Irom the provision of services ane recognised over
tirme when such senvices am rendenad.

[id) Interest Incame
Interest inorme is recognised on & lme-proportion basks tseng effective Intenest me thod
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(=)

()

[u)

Expenditure
Expenchitires, inchrling property related autgaings and other expenses, ate fecognised on an sccrual bass

Employee Benefits

Employee berefits such as wages, selaries and bonuses are recognised as an expense when the employes has rendered
the service

Emplayes entitlements to annual leave ane recognised when they accnie to employess. & provision = made for the estimated
liability for annual leave a5 a resut of services rendered by employees up 1o the reparting date. Employes entithements o
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognésed until the time of leave. The employer's contributions to the Mandatony
Provident Fund for employess ane expensed as incuetred

Employees' Long-term Incentive Scheme
Incenthies in the form of @ lang -term Incentive scheme are provided to eligible employees (induding deectors),

Employee senvices rendened in exchange for the grant of the long-term Incentive scheme awards are recognised as

an expenge, with a cormesponding increase in the lability incurred. This expense is changed 1o the consoidated intome
statemant over the vesting pericds. Until the liahility is settled. the vakue of the labdity is re-measured at each reporting
date and ot the date of settlement, with any changes in value recogrised in the consolidated meoome staterment lor the
year. At each reparting date. astimates of the numbaer of long-term incenthve scheme awards that are axpactied to vest wil
b revieed and the impact af the resdson ia recognised n the eonalidated income statement. The earmying value of the
leng-term incentive scheme awands is neviewed every six months and is independently valued by exiemal valuer af least
annually, If the awards do notvest onthe vesting dates, the amourts changed to the consolidated Income statement will
b wiwiheen Dacke
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Falicies iContinued)

[¥] Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

A despentive i nifially recognised at fair value on the dabe o desroative contract is entered into snd i subsequsnty re-
measwred at its fair vahse. The method of recognising the resulting gain o lass depends on whether the derivative s
designated as a hedging instrument, and If 5o, the nature of the item being hedged.

At the irception of the hedging. the Group decuments the econamic relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged jtems. as well a5 ks nsk management objective and strategy for undertaking s hedge transactions

(il Cash Flow Hedge

Heciging relationships are classified as cash fow hedges when such relatonships are used to hedge against
waposure o varabBity in cesh flows that are attributable bo @ patticular risk associabed with a recognised assetor
Eabilty and such varlablity could affect profit or loss,

The changes in the fair value of the eflective potion of dervatives that are designed and qualify as cash flow hedges
are fecogused i ather comprehensive Moome shd defemad in a cash Maw hedging resenve. The gain of lodd felating
to the Ineffective portion ks recognised Immaediately in the consolidated hcome statement

Amcunts accumalated in hedging reserves are transhermed to the consolidated income staterment in the pesiads when
the hedged item affects profit or loss. However, where the hedged item subsequently results in recognitian of

a non-financial asset of a non-finandcial liability, the gains or Insses defered in cash flow hedging resene ae
transfamed from hedgng resenve and inciuded within the initial cost of the asset or liabilty.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is soid or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting. any cumulative deferred gain or loss snd defened costs of hedging in the cash flew hedpging resenve at
that time rermain in hedging reserve until the forecast ransaction ocows. resulting in recognition of a non-financial
aaset such as inveniony. YWhen the forecast fransaction (s no longer expected ta aceur, the cumulative gain af loss
that was reperted in hedging resenve i immediately reclassified ta the consolidated incomae statement.

[i} Fair Yalue Hedge
Denvatrees designated as hedgng instruments to hedge the fair valee of recognised assets or liabilites may qualily as
fair value hodges.
Thee Group Uses IMETESE rate SWap contracts to Nesgys L exposute 1o vanability in fair vabues of recognised lisbaities
against changes in market interest rates.
The Group uses cross currency swap contracts to hedpe its exposure to vaniability in fair value of recognised foreign
cuirency labilities against changes |n foresgn cumency exchange rates and markst interest rates. The changes in fair
walues of the cross cunmncy Swap confracts am ecognised dismctly in the consolidated income statement

Changes in the air values of these detivative contracts, together with the changes in the Lair values of the hedged
Eabilties attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the consalidated income statement as finance costs

of interest baaring liabilties. At the same time. the earmying amaunts of the hedged liabilties in the consalidated
statement of financial postion are adjusted for the changes in fair values
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

[¥] Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities (Continued)
(i) Met Imvestment Hedge

Hedges of net ivestments in foreign opevations are accounted for simiarty to cash flow hedges, Any gain of koss on
1he hedging instrument relating o the effective partion of the hedge is recagnised in ather comprenensive income
and accumulated in resendes in equity, The gain or loss relatng to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
thes condalidated income Statement

Gains and losses accumidated in equity are reclassified to the consolidated income statement when the fareign
operation is disposed ol

(w] Derivatives That Do Mot Qualily for Hedge Accounting
Certaln derfvative instruments do nat qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any dervative
irstrument that does not gualfy lor hedge sccounting are recognised immediately in the corsalidated
imcome statement.

(v} Hedge Ineffectiveness
Hedge effectivensess is determined at the inceplion of the hedge relationship, and through periadic prospective
cffectiveness assessments to cnsure that an economic relationship exists bebween the hedged item and
hedging instrumant.
The Groug enters into hedge refatonships whare the citical tenms of the hedging Instument maich exactly with
e terms of the hedged Rem, The Group therefore, pefforms a qualitative assessment of effectiveness, If changes in
circurmstances affect the terms of the hadped e sich that the critical terms no longer match exactly with the eritical
terms of the hedging nstrument, the Group uses the hypothetical derivative method to assess effectiveness
In hedpes of faresgn currency purchases, insfiectiveness may arlze il the ming of the lorecast transaction changes
fram what was originaly estimated of if thene are changes in the cedi risk of the derivative counterparty.

(w) Borrowing Costs
Barrowing costs directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, whidh are assets
that recessarily take & subrstantial pericd of time 1o get ready for their ntended use of sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets ae substantially ready for their infended use of sale. Al other bofrowing costs ane
recognised in the consolidated ncome statement in the period in which they ae incurred.

(%) Presentation of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The Group has adopled the lgudity basis in the presentation of the censolidated statement of financial positon a it
considesad tn b= more relevant and meansnghil to readers hased on the timing of their realsation or settlement of astets
and Hakilities as justiiod by the market situation,

4 Financial Risk Management
{a) Financial Risk Factors

The Group's activites expose it Lo a variety of Tinanclal risks; masket risk (including interest rate fisk and cusrency risk],
credit risk and liquidty sk

Risk management is carried out by the Manager. The Group’s overall risk management programme foouses an the
unprediciatdity of fnancial markets and sesks to minimise potential sdverse effects on the Group's financial performance
The Group uses derivative financlal instruments such as interest rate swap contracts and Cross CUTENCY Swap confracts to
manage financial risk
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Govermnance, Disclosures and Financial Statements | Notes to the Conspicdated Financial Statemants

4 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{a) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
[} Market Risk
(A} Interest Rate Risk

The Group I exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes in interest beadng labilites and
assets. The risks can be separated into cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rafe rick

Carsh Nowy inlerest rals risk is the risk that changes in maskel infleest rotes will impact cd Nlows miing from
wariabile rate financlal instruments. Bormowings at floating rates therefons, sxpose the Group o cash flow
nterest rate risk The Group manages its cash flow inlorest rate sk by using floating-to- fived intercst rate swap
contracts, Such inferest rate swap contracts have the econaomic eflect of converting barawings from floating
rates to fied rates.

Fasr value interest rate risk is U risk that the values of financisl Balsfities will lluctuate because of changes in
market interest rabes. The Group manaeges its fasr value interest rate sk by entering into interest rate swap
contracts which have the econcmic effect of converting borrowings fram fled rates to flagting rates.

The effects af the nterest rate swaps on the Groug's financial position and performance are as follows:

2032 2021
HKEM HESM
Carmying amount = aEsets mny i ]
Natichal amount 10,448 G054
Maturity date Oetober 2023 - Otober 2023 -
Blarch 2030 March 2030
Hedge rata 11 I'L
Changs in fair valus of sulstanding hedging nstrements
since beginning of the yeas 87 L1
Change in value of hedged item used to determine
hedge effectiveness |287) 18]
‘Weighfed sverage hedged rate for the year 0.7 07T

As at 31 March 2022, if interest rates on floating rate interest boading llabiites net of fSoating rate interest
bearing assets had been 100 basis points higherfower with all other varables held constant, profit for the year,
bafore ransacticns with Unitholders, would have been HKS 148 miion (2021 HKS101 millian) lawenhigher,
mibinly & & resulf af hghetdflower inlerest expense on floating rate borrowings. As a1 31 March 2022, # interest
rates had been 100 basis points higheniower, the hedging reserve would have been HES3 10 million/HKS325
rhillion (2021 HKS3YT milan/HIKSA0] malioh) higheilower malnly as & redult of an intreadeldedreite in the
falr values of the cash flovw hedges as described albove,
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Governance, Disciosures and Financial Statements | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stag LH

4 Financial Risk Management |Continued]

(a) Financial Risk Facters (Continued)
(] Market Risk [Continued)
() Currency Risk

Currency risk ariset on scoount of manetsry assets and labilihes denominated in & cumency that is not the
functionad currency

Thee Grougs has ceftain irestrments in Mainland China, Australia and the United Kingdom, whose net aysets ane
expased 10 forskgn curtency iranslation risk. This gave rise 1o an aggregated unrealised gain of soproximately
HKS1.326 milon (2021: HKS2,099 million) on translation of these operations’ net assets to the Group's

Hang Kang Dollar reporting currency, which s reflected as a mavement |n reserves under the haading of
muchange resenve.

Al taking inlo sccounts 1he Coss curency Sswep contracts, the Groug finances the svestments in Australia
and the Linfted Kingdom by bank bomowings denominated in Australian Drollars and British Pound Stering
tespecthvely, thereby estabizhing a natural hedge agalnst any foreign currency rsk arlaing from assets and
Eabilities denominated in Austrakan Dollars and British Pound Steding,

The Groug has designated certain Beitish Paund Stering bank borronwings as hedging instruments for the
charges In the vahse of the met bwvestments in the United Sngdom sttributable to changes in the HESGEP spat
rate. The carrying amaount of the British Pound Sterfing bank borrowings designated as hedging mmstruments

at 31 March 2022 was HES1, 108 million (2021: HKS1.108 milion), The hedge was determined to be

effective. & foreign exchange koss of HKSS milian [2021: HES50 milkon| was recognised in the Group's other
comprehensive income for the year on translation of the Biitish Pound Sterling bank berrowings to Hong Kong
dollars. Management considers that these 14 no significant net curmency risk exposune with respect to Sustralion
Dioflars and British Paund Sterling.

Thae Greasp has designated certain Renminb bark bosrowings and cress currency swiap contracts as hedging
instruments for the changes in the value of the net investments in Mainland China atiributable o changes in the
HESMAME spat rate. The carmying amounts of the Renminbi bank bormowings and cross curmency swap confracts
designated as hedging instruments at 31 March 2002 were HESZ033 millian (5021 Mil) and HES93 million
(2021 Hil) respoctively. The hedges were determined 1o be effectve. Foreign exchange losses of HKS36 millon
(2021 Nl and HES93 milan (202 1: Ni) were moognised in the Group’s other comprehensive Income for the
year on transhation of the Renmindd bank borrowings to Hong Kong dollars and the fair value change of the
1044 CUITBNCY SWAP Conracts reapeciieby.

Thae Grougs has cortain medum term notes and fnandal acsets at amatised cost denominated in Uinfted States
Doflars. The Groug USES CIOSS CUFTENCY SWag Coniracts to hedge it exposire aganst changes in fonelgn
wxchandge rate on its medium tem notes. Since Hong Kong Dollar ks pegged @ the United Stistes. Dollar, management
considers that there s no significant curmency risk with respect to financial ssssts ot amontised cost
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4 Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{a) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
[} Market Risk (Continued)
(8] Curmency Risk {Continued)
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Az 60 31 March 2022, the Hong Kang Dallars equibvalent of United States Dollars medium term notes stands st
HES 12,109 mion (202 1: HKST 853 million}. The effects of the cres ousmency swap contracts on the Group's

financial pasiban and peformance re as fobows:

2023 2021
HEE M HESM
Carmydng Emaunt - Gabillieslassets {D6) 30
Motional amount 16575 11,867
Maturity date Septemitser 2024 - Sephembar 2024
Jamsary 2033 Ay 2024
Hedge ratia 11 1l
Change in faif value of outstanding bedging nstrsments
sirioe beginning of the year 1245) 173
Change in value of hedged tem used to determine
Hedge affectiveness 445 (73
‘Wisighted sverage hedged rate for the year 2.50% 136,
(i} CreditRisk

Credi risk arises. from the potential failure of the Group’s counterparties to meet their sbigatons under financial
contracis. The Gioup is exposed 1o credit risk on its cash and cash equivatents and deposits with banks and financial
nstitutions, financial assets at amortised cost, darivative financial instruments as well as rade receiables.

Credi risk is managed on a group basis The Group manages ds deposits with banks and financial institutions by
Emwting the level of depotis to be placed with sy counterparties. Deposits plated with any individual countedparty
canngt excesd a pre-defined Bmit assigned to the ndividual counterparty, As at 31 March 2022 all bank deposits

weire placed with finandsl institutions with external eredit ratings of na less than "BEE".

Far financial assats at amontised cost. the Manager dosely monitors the financal perfermance of the issuers and
their credit ratings 1o ensure that adequate impaimment losces are recognised for imecoverable debts. As at 31 March
2022, all the financlal assets at amaortised cost held have external credit ratings of no less than "BBB-". In this regard,

the Manager considers that the Group's credit risk is low,
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Governance, Disciosures and Financial Statements | MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

4 Financial Risk Management |Continued]

(a) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
(i) Cradit Risk {Continped)

In respect of credit exposures to tenants, which indudes trade receivables and certaln tenant-related othar
receivables, eredit sk sxpasure & minimizsed by undertaking transactions wath a large numbes of counterparies and
conducting credt reviesws on prospective tenants, The Group also has polides in place 1o ensure that rental security
depotits of bank guarantess squivaient 1o 2 1o 3 months rentals are requined from tenants priof ba commencemant
of leases. it also has cther monitoring procedures 1o ensune that follow -up action is taken to recover overdus debts.
Accordingly, management considered that the expected credd loss on a collective basls is chose ta zero. In addition,
the management negulay reviews the recoverable amount of each long overdue trade receivable an an indnddual
Ibasts o ensure that adequate provision for impairment losses ks made for potentialy imecaverable amounts, which
uses & lifetime expected koss aliowanion for trade receivables. The Group has sho incorporated forward-locking
Infermaticn, which takes into sccount the macrosconomic factors i estemating the expected credit loss. The Group
hag no significant concontrations of credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit ik is represented by the camying amourt of each Tinancial as4et n the consoldated
staterment of financial position after deducting ary impaiment allowance. The Group's exposure Lo chedit risk arfsing
from financial assets &t amonizsd cost amounted 1o HKS2082 milkon (2021: HE%2,742 millan) and is set out in Mot
18, The Gioup’s exposisne to credit sk arising from trade recelvabies amounted to HKS270 milion (2021 HKS253
millan] and ks oot out in Mote 19 The Greup's expoture 1o credit risk ansing from eash and cash equvabents and bank
deposits amounted to HES 949 millien (2021: HKS2. 530 milion) and is sot caft in Mote 20, Tha Group's sxposuns

o ereeit rik aring from detheative financial instrments arcounted o HKS414 millan (2021 HKS218 milkan) and i
50t aut in Mate 76

(if)  Liquidity Risk
Prudert liquidity risk management includes maintairng wifficient cash and the avalabilty of funding fram eammitted
credit facilities and operating cash flow,
The Group has cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits of HES2.949 millien (2021: HKS2,530 million) as at
31 March 2022, In addition to the cash rescurces. the Group has total avaliable borowing facilies amounting o
HKS7 2861 miflion (202 1: HKS48 587 milior), of which HKS50,236 million (2021 HKS38,61 1 milan) was drawn
a5 at 31 March 2022, The undrawn committed facilites, in the form of bank loans, totalied HES22,625 million (2021
HESS.976 miliion) as at 31 Manch 2022
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Gavernance, Disclosues and Financlal Stakements | MNotes to the Conspicated Financial Statemants

4 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{8} Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
(i) Liquidity Risk iContinued]

The table below anabtyses the Group’s financal Rabilithes into relevant matusity grougings based on the remaining
pericd at the reporting date from the contractual maturity dates, The ameunts disclosad in the table are the expected
contraciual undiscounted cash flowws which comprise both Inferest and principal cash flows

Less than Between Betwieen Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
HESM IS HES™ HESH
At 31 Manch 2022
Trade payables and accruais 2695 5 - -
Derdvative fnanclal nstuments [ret setted) 33 104 267 I
Seouiy oeporsls 83 51 561 134
tConverlble bonds 323151 13 793 =
Interest bearing kabdities bAEG 9,079 15264 a.707
Amount due to a non-contilling inferest 32530 = - -
Kon-controling riefest put option oblgaton i - - -
LUinithokiers: funds - - - 162,688
AL T Masch 2021
Trade payables and socrusls 2101 Fd - -
Dreivative financial INSIurems (Fet settiad) T ] 110 -
Secury deposts wr 500 iy ([i
Convertible bonds L% &d 4,065
Intmrest bearing Eabdities Az vy 23 147 20 i ]
Aot due b & Ron-controlling ntenedt - 4.0212 - -
han-cantroling inteest put option oblgatan - 234 - -
Unitholders' funds - - - 158730
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Governance, Disciosures and Financial Statements | MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

4 Financial Risk Management |Continued]

{b] Capital Management
The Group's ohjecthes when managing capital are to safegueard the Group's ability to contime g a going concern whilst
sewking to maximise benefits to Linithoéders.
The Group monitors capital an a regulas basis and obsenves the REIT Code's maximum gearing ratis of 50% (202 1: 50%)
This ratio ks calculated as total barrowings (interest bearing kabBtles and convertibile bands) divided by 1otal asset value as
shown in the conscidated staterment of financial position

2022 2021

HES'M HES'M

Total bomowings 49,745 AL A38
Total assel vlos 125716 208 BEG
Gearng ratio 22.0% 184%

{c) Fair Value Estimation
1 Fair Value Hierarchy

HEFRS 13 requires disclesure of fair value messurement by thiee levels of fair value measurement hierarchy. The
falloawing table presents the Group's assets and labilites that are measured at fair value

Leved 1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active merkels for identical assets or labilites,

Level 2 Impats ather than cuated prices induded within Level 1 that are obseovable for the asset or Babilty, aither
dectly (that s, as prices) or indirecthy (that is, derived from prices)

Leved 3 Imputs for the asset or abdity thot are not based on observabls market data (that is, uncbservable inputs)

Ll 1 Liswel 2 Lewal 3 Talal
HES™ HKS'™M HESM HES ™M
At X1 March 2022
Aszeln
Investiment propertes - - 212761 212,761
Derrvative financl instruments - al4 - 414
Totel ssssts - dald 212,761 213175
Liatulithes
Dierreative Fmancisl Irstrurments - 425 - 4340
Mon-contralkng menest put opticn ablgatson - - il B6
Taots abdities - 479 a6 515
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Gavernance, Disclosues and Financlal Stakements | MNotes to the Conspicated Financial Statemants

4 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{e) Fair Value Estimation [Continued)
[} Fair Value Hierarchy [Convinied)

Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Tatal
HES™ HEKSM HES™™ HESM
At 31 Masrch 1021
Assets
Investment propertes - - 100074 109074
Devivative fnandial instuments = 218 = 218
Tols as8eg - 218 106074 10 192
Liapsdiies
Deavative Bnancial instruments - 1x - 125
Ron-controling interes? pat option oblgaton - 204 04
Total liabiites - 129 04 133

Theare were no transfers betwean these theee levels during the vear (2021 Nil)

The Growp's policy s to recognise tansiers into and out of fair value hierardhy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstamees that caused the transfer.

{ii} Fair Yalue Disclosurne

The camying values kess impairment provision of trade feceivables and the carmygng valuss of trade payables, accruals,
ank deposits and interast baaring kabilles that ane expected to be recovened or Settled within one year ara a
reasanable approcmation of their fair values due to their shart-tenm maturities,

The fair values of ntedest beaiing fiabilitses, Rability component of convertible bonds and accruals, that afe expected

to be setthed after one year are based on matket prices or a'e estimated by using the expected futwe payments
disrounted at marked interes! falés
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Governance, Disciosures and Financial Statements | MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

5 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial staternents in confarmity with HEFRSs requices the use of certain eritical
pocounting estimates. it ako nequires the Manager to exercice its judgement in the process of applying tho Gmoup’s
accounting pobcss

Estimates and judgaments aie continually evalated and are based on héistorcal experfence and other factoes, including
expeciations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group maces estimates and assumptions conceming the futre. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seddam egual the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a ssgnificant risk of causang a material
adjustment to the carmying amounts of assets and Babiltles within the next year are discussed below.,

(a)

()

[}

(dl

Investment Properties

The fair value of cach investment property is individually determined at cach reporting date by independent valuer based
o & market value ascessmant The valuers have relied on the inceme captalcation appraach as their primary mathed,
cress-referanced to the direct comparisan appreach where applcable. Detalls of the valuation techniquet and assumptions
hawe been diccinsed in Note 15

Financial Instruments

In estimating the fair value of its financial matruments, the Group uses vahsstion technigues such as dealer quotes and
discounted cosh flews. The Group also makes assumptions that are based on market condtions costing at each
reporting date.

Long-term Incentive Schame Valuation

The value of awands granted is estimated based on valuation techiriques and assumplions on W priges. outstanding
length of The awards, distribution pay-out retes and other market condilons, which management considers a5 representing
the best astimate of the value of the labilty for such awarnds at the reporting date. The carrying vake of the kng-term
incentive scheme awands b reviewed every six manths and is independently valued by extemal vakier at least annually.,

Hen-controlling Interest Put Option Obligation

Tha fair value of the non-contralling interest put option obligation is determined at each reporting date by independent
valeer based on & masket value assessment. The valuer has used discounted cash fiow as the valiation technigue. The
valuation Is based on varlous assumptions, Including the estimated fair value of the equity interests of the non-whally
owned subsdiary ot the enxpected time of exercise of the put cption, the expected tme of exercise el the cash fow and
the discournt rate used. Detaks of the valuation technique and assumptions have been disclosed in Note 23
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Gavernance, Disclosues and Financlal Stakements | MNotes to the Conspicated Financial Statemants

6 Revenue

Rewverue recognised durkng the year corrprises:

20233 2021

HKS™M HES™
Rentals
= Hong Eong retsl piopsties 6273 6159
~ Horg Eong car parks and related Biiness 1130 1583
~ Mainlard China retall propedtiss 1,061 e
= Hong Kong, Maintand China and averseas offices akq a8
= Mainlard China logistics 12
Other revenue (Hats] 1302 1074
Total revenus 11.602 10744
oot Dl revenu includes managemment ferl, & Cord i) wefvice lowd, peommilion kv asd mitcelansos e

Leases with tenants prosvide for monthly base rent and recovery af certaln outgaings. Additienal rents based on business
tusnover amounted ta HIZS 119 million (2021 HESES million] and have been included in the rental income,
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7 Segment Information

Hong Ko
Heng Keng ar parks Mamntand
retail  andrelated  China retail
properties buaziness properiies Orthers Taotal
HES'M HESM HICE™ HES™ HKS™

For the year ended 31 Mareh 20232
Revarie 7.089 2138 1,383 1112 11,602
Segment results 5,380 1675 w04 318 8,264
Change in T vidues of imeestment propenies [2.069) 1,671 (23 55 436
Shasre of nat profit of & pent venture - - 64 - 364
Infterest income k-1
Finarce cosis |1,005)
Loss on disposals of financial ascuts st amorticed ot {11
Profit before taxation and tramsactons with Unitholders B136
Taxatan L2
Prof far the year, befores transactions svith Unithalders 6,007
Capital addithons 365 3917 7489 b Br ¥ 15,453
Depreciation - = 12 182} B
dn ot 31 March 2022
Segiment gasets 1213700 401F7 25909 26379 216,115
livierests i o jont e buie - - 3.756 - 3.756
Guehsil 400
Financlal assets at amartised cost 2,082
Driva tive fmaancial mstrements. 414
Blank deposts 170
Cash and cash squivalents 2779
Total astets 2125716
Segment Labilities 1.562 221 748 1.08% 4,50
Diafermed tax labdities 3,348
Lang- tenm inconthee schama provisian 153
Cicher Labalities 3,248
Imterest bearing liabiites a5 Fi4
Cometible bonds 4,031
Dierrvalive finencial ingirusmsnis 429
Prosision for taxation 4B3
Total katvbties, sxciudng net asses

aftributable to Ursthalders 62,726
MNon-cortrolling interedts 02
Mat assets attributable to Unithokders: 162 GEA

For the year ended 31 March 2002, revenue of HES 1,641 million [2021: HKS 1,357 milkon] is attributable to external customers
from Mainland China, HES9,4 78 millon [202 1: HKS9,016 million] is attributasle to extemal customers from Hieng Kong, and
HICS4B2 million (202 1: HKS371 milkan] is atiibutable 1o external customers fram overseas

A5 at 31 March 2022, imeestment properties, inlefests in a jpint verture, property, plont and equipment, and goodwill emounting
tor HESZ8.084 million (2021; HKS27, 288 millicn) are located in Mainland China, HKS172,102 million [2021: HES185.422
millicn) are located in Hong Kong and HES7.979 million (021 HKSE067 millisn) are located in overseas.
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Gavernance, Disclosues and Financlal Stakements | MNotes to the Conspicated Financial Statemants

7  Segment Information [Continued)

Haong Kong
Hong Kong car parks Mainland
retall ond related  China retail

propertes busmess properties Drthers Tatal
HKS® M HES™ HES™M HESM
Fer thep ymar prded 31 March 2021
Rrermiin 800 1,888 §015 841 13744
Soegment fetuhts 8320 1,448 43 280 FEIO
Crange im far vilwes of incestment propames
A impairment of gonchwill [3.554) 273 LN {1334 53232
Imerest ncome 176
Fimanga coste ]
Profit bafom teation and transactions
with Linkhalders 1844
Taxakon 11083y
Praofit for the year, before transactions
with Unkhaiders TED
——
Cagital additions B2l 56 115 rane H00
Depreciation - - 11} (=0 =1
As at 31 March 2021
Segment actets 175 4DE 31536 20,878 26,103 204 003
Goodwil 2}
Fimancial assets st amertised cost 2742
Derivative financisl instruments 118
Cash and cash sguivalents 2530
Tatal assels 109835
Sagment Habilties 1468 Lrg i LOBS 4393
Defemed tax Nabilities 1029
Liong-term incentre scheme provision u
Oither linbilities 4048
Interest beaning liabdities 4634
Crmmertible bords 40602
Dierivathe financisl instrumants L%
Prodision for taxation o7
Tatal Rabities. exchading net assets
attribuitatis to Linitholders E1.1492
Non-controllng interest (rd}
Mol sEoets attributable o Unitholdens 158730
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Governance, Disciosures and Financial Statements | MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

8 Property Operating Expenses

Property managers’ fess, securfy ang cleaning
Seaff costs

Repair and maimtenance

Litilities

Goverranent ent and rotes

Proenotion and imarkeling espenses

Estatn common area costs

Real estate tanes and kand Use tas

Othes propssty oRerating expehses

9 Finance Costs

Interest enpenses on interest beanng lakilitics
Iriereat sxpenses on comaerible bonds (Nate 25]
Other botrowing costs Paote 1]

Less! capsialicad uncer investmsant propertes (ote il

Change in falr values of dervative compenant of convertible bonds (MNote 25
Fair value gaimn on non-conkroling interest put option oblgation Mote 23§

202 2021
HES'M HKS'M
705 BED
55 Ty
279 85
120 a1
282 73
158 156
179 94
133 =3
m T4
2826 1506
2022 2021
HISH HKEM
81z 735
125 126
223 221
1,160 1,061
5 (1]
1,155 1.DE4
30 32

(BB 01 1236
1,008 770

Bl

fil | Citisper borverseng cots mainby inchode BESAT milion (2077 HKS96 makon) intenest axpenkes o & non-contmiing efonest, HESE0 milion
(2071 HKSE7 milfion] et lossss on inleresl fale swap consacls designaled 45 cash Nirwr Hedgus, HESAE million (2021 HES4S mallon) het
DAY 0N CTOE EUTBNGY TWap EORETICtS and miberret rabe fwap contract dossgnated a4 fair value hodges and varlous banking and francing

charges.

fill  Inberest expenses hae been copilalised wnder imvestment propenie 51 sn average mierevl rals of 2.3% (207 1: 16%| pis annam.
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10 Profit Before Taxation and Transactions with Unitholders

Prafit belore taxaton and transactions with Unitholders for the year is stated after chargingfjerediting)!

11

2072
HKEM
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2021

Stalf couts Mote 11)
Diepreciation of property, plent and equipment
Toustes's fee
Waluation fes
Auditor's remunesation
Auelit and audit-refated assurante sendces
Apguisiton reated professionad fees
Dless
Professional fees capitalised under invEsiment properies

Bank charges

Cofmmisaacd 1o profemy dgentd

Donations

Exchangs igainjicss on finandal instruments
Short=term hearse pxponces

Oither logal and professional fess

923
B4
16

4

12
1
2

i

653

LY

¥
15
15
31
a
1B

Staff Costs

023
HKS™

021

Wages and salares
Contrittion 1o mandstony prawvdent fund seheme Note)
Loz~ tenmy Incentive Scheme awarss

arL
15
118

Tou
15

Less: capitalised under investment propertes
Statf costs fMete 10)

L1004
81

923

FEL
™

58

Wete: The Cenug aperades a peenn schems = Mandmoey Provadent Fisd. The schems s @ delined corimisition plan funded throgh peymesnia

B bl ackrirmstot e Patuds, A delmetl conitrbubon plan s & g

separats antiy |a fund), The Group has ne farthor payrment obligabors onon the contribubons have boan paid.

124  Link Real Estate Investment Trust
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Governance, Disciosures and Financial Statements | MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

12 Taxation

Heong Kong profs tax has been prendded for at the rate of 165% (2021 16.5%) on the estimated assessalbile profit for the year.

Incosme taxes in Mainland China and Suctralia have been provided for at the applicable rate on the ectimated ascessable profit
for the year

The amount of taxstion charged to the consalidated income statement represents:

2022 021
HKS'M HES'M

Cument LECHTEn
=Hong ong Jes TE6
= Maintand China 170 174
= dupstrada 7 =
Defiarmed taxaton (Nate 1) 67 132
Taxatian 1220 Loo3

The differences between the Group's expected tax change, using the Hong Kong profits tax rate, and the Group's taxation for

e year weere 85 follaws:
2022 021
HKSM HES'M
Frof belons taxation and trandactions with Uinitheiders B.136 LBdd
Expected tax cakulated at the Hong Keng profits tax rate of 16.5%

(2021 16.5%) 1,342 304
Tau eifect of different taxation rates a2 B
Tax effect of non-deductible sxpeniey o1 Bod
Tax effect of non-Taxabls incoime 1120 [=2]
Tax effect of cthes temporany di Mererces 1158 1= ]
Utilisation of praviously uniscognised tas loss {24 13
Withinciding tax 4G [F1]
Tauation 1,229 (e -]

O 18 Mareh 2021, the Group recenved a protective adddional tax assessment for the year of assessment 2014715 from

Haong Karg's Inkand Revenun Department [TRD) amounting to HES345 million, Such additional profits tax assessment was
made an the gain in respect of the disposal of properties. The Group ladged &n objection ta IRD on the basis that profits tax chall
not be charged on the profits derived from the sales of the properties, which sales were cagital rather than trading in natere,
Arcording tothe instructicn af IRD, tax reserve certficates T TRCST) amounting to HES17 2 million were porchasad on

10 May 2021 &= a condition for the tax payable holdover arrangement. On 28 February 2022, IRD determined that no tax
wiould kee charged on the disposal of properties. The TRCs were receemed from IRD on 7 Apnl 2022

Annual Report 20212022 125
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13 Earnings Per Unit Based Upon Profit for the Year, Before Transactions with

14

Unitholders Attributable to Unitholders

2022 2021
Profit for the vear, before transactions with Linithoiders attributable to
Urstheicdars for calculating basic sarmings per unit HEKSE.894 millian HES1 165 millicn
Adjustrent for diluthe conventible bonds HEST 2 millhan -
Prafit for the year, bafore Uansactions with Linithciders attritrtabsde to
Liritheiders for calculating diuted samings par unit HES6.96E millien HES] 185 milban
Weighted average number of units for the year for
calculating bate samings per Uit 2,092 485 656 2.0 BRGG18
Adjustmend for dikutive convertible bonds 36,566,414 -
Waighted sversge number af units Tor the year Tl
cileulating diled sarmungd per unit 210,052,000 2l 18
Baske earmings per urst HES3.28 HESOS?
Dilrtest earmisngs per unit HESE.27 HESOST

For the year ended 31 March 202 1. the basic and diluted sarnings: per unit wesa the same as the convertible bonds had an anti-

dikitive effect on the basic sarnings per unit

Goodwill
012 2021
HKS M HES™
AL 1 Apeil LU d24
Exchange atjusmens 8 14
I = g
Al 31 March 400 k5 F

126 Link Real Estate ivsestment Trust
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Governance, Disciosures and Financial Statements | MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

15 Investment Properties
(a) Details of the Movements of Investment Properties are as follows:

HES™
Ar 1 Apeil 2021 199,074
Exchange adjustmants [Mote jo)| 1,054
Acquisition of assets iNote 21) 11,248
Additions B59
Change in fair values 426
At 31 March 2022 212,761
At 1 Apnl 2020 [ ERFL
Exchange adjusiments [Moke jl| J0EQ
Acouisition of asscts 7,353
Additions Bl
Changs in fair values [G2re
At 31 March 2021 199,074

[b) Valuation Process

The imsastment propesties were revalued on 8 marke value basi a5 a1 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 by Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited rthe “Principal Valuer™), an independent firm of professional qualified valuers and the
Principal ‘WVaer of Link.

The Manager hald decussions with the Prindgsl Valuer and reviewed a significant inpits used by the Principal Valuer
DChscussions of the valuaton processes and results at each reparting diate ane held between the Manager and the
Frincipal Waluer,
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Govermnance, Disclosures and Financial Statements | Notes to the Conspicdated Financial Statemants

15 Investment Properties (Continued)

{e) Waluation Techniques
Thet Principal Vabues has refied on the imcome capltalisation approsch as the primary sppeoach with crots-reference to the
diect comparison aporoach,
Thet incomma capitalisation approach is based on the capitalsation of the current passing rental income and potential
rvcersionany income of the property from the dote of valuation at approgelste investment yields toarrhe of the capital
value. The appropriate adustments/deductions for rent-free pariod, engoing vacancy voidimarketing periods and non-
recoyerahle sxpenses far the vacant space have baen allowed
Direct comparison approach {s based on compasing the property to be valsed directly with idertical o similar assets
for which price infarmation is available However, given the hetercgeneows nature of real estate properties, sppropriate
adjustments ado usually required to allow for any qualitative differences that may affect the price Beely to be achieved by
the propety under considesation.
Thee valuation technigue is summarised In the below table with its significant unobsenmable inputs.

Relationship of significant

Significant unalbsenable nputs ursmbsaraable inputs to fair value
Income capitalisation approach I} Captalrsaton rate [Bendedy The highsr the capitaization rate, the
2.90% - 5.30% lorwer the fiir value.

{202]: 3015 - 5.24%|

il et passing iNCome per annum: The higher the net passing incom, the
HICS0S - B3] 3 4M hibgheet thie faid valse.
(2021 HESDLTM - HE53E3 98]

Thee irvestment properties are included in Level 3 (2021: Level 3] of the falr value hierandhy,

[d) Restrictions under the REIT Code

Link acquired 100 Mariet Street in Sycney, The Cabot in Londen, & 50% interest i OQibao Vanke Plaza in Shanghai, Hapgy
‘valley Shopping Mall in Guangzhou, 75% interests in two logistics properties in Danpouan and Foshan, two car parkicar
service centres and godawn buldings in Hong Kong, te completions of which were on 7 Agsil 2020, 25 August 2020,

2 April 2021, 28 June 2021, 27 Dctober 2021 and 31 Decemnber 2021 respectively, In accordance with the REIT Code.
Limk is prohibited from disposing of its propeartias fhald through o special purpase vehicle ar jesnt venture enbity] for ot least
tweo years from the time such properties are acquired. unless the Linithalders approve the proposed dispesal by way of @
epecial resolution pasced in sccordance with the Trust Desd.

(#) Exchange Adjustments
Thee net exchange gain on translation ks atbributable 1o the exchange gain on the Growp's Investment properies in Maintand
China amounting to HES 1,227 milion and exchange loss on the Group's investment properties in Australia and the Linited
Eingdom amcunting to HKS23 million and HKS150 milan, respectively, These ameunts are induded in exchange reserve
and wese partly offset by hedging Fnancial instruments.

{f) Security for the Group's Loan Facilities

A5 a1 31 March 2022, certain of the Group's investment properties in Malntand China and Australia, amounting to
approximately HES4, 866 million (202 1: HKS3,005 millicn) and HKS4,112 milion (202 11 HES4,038 milkan) respectively,
were plodged 0 secure the Group's loan facilites totalling HKS3, 020 milion (2021: HKS3,416 milion),

128 Link Real Estate ivsestment Trust
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Governance, Disciosures and Financial Statements | MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

16 Interests in a Joint Venture

2022 2021

HES'M HES™M

Cost ol investmant in a joint venhse 3,252 -
Share of post-acquisition results and othar compereharssive Moeme Soa
avee

Cn 24 Febroary 2001, Link, twaugh 3 whaly-awned subsidiary, emered into a framewark agresment and an equity transfer
agrearment 10 acquire 50% issued share capital of EB R MEERE L o an adjusted consideration of RMB2.744
millich {equivatent to appoaimately HKS3,243 milion), Link neurred scoulsition-related transaction costs af HKSS million. The
transaction was completed on 2 Apnl 2021, SRR R SRS owns the Qibac Vanke Plaza located at 573 G,

620 Block, Ciban Town, Minhang Districr, Shamghs

Link: held the followng joint venture as at 31 March 2022

Particulars of
Place of establishment and Bsued
kind af lagal entity! ehase eaplialf
Hame place of operations Principal activities registered capital Interest held
EEWERER Peopie’s Republic of China, Property holding and RMBE 1318010000 S0%,
L Emited Ratality comparmy leazing
People’s Repulbskc of China

The Group's mberests in a joint ventune amounting to HES 3 756 milllon &5 at 31 March 2022 are accounted for using the equity
methad in the consalidated financal statements. Mo dividend is received from the joint venture during the year. The Manager
corsiders that the interests in the joint ventune are not material to the Group,

The financial nforrmation related to the Group's share of joint venture is &3 fallows

02T 2021
HKS'M HES'M
Share of nat peofit 364
Share of net property ncome 181
Share of imvestment properties carmed ot fair valus 4,240 -

Annual Report 202172022 129
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Gavernance, Disclosues and Financlal Stakements | MNotes to the Conspicated Financial Statemants

17 Property, Plant and Equipment

Laarad,
tuilding and
leazehodd Right-af- Motor
im presmaents. use mssels wehicles Equipment Tatal
HESM HESM HKSM HEEM HESM
At Apell 021 1705 i 1 L E| 1,301
Additions = 5 = 28 33
Digposals 2 - - - [
Depreciation charge for th yiar {52y 21 (i1} [P: ] [y
At ) March 2022 1151 5 - 2 1.248
Ak 31 March 3023
Cost 1219 5 1] 193 1,533
Accumulated deprecition {aay - 18 (101) (275)
Nt book vilue 1151 5 - 2 1.rad
a1 Apeil 2020 1254 ? 2 126 1355
dudelithons ) - - 15 4
Disposals " - - I 21
Dapreciation charge for the year e 1] 1] 131 1130
At 31 March 2021 1305 ) 1 £ 1301
At 31 Maich 2021
Comt 133 L 7 193 LE2%
Accumuilated depretaton I11E &7l @ ] PR
et book value Lits i L 73 1L.301

130 Link Real Estate ivsestment Trust
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18 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assets at amoitked cost ncude the fokawing debt imestments

WAL ek |

HKS'M HESM

Listed crwporabe bonds 2.00F b
Linksted corporate bonds i ] .1 ]
2,082 1742

During the year, the Greup disposed of certain listed corporate bonds at an aggregate consideration of HKS22 1 millicn and
resulted i a loss on disposals af HEKS11 milion

Druring thee year, the Gioup has intenest income arsing from Mnencial assets st armartzsed cost amounting to HESE0 milion (2021
HES94 milion). The camying amounts of the financial assets of amortised cost ane expected 1o be recovered as below

202F 2021
HES'M HKS'™
= Withn one st B%0 437
~ dftar one year 1192 1310
2,082 2742
19 Trade and Other Receivables
20TE Z021
HKS'M HESM
Trade recervaales ] Y30
Lesa: pronviesion foi imnparmiert, of trade receyables {55 a7y
Trade recervadles - net ] 253
Orhes recelvablay 1114 843
1,364 195

The carrying amounts of these recoivables approxemate thes fair values and ane expocted Lo b mastly recorsered within
one year.

There are no specific credit terms ghien 1o the tenants. The net trade receivables are mosthy covered by the rental depositshank
guarantess from correspanding tenants

Annual Report 202172032 131
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19 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
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The ageing of trade recetvables, presented based an the due date, is as follows

2022 2021

HESM HEKS™

0=20 days 216 L
A1-00 days 61 i
Chver B0 days 52 &2
329 320

Manthly rentals are payable in advance by tenants in accardance with the leases while daily gross receipts from car parics are
recehved from the car park operators in amears. Induded in the net trade recebvabies of HKS 270 milllon (202 1 HCS253 millien)
presented above were HES40 milion (2021 HE540 million) of acoued car park income and HKS20 million (2021 HKS19
million) cf accrued turmowver rent, which were not yet due as at 31 March 2022

Mevesrents on the provision for impairment of trade recetvables are as fellows:

2032 2031

HKSM HESM

A1 Al BT (7]
Provision for impalnmant of trace receh/ables 2 14
Receivaibles written off dusing the vear as uncolectinke [134] (18]
Exchangs atjsman:s i 4
At 31 March ] &7

The ereation and release of provison for impasment of trade recevables hove been ncuded in propenty eperating expenses in
tha consolidated income statement. Amcunts charged to the provision acoount wil ba writhen off when there & no expectation
of recoveting additianal cash

Thee otheer classes of receivables included in the trade and other recevables do not contain impaired assets sings the expected
credit loss of the other recefvables is closs to zero,

The maximiim exposrs to cnedit nak an the reporting date is the far value of trade recenvables

20 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits

022 2021

HKS'M HEKS M

Clash ot bank 1584 1831
Bank deposits with original maturity of less than thees months 1,185 ]
2778 2530

Bk deposits with original maturity of more than thiee months 170 =
2,940 AR30

The carrying amounts of cash &nd cash equivalent and bank depasits are expected to be recovered within one year

132 Link Real Estate iveestment Trust
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21 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Dwefierred tacation is calewlated in full an temperary differences under the llability methed,
Analysis of net defermed tax labilities as follows:

2032 021
HES'M HESM
Diefeimed Lax assets [1B8] 1173
Defismed tay Nabilities 3,536 3202
3348 3020
Deeferred tax assets and labilites are expected 1o be recoverable and settied after one year.
The movements in defemed tax assets and liabilities during the year were as follows:
Imvestment propertics
revalustion and
accelerated
depreciation allowante Dhers Taotal
HES'™ HESM HKES™
At 1 April 2021 aoer (] 3,029
Exchange adpsstments 1a i1 L]
Aoquesition of subsidiasries Al 15 a3
Recognized in the corsolidated ncome statement
[Mobe 12) 236 31 67
AL 31 March 2023 1382 [EL)] 3.348
At 1 Apeil 2020 2875 B 1871
Excharipe adpastments 14 12 26
Recognised in the consolidated ncome statement
(Mabe 125 104 633 130
A1 31 March 2021 I0ET |58y 3020

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has uncecognised tax losses 10 be cammied forward against future taxabla income amounted
to approxmately HOSE T million (2021: HKSEST million), These tax losses have no axpiry dates except for the thx losses of
HES190 million (207 1: HES158 milian} which will expire at various dates up to five years from the year in which they amse

331/449
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Govermnance, Disclosures and Financial Statements | Notes to the Conspicdated Financial Statemants

22 Long-term Incentive Scheme Provision

2022 2021
HES'M HESM

Leng-tsrm incenthe schame prendision
= wapacted to be sotted within are yoar T 35
- expected to be settied after one year Bl 47
153 o

On 10 July 2017, Link adopted a new lorg-term incertive scheme the "2017 LT1 Scheme’). Under the 2017 LTI Scheme,
the Manager may grant sestricted unit awands and conditional cash awards 1o directods of the Mansger and ey employees
of the Group,

Diuring the year. certain directors and employees of the Manager woesie granted restricied un® awards and conditional cash
wwards at nil monetary consideration undes the 2017 LTI Scheme. The restricted unit swards granted under the 2017 LTI
Scheme, In genesal, will vest appraxdmatoly two to three years from the date of grant. Linder the 2017 LTI Schome, bnits will
be purchased in the grantess” faveur from open stock market 1o satisfy restricted units awards vested. For those restricted unit
wwards granted with performance goals, the eventual numbers of units to be purchased in each grantes's favour upon vesting
are linked to the perfarmance of Link batsed on the tatal Uinitholders retum, net property inoomse or cerain vesting conditions.
Conditional cash awards wene also granted in conjunction with the restricted unit awands, bestowing upan each grantes a
conditional right to receive a cash payment repdesenting an amount equivalent o the apgregate of the distributions during the
vesting period, catch-up adustments and ex-gratia payments pursuant to the 2017 LTI scheme, if applicable.

Cluring the year, the Group purchased 284,634 units [2021: 515 483 units) from the market for restricted units awaeds which
have vested in acoordance with the 2017 LTI Scheme,

Diuring the vesting period. a llability is recognised representing the estimated valie of the awards gramed undes bath the 2017
LTl Scheme and the parton of the vesting peried exoired as at the repoting doce. The vakue of the awards was estimated

it the reporting date by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, an sdependent extemal vahiet bazed on valustion technigies
and assumptions on unit prices, cutstanding kength of the awards, distribution pay-out retes and other market conditions,
appropriate. Tl'uln‘unqp in vishie of the cutstand ng svards wes charged 1o the comalidated mcome statemant. inthe event
‘that the vesting conditions are not met. the amount previously accreed will be weitten badk accordingly.

134 Link Real Estate ivsestment Trust
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d Fimancial Staf L]

Merverments in the nurmber of restricted unit swands diring the year and the maximuen number of units to be vested upon

westing of restricted unit swards are as folliowe:

Quistading Geatiad Wi Cawre Ly Desrunding ey
il gy Lo g ey n beweisdin
Dy o grast Vierirag i 1 s 271 s e Ll Beyew heer  Hlwch D) rerirg de®
HITLT Scheme
Iy XL 0y 2001 0 o TR00 0 . . 0 [EED + =
Iy ES 3 el 218 b B o 251 LW ] (A [ 4]] |RELELN =
Sy 20141 T e 2902 nenr Ay - L] L] Listen
By X0 by MO0 X e 2200 maur L] = |ELEN TeResy asa
8 by 2000 30 e D THIT - (1] - far. ] TERES =T
Thay 301 Tlaty 2 b0 B e 2511 - L5 A - [Ty BT LWLarFs
Ty X0 3 b SN EL3sE B . maE STaey LpaLEa™
ML ek 1MLN0 L [30e8) 11351 2] 1187 0E] L
Xaiiea e LB gy il ] ERat] LELH LEELBY
Notes:

l)  Fesimeted unit gy westng percantages chiring the yaar ranged fom 0% in 100%
(] eorinn vesiing conddécrs ane mat.

fif ddditiomal units beyond these amounts. ane subject 10 approval of the Remuneraton Commities of the Manager,
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23 Other Liabilities

2022 2021

HES'M HES™

Aumssunt dus to @ non-conbroling interest 3,863 ARd4
Non-contralling intenest put ooticn cbligation BB 104
3048 anda

Mol

[ On 23 February 2005, the Geoup, thiough a non whally owesd suksidiany Tho Project Compamy”, in wiich Link has an indineo 80%
mﬂhﬁmwmmrhﬁqkhnmmmmmvd??mﬂ-mﬁ:aﬂnlﬂuuimEmfn
il develcpmant. For thve purpens of funding the commarcial development, Nam Fung. & non-conirolling intiest of the Pregect
Emwh:mhﬁhﬂnﬁmmﬂmhﬁhﬂwﬂmﬂmﬁlﬂmhﬂmﬁmﬂ[ﬂmﬁ'I"lm.'rl:lmt:luuhlmﬂ controling intefest &
unsscued, interest baanng & sn eifective istersst rale of 2.3% (2031 208%). and has no feed repayment tenm. Such amount iscluding any
accruind intenest will bo repaid from the Progect Company's surplues cash afier mesting its paymant ohlgasons.

@ Pursuant b the shaseholders’ sgreement, Mas Fang has o right (o axerciss o pul opticn b tegueen Link to purchase o the iesund shanes Nen
Fung holds in the Projoct Company at the then tar marnet value, afer the sscond annsersany of the issuance of the Cerbificate of Complance
recognised as a financial Babdity besed on a valuation performed by Crowe Honwath First Trust Apprasal o Lic, an independent frm
of prefessional qushfied valoen The viluer has wied discooried cank fiow as tha veluation techinique. Tha valustion i Based on vatious
asurmptions and caiculated by refererce fo a number of unobservable inputy, incloding the estimated fair value of the equity imonests of the
Propect Company &1 b expeciesd Sine of exeicne of B [ opbon, e expedied line of exeiciue taell, the Cish N ard thee discour rals
wrmed. The Marager held discoooont with fho valeer and reviewed 2l sigrificant inputs uied Disnmsors of the valusaton pocesses and
ressults ot eoch repodting date ane held Beiwesen e Manige: and the viuer, Far vl of te pus oiicn chlgason is ncluded in Levs 3
(3021 Livwnd %) of the fair vabes Rlerarchy, If tho estmated fair value of the oquity intevests of the Project Company ot the tmae of s it
Piigghady, thas Falr wistui of ths Dt ortion g Wil alsn be higher, I tha Bxpected b of ixnsecss B Lter o F the Ssioon (e 5 highar
treon. they fanr walun of ha put opton cbiigation would b lowar

The mavement of non-contiolling intevest put oplion cbligation dusing the yvear ks as follows:

2022 2021

KM HKSM

At 1 Apnl Z0a B30
Recogrised in the concolidated income statement.

= Fair valuer gain (Nate 1118 EFLD)

Ar 31 March BE 04

136 Link Real Estate ivsestment Trust
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24 Interest Bearing Liahilities

2032 2021
HKS™™M HESM
Linsecured bans bosrowings 18,633 14 448
Secured bank bormowings 3,930 1416
Mhadin aFm maled 23.161 16700
45,714 34634
The carrying amounts interest beasing liabilities are expacted 1o be sottled as balow:
202 2021
HES'M HES™M
Due in the first yoar
Urssstuned bank bormoewings 4297 1,751
Secured bani borrowings 20 =
Mechium tarm nctes 1,235 1441
5,736 3,248
Disn in the secand year
Uritacuned bark bormeaings 8,205 i}
Secured bark Dormesangs 215 il
Mechiam lem rotes - L2368
B.430 1B05
Diun in the third year
Unsecured bank bosrpwings LE3S B0
Secured barwk borrewings 174 =]
Machum baim notes 6,624 -
8,433 i
Due in thie fourth year
Urisetured bark bafrowings 3,005 L.2as
Secored bank Dormowngs 1,755 E2
Mischipm term noctes 1857 4,598
7.637 6,030
Due in the fifth yoar
Urisacured bank borrowings 1,491 i
Socuned bank bormmssngs 187 735
Mechum borm notes 8,014 1.BEG

7 6EE P T
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Govermnance, Disclosures and Financial Statements | Notes to the Conspicdated Financial Statemants

24 Interest Bearing Liabilities (Cantinued)

2022 2021
HMSM HESM

Do beyond the fifth year
Secured bank borrawings £10 ]
Rl termm fales A1 7610
FET T 839
A5.714 I4634

Meotex

1 Afier 1mkirg 1o SCCourn (e CROSS CUFTEncy SWwED ConTacEs, excepd for bank borowings of HIKS5.65 miiion (207 1: HKS2 834 milion],
HICS 3,296 million (2021 HIKS3 BE] milon) and HIKS3, TES8 million [2021: HKS3 833 million) which ame denominated in Rermnbi, Acstralisn
Daltars ane Brtish Fourd Stedng respectividly, &l the sther intenest Eearng kabinses ane denomnabed in Hong Kong Deliars

[ s a result of Ehe global mterest rate beachmak mform, the Group s switched il of the London Interband Offered Rate (LB0R)-bassd
Hhhmmﬂ%?.ﬂ?mﬁhwﬂlmwmlmﬁﬂmum Ui syl Al Lk il dczoianl e oovs
culrency swap conbracts and ineres rate swap conbacts, the effectha intorest rate of tha imierext bearing Rabvities which sr denomnated
n Hang Kong Dolats as a1 31 Maich 2022 was z.zmﬂnzlzlmmmmm"mmmmm“w
m Ronrmenks, Austrakan Dolars and Botish Pound Sseding was 3.68% (1011 384%), 1.13% (2001 1.OG%] and 1.44% (20217 1 03%;
respctivisly,

25 Convertible Bonds

On 3 Agnl 2019, e Group issued HESA billion conventible bonds at 1.69% per annum due 2024, These bonds ane comvenible
inta new Link units at an initial comversion prce of HKS109 39 per unit ot the aption of the bandholder. Link has the option to
redeem the bonds if the closing prce of the wnats s 130% or above the inittal corversion price while bondho'ders have the right
toy require Link to redesm all ar game only of the beneds on 3 April 2023, The eonvertible bends am unsecured, The affsctive
Interest fate of the convertible bonds @ 31 March 2023 was 3129 (2001 3125,

Cn 4 Ageil 2022, the Group has, at the option of the bondholders, redeemed part of the bonds at an aggregate princpal amount
of HK53 213 bilion representing approximately B0.3% of the initial principal ameunt of the bands, together with interest
accrued up to the date fied for redemption but unpaéd. Al the redeemed bords ware cancelied on 4 Apil 2002

2032 2021
HKS M HESM
At 1 Apnl 1970 3910
Fimance comts [Mote 9) 125 175
Interest enpenses paid {Gd) [ 0T
ik 31 March 4,031 1970
Dierpvative component
it 1 Apeit 2 -
Change in fair value [Nose 9) {32) 32
it 31 March - 12
4.021 a4

138 Link Real Estate ivsestment Trust
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26 Derivative Financial Instruments

riirr 2071
HES™M HES™M
Dietivative azcoty
Designated as cash flow hedge
— INtEfEdl TatE Swiap contracls a0 a3
Diesigrinned as fair value hedge
= CIOsK CLUIMENCY Swap contracts 9 46
= ingerest rate swap contracty - 18
Mot designated as hedging instruments
- ENG4E CLITENCY SWap contracts - 11
— forward foreign exchanpes OoneTacs 1 =
a1 218
Dertvative liabilities
Deigrinted &1 cash fNow hidge
~ INEEFESE 308 SWap contracis - h B
Designated as fair value hadge
= CTOLS CUMInNCy swap contracts {241) [Fi]
- inferest rate swap condracts 7
Designated a5 net fvestiment hedge
= CIOES CUITENCY 5wl CoNMracts {53 -
Mol desigiated as hedging instruments
= CIONS CUMBNCy swip contracts {B1) EE L
= farward faneign exchange contracts 7 .
............................................................... e NN B
Mat gervative [lablitesifassets {15] £
Mates:

il Tha fair vaboes of fimancial instrerends that are not traded = en actres market 2/ dobermined by wiing valuation technigues. These waluabion
techeigues mazumiss the use of obsenable market data where i i avastable and rely as ite ax possible on sntity specific sstimates. If &8
sagnificant inguits. requined ba fair vakae an instrument ane obserrable, the instrumand is induded n Leve! 2 of tho Tair value keeranchee

[l The lair vakues of cross curmnty swap coniracss and interest rele swap contracts ane caléulaled by reference 1o the present valies of the
estimatied future cash fiows, talong into account marked ohsenabls yeio curves and fonsand eechange rates at sach reportng date. The fas
ks o foowand Soresgr exchiange contaels e diberrmned wsing konyaid exchangs mackel rabes o sach eponng (e Cross cummoy
swap contract, nforest rate swap contracts and forevend foresgn exchangs contracts s included in Level 2 (2402 1 Level T) of the fair vlos
Hersthy.

The carrying amounts of net derivative (liabilites)fassets ae sxpected 1o be settbed as below:

2032 2031
HESM HES™™
After one year 15 Ed
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26 Derivative Financial Instruments (Centinued)

The Groug uses eross cufTency Swap contracts (swapping from foreign currences to Heng Keng Dallars) ond imerest rate
swip contracts Eo minimese its exposur 1O mavements in foresgn cumancy eohange rtes and interest rates in relation ta its
Interest bearing BabSties. Ay change in fair values of the effective pertion of the cach llow hedges in relation to Interest rste
swap contracts is recognised in the hedging reserve. Any change in fair values of the fair vakee hedges in relation 1o intengst rate
swap contracts and amy change in fair value of cross currency Swap contracts ans recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement A net amount of HES372 million (202 1: HES120 millien) had been credited to the hedging reserve duing the year as
fusther st eut in Note 29,

As at 31 March 2022, the derivative financla instnaments qualifying as cash flow hedges have, in effect. provided the Group
with an average fixed interest rate period of 353 years on HES 10,048 millicn barrswings (2021 £ 68 years on HKSHERS
million bomawings] from the reporting date. The notonal principal amount and the wesghted average fixed interest raite of the
outstanding floating rates 1o fxed rates intersst rate $wap contracts as &t 31 Match 3022 were HECS 10,048 million (2021:
HKS8.654 million) and 0.73% {202 1: 0.77% respectively.

As at 31 Masch 2072, the derivative financial instruments qualifying as fair valee hedges have, in effect. converted past of the
Groiip barfawings inta Hong Kang Dollars fixed rate and floating rates interest bearing llabilties. The notional principal amaounts
of the outstanding cross cumency swap contracts and intenest rate swap con'tracts qualifying as fair value hedges as at 31
March 2022 were HES12 431 millicn (2021: HKST.753 millan] and HKSA00 millon (202 1: HES400 milkon) respectively.

Gaing and lasses on intedest rate swap contracts recognised in the bedging resenve (Note 29) as at 31 March 2022 will be
releazed to the consolidated intome statement 8% satllemant

As &t 31 Masch 2022, the derfvative financlal Instrsments qualifying as net investment hedges have. in effect. comenead part of
the Group's net ivestment. in Mainland China attributable to changes in the HKSRME spot rate. The notonal principal amoeunts
of the outstanding cross cumency swap contracts qualfing as net investment hedges as at 31 March 20232 was HES2 276
million {2021: Mill.

A at 31 March 2022, the Group has cutstanding Cross cUMency Swap contracts that are nat designated for hedge accounting
and the notonal principal amaunts were HKSS 148 millon (202 11 HICS2 754 million)

As st 31 March 2022, the Group has outstanding forward fereign exchange contracts af celling Renminks BO3 millien (2021
Mill, Ausiralian Dollars 33 million {203 1: M) and British Pound Sterling 10 millien {2021 Mil) aganst Hong Kong Dollars, These
fanerad contracts wene entered for the purpose of keeking in part of the Group's future Renminbl denominated net inceme in
Maintand China, Australian Dollars denominated net income in Awstralia, and British Piound Sterling denominated net incoma in
the United Kingdom in Hong Kang Dollars term, and are not designated for hedge accounting

The Group's hedging reserves disclosed in Note 29 relate 1o the following hedgang instrumeants:

Interest rate swaps
designated os Hedging
cash flow hedge reserve
HKS'M HES™
AL Apeil 2021 32 iz
Ehan:! I fair value of hedgirg instrumant recognised
athar comprehaniive incame n2 2
Rectassified from other comgrehensive income 1o
consalidaled income statemsent L= [
At 31 March 2022 404 A0
At 1 Apel 3020 B3 FEl
Charge in fair value of hedging instrumert recognised
in alher comprehirsing intoime 83 (%]
Reclassified from othar comprehensive inceme 1o
consaldated moome statement &7 ar
AL 31 March 2021 3 32

140 Link Real Estate Investment Trust
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27 Trade Payables, Receipts in Advance and Accruals

2022 2021

HES'M HES'M

Trade payables 104 =
Recopts in advanoy L] 401
Accruals 2,074 2045
2,700 2.504

The carrying amounts of these payables approximante thelr falr values end are expected to be seitled as below:

032 2031
HS'™M HESM
Wdlithin one year 2,685 403
After ang yes 5 .
2,700 2504

Thir ageing of trade payables. presentod based on the due date. ks as folows
2022 021
HES'M HES'M
O30 gays 65 iz
31-90 days B 6
Choar 30 s 33 10
104 [
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28 Units in Issue

2022 2021

Humber of units Mumber of units

AL 1 Apeil 2.0B1.562.866 2057 50E 336
Linits bought back for cancellation 11,264,000) 16,000, 000§
Linits issued wnder distributicon nerestment scheme 2B.CO4 GRd 20 el 4T
At 31 March 2,110,193 50 2081067 686

Pursisant to the general mandate granted 1o the Manager by the Unithciders, the Manager (on behalf of Link) bought back a total
of 1.264.000 unite {2021 5.000.000 units) at an agregate price of HKSB2 million (2021: HKS379 millon). A1 units bought
back were cancelled during the year,

During the year ended 31 Masch 20232, the Manager issued and aliotted 29,594 984 units in total pursuant to the distibuation
reinvestment scheme in respact af the interim distribution for the six morha endad 30 September 3021 and the final
distribution for the financlal year ended 31 March 2021

Closing price of the units as at 31 March 2003 was HESE? 00 (2001 HKS70.80) per unit. Based on 2,110,193 850 units in Bsue
as at 31 March 2022 (2021 2.081.862.866 units), market capitallsation was HKS5141.383 milion [2021: HES 147,396 million)

29 Unithelders' Equity

Eamings
retained for
Hedging Exchange resefve
eserve Li=—iptd I*ﬂl.mlzrlﬁ Tatal
HKS'M HES™ HES'M HESM
At Apai 2031 32 22 [0} :
Cash flowy hedges:
= Change in far vilues 312 - - 312
= fymount transfemed o the consolideted ncome
ataterant (Mate {{) B0 - - B0
arz = - aza
Forgign cumency transktion:s
~ Exthange gain on translation of financial statements = 1336 = 1326
— Change in f@r value of net estment hedges - (137) = 1137)
= 1183 = 1185
Merasses atmibutabie o Unithokdess:
— Aot asing from resense movements (Mate i)} = = [L.561) 1L.561)
At 31 March 2022 40 1167 [L571) =

142 Link Real Estate ivsestment Trust
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29 Unitholders' Equity (Contimued)

Earnings
retained for
Hedging Exchange resenve
resene resorve adjustments Taokal
HES'™M HEEM HES'M HES™M
At 1 Apil 2020 [BH] [2O71) 2158 -
Cash flow hedges
- Charge n far values 63 - - E3
= Amaunt trancfenned to the consclid
income statement (Hote (il T . - 57
120 = 2
Forsign curmency tanslations
= Exchangs gain an trarsition of finandial statements . 2053 - 1.009
= Changee in fair valuo of not mvestment hodges . A0 [{=0]
2049 - 2.04%
Het assets attributable to Uniholders:
~ Amaunt afising from resene movements (Mote (i) - - [2.169) (2160
4t 31 March 2021 a2 ) 18]
MaEs
i) Hmount transisred o e conselidaied incoms stab in respect of cash i hedges was indused in “Finaren cosi” [Nets 5
[l The smount repeeserdod caminga rotuned for the yeor 1o afsot thn restres movemendy
30 Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(@) Net Cash Generated From Operating Activities
20EF 2021
HES'M HES™
Prafit before taxation and transactions with Unitholders 8,136 LB44
Long=term intentis scheme aands 118 B4
Depreciaton change Bd oy
Lorss on dsposals of property. pHant and egquaprmesnd F4 Fal
IntmeRst income =8 {1363
Finance costs 1,008 Tro
Less on dapasals of financial astets st amertited codt 11 -
Share ol net proft of & ot veniure 364 -
Exchangs diferenie 1211 A
Change im fair values of investmant propoerties ard impasemant of goodwill 428 bad?
Increasa in trade and other recewvables, depasits and prepayments |411) |12
Increase{decreate] in trade payables, netwipts in advance and aocuals 73 =n
Incredse|decrease) in security deposits 134 A
Leiig-tesiwii imientned Lehame setllad {47 1=
Incoema tax pakd (1,468 13799
Mot cansh genevated (roem operating acthites 6,658 J0m
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30 Mote to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Continued)

(b) Major Mon-cash Transactions

During the year, distributions amounting to HKS2.030 millan (202 1: HES1.954 milkon] were pakd te Unitholdens in the
form of additional units under the dstribution reinvestment scheme.

e} Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

Amaii
Interent Derivative  due te a man-
bearing  Comvertible financial controlling
laksikties bonds Accruals  Instruments Iinterest Tortal
HES'M HESM HEE. HES™ HES'M HESM
Az at 1 hgal 2021 34,634 4,002 s 1] J.E4a 41463
Charsges from financing cask Sows
Proceeds bem meed baaing
liptslties net ol ramgaction oosts 25237 - - - - 15137
Repayrent of interest beating
Hitelzes (1d.34:8) = - = - {14548
Incregse in amourd due toa
rearycoirolng inbenest - - - - “ ]
Interest paid - {B4) (B0 2 ®2) [ra)
Paymint cf e labiites = o] Fi| - - I2)
Tuotal changes from firanding scthtes 10,289 [L:T1] (i ] 20 (1] 9.33R
Hon-gash changes
Aeaurtion of suriidues 1164 = ¥ < z 1.164
Changes in fur valsss of cash flow
e - - - {3a = 312y
Changes in tair valees of tar
vialut heggrs (4D} - - am - -
Finarce costs 51 a3 BES £ 81 1127
Exchangs sdjestments snd others [24) - 1 - - 2
iy oot e i P e Bl il R, A 3 Ly 1
At 1 31 March 2022 a5714 4031 135 15 3.B62 53757

144 Link Real Estate Incestment Trust
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30 Mote to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows [Cantinued)
[c) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities (Continued)

Bt
Interest Derivatve  due ta a non-
bearing  Comvertbie Bagnelal  comtrallag
liabiities. beads Acormsls - inestruments Interest Tokal
HES™ HEE HKS™ HESM HESM HE
Asat ] Apeil 2020 HLESE 1710 i 143 aFH 3333
Dhange from financing cash flows
Progsscs from eienesd bearng
laZnls. nat of TanSaCton Comg J0EIT - = = = mad7
Repayrment of interett bearing
hagslees (57,458} - - - = T AL
Increase m amour dud 194
non-controling intenest = - = £ 45
Interest paid - {15 755 11| T ]
Payrresnt of lexse iklees - — (7] - = G
Total changes from finandng sctiities 1165 JB5; (TER) (I6) (2N i 1L
on-cash changes
Changes in fTair vakoes of cach low
Bemdges - - - (] - L&
Changes. in T values of Lsr
walts hedgeq L - = =i} p= =
Financa costs ar 157 T T4 96 Liog
Earhurge adjustrents and others i - 1 . - ]
Apat 31 Masch 2671 A3 4003 HF =) 1544 41563
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31 Acquisition of Assets

O 4 Jure 2021, Link, therough a wholy-owned subsidiony, entered into a sales and purchase agreement to scruine the entire
isswed share capital of HE PDF0 Holding Limited at an adjusted consideration of RMEZ, 108 milion fequivalent to approximately
HES2 530 mililon), which is the sole cwner of the antie registered capital of B HAERERIRRE R, which in tum is the
foue cwnar of Thie antine registened cagital of B NR TR 280 Link incurmed acquisibon-related transaction costs of
HES10 million. The iransacton was completed on 28 june 2021 8954 B EEE MEETE M B2 8 owns the Happy Valey Shopping

32

Mall bocated at Mo, 36 Machang Road, Tionhe Déistrict, Guangzhou.
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On 23 Septernbeer 202 1, Link, 1] through a whally-owned subsidisry, entered into o sales and purchise agreement 1o acquire
T5% issued capital of Ea Hua Uinited Warehause lnvestment Limited at an adjusted consideration of RMBE4T millon [eguivalent
o Apprtmately HESEEE milar], which In turn 5 the sole owner of the sntire registered capital of B RE® MWL E,

and 2 through a 7 5% owned subsidiary, entered into a framewerk agresment and an equity transfer agreement o acquie the
entine registened capetal of #LLTER & (IR E] st an adjusted consideration of RMBEZ19 million (equivalant 1o approximatsly
HESZ6G million}. Link incurred acquisition-related transaction costs of HESS misian in total The transactions wene completed on
27 October 2021, WM EE MU O E and ML ERA T2 E own the logistics properties lacated at 281 Yanhe Road,

Shatlan, Dongguan and Heng'er Road, Sanshu, Foshan respectively,

On 10 Movenber 2021, Link. through its wheolly-owned subsianes. entered into sales and purchase agreements 1o acquine
the entire lssued share capital of Apollo Luck Liméited and Zung Fu Land Investment Limited jnow mown as instant Success
Vertures fHE) Limited) a2 the final consicerations of RS2 695 million and HE$3.123 million respectvely, Link incurred
acquisition-reloted transaction costs of HKS12 millicn in total. The transactions were completed on 31 Decemibsr 2021 Apalls
Luck Limited and Zung Fu Land Investment Limited awn the car parkcar services centres and godown bulldings located at Mo,

60 Ka Yip Street. Chal Wan and Ne. 50 Po Lol Streat. Hung Hom respectively.

The abowe acquisitions have been acoounted for by the Group as scquisitions of assets as the entities acquired by the Group do

not corstitute & business,
The assets and KabiSties arising from the acquisitions are as follows:

Car park!
car services
s and
Happy Valley Logistics godawn
Shapping Mall praperties Bulldings Tatal
HESM HES M HES'M HESM
Inwestmant praperties (Mot 15) 3,857 1,619 5872 11,348
Cash and cosh sgubvalents 53 248 - 301
Other bamovwings i3 = - 713y
Qther ret [iabiites 168 (=L]] 142) (143
Bank bourowings |5E3 {575} - |1,184)
Mon-controlling interests - {312) - (312)
Purchase conslderation 2,540 041 5ARG 9311
Cash and cash equivalents scuired 53] [248) - 1301}
Canh ourtflow on acquesitions. 2,487 593 5830 010
Capital Commitments
2022 2021
HESM HES™
Capital expenditure of investmant properins cortracted bt not provided
for at the and of the year 3568 nos

146 Link Real Estate ivsestment Trust
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33 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Farty Transactions
and Balances

Infoemation requited to be discloted concerning related pany ransactions & et ouf in thes note unless decosed slsewhens in
therse consalidoted financial statements,

(a)

(b)

Mature of Relationship with Connected/Related Parties

The table set forth below summarises the names of the connectedirelated partes. as defined in the REIT Code/HEAS 24
[Revised] *Retated Party Disclosures”, and the nature of thelr relathonship with the Group as at 31 March 2022;

Connectod/relsted party Relationahip with the Group

HSBC institusional Trust Services (Asia) Limited [the “Trustee) Thas Trustes of Link

The Hangkarsg snd Shanghal Barking Corparation Limited and its subsidisnss Ansociates® of the Trutee
fencluding the Trustee and #s propristany subaldiades| fthe "HSBE Group™)

Aedas Limited and Asdie Bejing Limited Axsociates” of director

* TAssocieie” has the meaning sscribed 1o under the REIT Code.

Significant Transactions with Connected/Related Parties
The felawing significant transactions recognied under HKFRS: ware camied sut with connectedirelated parties

203 2021
HKS™ HES™M
Trustee's fee paid and payable to the Trusice (Hote (i) (16 (hL]
Transactions with the HSBC Group (Motes {8 and fivl
Irterest expenes and vanous financng charges io the HSBC Group on
inbenest Bearing Fabiltied. crogs curtency Swap coniracls ond imesest
TME Swap Comracts {521 55
Fenial income trom the HSELC Group on leasing of recall unds e I5
Interest income from the HSAC Geoup an bank deposits 1z 17
Architecturalirenavation conmultancy services fees paid and payable tn
Andas Limited and Aedas Belfing Limited (Motes. (il ard v 14 i
lirea

W Al comnectidelied pamy TEnLIctions wens carmsd out in scoondance with the termi of the meldvant Mgheements govermng the
tranaschionc and in the ordinary cowrse of busineos.

1) The Trustos is entithed bo recave an ancal tnustes's fes icalotated and paid monthly] at rates ranging from QO06% per annum o
0.015% per anrum L0 mangerg Trom O035% per aneom i 0 015% per areum) of the latest property valos 5% determined in the
|mleat anmual vabsation ieport ol an independenl poperty vilbies iecomemended by the Mansges and appointed by the Trustes for amd
on bahalt ol Link from tene o e sulbjoct 1o @ monamen of HES 150,000 per month

(i) T tramaactions wene antemd ot arm's kergth on nomal comimsroial terms and i comgliancs with Link’s procuremant polioy.
(i) HSEC Group and the Trastes am membens of U same group and HSBC Grous is consichred & melited pany of e Group
vl Asclas Limied e Aedus Beying Limied are assooatbes of M la Ksith GRIFFITHS
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33 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions
and Balances (Continued)

{c) Significant Balances with Related Parties
Signdficant Balances with related parties are set out below:

2023 2021
HES™M HES™M
Trustse's fee payabile 1o the Trustes (1 1]
ncerest aasing liabilites with the HSBC Group 11,358 [REIL
Hat interest recelvabis from the HSBE Greup F 2
Security deposits from the HSEC Group {3 3
Cross cunrency swap contracts and inferest rate swap contracts wath the
HSELC Group (Fl] 31
Deposits placed with the HSBC Group 1117 1688
Fueehitaciural enovation comiullency tenvices feed payable Lo
Asdas Limsted and Aedes Bajing Limited 3] )

{d) Key Management Compensation

Agat 31 March 2000, koy managemaent comprised two Executive Dinectors, 10 Non-Executrve Diectors and 9 sanior
management staff (2021: two Executive Directors. 11 Non-Executive Directors and 9 senior management skatf].

Further detai's of the remunenation of the Directors on a named basis are disclesed in highlighted sectiors of the Corporate
Governance Repon with a heading of “Audited” on pages 26 ta 26, These senions form the “Audted” part of Corparale
Governance Report and are part of the financlal statements.

The agaregate amounis of emaluments of the key management staff of the Group for the year are as follows,

022 2021

HCETM HESM

Feew 11 i1}
Basic salaties, allowarces and other benefits 123 ({0.i]
Lofg-1E0m inoaflie Sofhes Siands a7 13
31 173

148 Link Real Estate Investment Trust
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33 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Farty Transactions
and Balances [Continued)
(d) Key Management Compensation [Continued)
The amounts reflected in the emolument bands below ane those in the Tnancial statermens under HKFRSs in the year

202172022, and inclade short term remuneration pald in cash and pertion of the long-tenm incentive scheme recognised
{although a penion of which has not been vested) in the year 202172022 attributable 1o the Executive Dirsctars and

SENiDr Managament.
2032 021
Mumber of Number of
Emalument bands [Mate (i)} Irdividuats Indhdidualy
HES3.000,001 - HKSS.000.000 3
HKS5.000,001 - HKST 000,000 3 4
HEST.000,001 - HKS3,000.000 z 3
HES2.000,001 - HKS10,000,000 1 -
HKST0.500.001 - HC%1 10001000 1 -
HES 14,000,001 - Hih1 4,500,000 - i
HESLE,O00,00 1 = HeG 16,500,000 1 -
HIKS16.500,001 - %17 000,000 1 .
HES 27 500,001 - HICS2 8 000, D00 L -
HES 31,500,001 - HIK532 000000 - 1m
HIESET,000,001 - HIESET 500,000 1 -
Total numbar of Executive Directors and senior managemant 11 12

Kitee
i The calcuaton of The wial rmsnenasen for the omolumasrs bandi i based on the vl of 1he ong-1em meontse swands recogniped
during the year and the short bem remuneraton pad and eoogrssod durng the yoar.

¥ Ernodrnents said and rocognisad for thi Fxeoutiee Dveciors. Mr Geonge Bwolk | ing HORGEAIN™ snd Mrt Eokc Siong HGE*. Detais
are 5ot oot 0 e “Remuneeaton Awarded 1o Executiie CRmectodns” section on pages 26 10 27, The respecthvi emclurents includa ihe
peerbion of thi long — lenm incentive schema recognised for tha year, which e details She ot 01t in the "Long - leem Incenthve Schame™
spcton on pages 74 io 17, The emaring & the paid short = tenm remineration
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Gavernance, Disclosues and Financlal Stakements | MNotes to the Conspicated Financial Statemants

33 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions
and Balances (Continued)
(d) Key Management Compensation (Continued)
Thee firve highes1 paid individuals for the year include two (202 1: two) derectors whose emolurmerts are reflected in the

above emalument barids, The emoluments pald and recogrised to the remaining three [2021: three| individuals during the
vear e s follows:

2032 2021

HKS™M HESM

Basic salaries, other slowanoes and Banedits n kind 11 10
Diacretionary banus 18 11
Long-term incantiue schems awarnds 14 a

44 5

34 Future Minimum Rental Receivables

As ot 31 March 2022, the analysis of the Group's aggregate future minimum rental income recetvablis under non-cancellabls
cperating ‘wanes is a5 follovws:

2022 2021

HKEM HESM

Within ome voar 6,704 BA37
Betwenen ong and frve voars 8,871 3 0as
Beyond five years 1670 A58
18,453 18934

Mast of tho operating leascs arc en fixed terms and for torms: of three yoars (202 1: three yoars),

150 Link Real Estate ivsestment Trust
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Governance, Disciosures and Financial Statements | MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

35 Principal Subsidiaries
Link: held the fallewing principal subsiciaries as at 31 March 2002

Particulars of
Place of estabiizhment and sued thare
kind of begal entty! caphaliregistered
Hame place of operations Primcpal sctivities capital Inberest heid
Directy pske:
Thi Link Hoscings Lisited Carpman indands, Emibed Rabiity Imsesirmant kolding ussL 100%
companyiHong Kong
Link sset Managament Limited Hieng Ko, brriled lotilty compiryl Asset manigennent HESZ 000,000 100%
Horg kong
Ingirectty heid:
Affor Limsbed Fh:ﬂlnq.imdhhbfmﬂ Invesment holding HES180 538 980 100%
Kang
Hpolic Luci Limitd Eirizighy irgin lnlarde, Gemited] abilty. Proparty holdieg ad uss1 100%
eofmpanyHong Kong leieting
atlanne Best Lmited Hiang Ko, beited Eabiksy comparyy  imvesen Rolding HESE 1%
Hoeg Kong
SERNER N ARLD Peaple’s Republic of China, lmited Froperty holding wnd LIS5%8, 500,000 100%
{Blatri Propety Mlanageswn Rabaity romaanyPeopl's Repubie
FFeizhery Comparsy Limited) of China
AFCERCREREINNLE Peapie's Rrputic of Chira, lmited Froperty holding and USE16z 500,000 100%
BeiEng Yateng Feal Este Rabdity companyPeoph's Fepubic
Mangnerent Company Limited] of Ching
Cabort HI Limited Hiang Wong, Irited latslty companyf  Imvrsment holding HKEL 100%
Harg Kong
Cabat Squars Fetsl Sh rl Lussrcuig. lenitecd labdity comparsy/  Property holdieg snd GEPFLL.000 100%
Linited Kingdom leating
Caribsbean kHera (HK) Limised Hong Kong, Ireiled katilzy compiryl  Invesrment holding HESL 100%
Hong Kong
Centuny Lund investment Limied Fong Kong, firited Eabilty compary/  Property hoidieg and HES1 0%
Mg Kong lwirsing
[China Exst lnesiment Limigea Heang Koog, ieied labiloy companyd'  Imvesamant holding HIZE5.000 100%
Harg Kong
L LT B T Peapie's Fepublic of Chisa, bmibsd Property hoidieg and FME3] 7,000,000 75%
labdity companyPeople's Aepubic kemsing
of China
SAREE I HNDE Peopis's Republe of Chisa, bmitsd Proparty holding snd AMBLI4Z 300418 100%
{ECH Property Hoiding (Tiangni Co. Lbd mwwm&w keising
First Varture FLE. Limited Hang Kong, breited latilty companyf  Imvesamant helding HES1 100%
Horg Kong
RUEBANNELE Peopia's Republe of Chisa, bmded Property holdieg and FME] 000,000 5%
Rabiity companyiPeople’s Fepublic - leasing
of China
Gzt Lard [HK) Limita Hiang Wong, feited latikey compamy’ < Property holdieg HICG1. 000,000 100%
ErENAScEnELE Peopie's Republc of Chisa, Imsed Property holding s A ERSR. 000 000 100%
IGuangzheu Gian Ging Hul Rability companiPeople’s Fegeblic . leasing
Feaf Extate Company Lmited) of Ching
NHWRBINAR Peapie’s Fepuble of Chisa, imted Invesimmant halding LISS 505 200,000 100

Rty comaany Freople’s gt
of China

349/449
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Governance, Disclosures and Financlal Statemaents | Motes to the Consoldated Financial Statemants

35 Principal Subsidiaries {Continued)

Paiticulsrs of
Peace of establishment and Iz share
kirid of legal entity captaliegnbarsd
Name place of operations Princpal sctivites caphal Interest heid
leiructly held (€ oetinusd]:
REEERREEGRLE Pecgia’s Repubite of China, imited Fropsrty heizling and RMELD00, 000 100%
Labdty enmpanoPeopie’s Republie. leming
of China
HE PO Holding Limited Hong Kong, imied Sobility company!. Imvestment haiding HES1,000 261 100%
Heng Kang
Irestant Sucoess Y endunes [HIC) Limsted Hong Kiang, limbed Esbdity company/  Properiy helding and 550,000 100%
(Frormesty incram 23 Zung Fu Land Hong Korg feming
Irvegimest Limbed)
ka Hua Unted Warsnouge Investment Hong Eang, imited! lsbity compans Imvesiment holding HIESE0, 000 004 5%
Limied Heng kong
Link Asset Management |Austraba) Pry L Ausirakia, Smeeid Rabdty comgany Coporms managemens AL 100%
Actralla e
Lirk Aarstiiha Hicldings Teust Auratraba inetlicatalia Irvestmant holdng ALFS 52000, 108 10H:
Limik CA Limsked Dt Wingmn sl wited Gksliy Financing usst 100
companyf ~ong Kong
Ul | W TR D (Pormesy ko Penplin's Repubiie of China, mited Crepotate management NS 006 00 1004
s WA RS REE O Babiny comganyPeogie’s Aepullic  veniice
{Lirk Rieal Extata {Shanghal] Lissitad) of China
Link Mot {HIG) Limited Hong Kang, lmited labdity company!  Property holding and Hig1 100%
Heng Kerg feating
Link Properties Lreitad Cavrman kiands lemited labdity Fuoperty holding and uss1 100%
Lirk Priopedty Managessen Serazes Lisited  Hong Keng, limited labiity comainy!  Proteity management HKS1.000.000 100%
Hong Korg
Markoed Mid Tnost durstrafa, tresiuairalia Imvestment hoiding ALSTST 000 100 100%
Market Sub Trust Aurstralia tnstistaila Praperty helding and AUSEIS.014, E5L 100%
' leavng
Preston Fver (HIK) Limited }h:mmmiﬂwmﬂ Investmant hoidng HIGL 100%
ey
ENRRRERRN LN ShanghaiNing Pecpi’s Repubie of China, bmited Pnpetrty helding snd RMBIE7 555,000 100%
Bang Properties Ca. Lid ) mmmep& leiing
Soei Might Limited Betad Wirgin islands, liesiteed Ralslty  Investment hoiding s 100%
aompayHory Kong
The Link Finance [AusiTais) Pry Lid Autiraka, méed kability company Financirg AUSGE 100%
The Link Finance [Coyran] 006 Limded  Coyman hildnds, lemsted hiblity Imvestment uss1 100%
company! g Kong
The Link Finance [Cayman 2009 Limites Caryrnan blands, lenited labiliny Firancing uss1 100%
cempind Hong e
Tha Link Fnance Lmted Hang Kong, limied fakbdity companyl  Fruncing HKS] 100%
Hung Koy
Thie Link Leistic Finanea Lismitad Moy Kang, Irmined Lablity cormauns)  Fisancing HES1 100%
Thifeirg Land Limvtod Britsh Vingin islands, lewiind foblity  investment hoiding usst 100%
coempanyHong Kong
Wider Sucoess Enterprises [HK) Limited Heong Koog, lmissd Ssbaity companny Imeestment holding HK5L.000 T5%
Heng karg
35 Cabot Square Shrl Lunsrsbioury, e Lakil Praperty hoiding and GEPLLO0D 100%
Urited Kingdom >

152 Link Real Estate ivsestment Trust
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Governance, Disciosures and Financial Statements | MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemants

35 Principal Subsidiaries (Cantinued]

Thi Manager considers that the non-contralling enterests in respect of non-whally ewned subsicearies ane not individually
meaterial o the Group.

The Manacpsr i of the opinion that & complee list of the paniculars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and thesefone
theer v list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries which principaly affect the results or assets and llabilities of
the Group.

36 Event After the Reporting Date
On 3 February 2022, Link, throwgh a wholty -cowned subsidiary, entered into an unit sale agreement to acquire 4999 of fully.
pakd ordinary uréts of ADFI Trust st 8 cash consideration (before completion adjustments] of Australian Dollars 596 million

{equivalent ta approximately FICS3 310 millien), ADFI | Trust owns interests in fee prime office properties located in central
business districts in Sydnay and Melbourne rmespactively in Australia. The transaction was completed on 1 June 2022,

37 Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financlal statements were authorsed for lasue by the Board of Directors of the Manager and the Trustee
on I une 2022,

Annual Report 202172022 153
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2022 31
1 225,716 4,010,973
. 63,028 1,120,008
Il I 11 162,688 2,890,966
V. 2,110,193,850
V. v 77.10 1,370

2022 31 302 5,367
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Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

183 17 1712-1716

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

CCASS
HKSCC CCASS

0.0027
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0.002 2005 12
19 2005
FRC
2022 FRC 0.00015
FRC
0.005
0.50
0.13
5.00
2.50
CCASS HKSCC
CCASS

CCASS
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1
1
€H)
22,000,000 391
22,000,000
2018 28 12,000,000
2019 22,000,000
6,999,999
2018 28 5,000,001 12,000,000
10,000,000
2019 12,000,000 22,000,000
@
— 1 —2 —@3)
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@
38 59 131
€)
23 103
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
193
Independent Auditor’ s Report
®

2022
17.77
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@
2022 31
31
2022 2021
706,895,912  12,561,540,356 504,866,818  8,971,483,356
(373,226,915)  (6,632,242,280)  (278,077,761) (4,941,441,813)
327,066 5,811,963 1,849,891 32,872,563
(333,668,997)  (5,929,298,077)  (226,789,057)  (4,030,041,543)
327,066 5,811,963 1,849,891 32,872,563
327,066 5,811,963 1,849,891 32,872,563
18 30
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2022 31
31
2022 2021
327,066 5,811,963 1,849,891 32,872,563
327,066 5,811,963 1,849,891 32,872,563
18 30
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2022 31
31
2022 2021
10 6,602,506 117,326,532 6,602,500 117,326,425
2,849,182 50,629,964 3,060,638 54,387,537
12,456,688 221,355,346
11 179,060,228 3,181,900,252 75,934,083 1,349,348,655
11 3,920,803 69,672,669 4,684,917 83,250,975
12 170,000,000 3,020,900,000
12 77,674,358 1,380,273,342 234,172,553 4,161,246,267
440,107,077 7,820,702,758 336,911,379 5,986,915,205
13 149,053,953 2,648,688,745 80,183,224 1,424,855,890
14 10,000,000 177,700,000 10,000,000 177,700,000
15 235,242,847 4,180,265,391 201,998,008 3,589,504,602
11 1,663,570 29,561,639 910,506 16,179,692
395,960,370 7,036,215,775 293,091,738 5,208,240,184
44,416,707 789,284,883 43,819,641 778,675,021
16 22,000,000 390,940,000 22,000,000 390,940,000
22,146,707 393,546,983 21,819,641 387,735,021
44,146,707 784,486,983 43,819,641 778,675,021
18 30
13 30 2022
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2022 31
2021 22,000,000 390,940,000 21,819,641 387,735,021 43,819,641 778,675,021
327,066 5,811,963 327,066 5,811,963
2022 31 22,000,000 390,940,000 22,146,707 393,546,983 44,146,707 784,486,983
2020 22,000,000 390,940,000 19,969,750 354,862,458 41,969,750 745,802,458
1,849,891 32,872,563 1,849,891 32,872,563
2021 31 22,000,000 390,940,000 21,819,641 387,735,021 43,819,641 778,675,021
18 30
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2022 31
31
2022 2021
16 13,251,827 235,484,966 (149,790,501)  (2,661,777,203)
249,984 4,442,216 2,229,592 39,619,850
(170,000,000) (3,020,900,000)
(O] (107)
(169,750,022) (3,016,457,891) 2,229,592 39,619,850
(156,498,195) (2,780,972,925)  (147,560,909) (2,622,157,353)
234,172,553 4,161,246,267 381,733,462  6,783,403,620
31 12 77,674,358  1,380,273,342 234,172,553 4,161,246,267
18 30
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@
Q)
(A)
2022 31

777,000
®
)

A

2022 31

182,981,031

234,172,553 12
)

2022 31 247,674,358
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100 2021 100

2021 2,150,000

2021 2022 31
2022 31
HKFRS
12
2021 80,619,000
247,674,358 2021

2021 234,172,553
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2022 2021
10,000,000 10,000,000
235,242,847 201,998,008
1,663,570 910,506
®)
571
()
()
©
HKFRS
©)
2022 2021
706,895,912 504,866,818
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2022 2021
568,184,386 461,180,442
9,397,935 9,045,597
13 114,793,406 13,321,272
692,375,727 483,547,311
2022 2021
10,927,266 9,516,117
15,209,204 17,668,137
36,000 36,000
43,677,689 25,616,000
73,382,861 8,921,749
143,233,020 61,758,003
13
(i) 2017 LTI
2021
2022 2021
327,066 1,849,891
16.5 2021 16.5 53,966 305,232
(53,966) (305,232)
2022 31
8,115,706 2021 19,362,325 )
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2022 2021
692,375,727 483,547,311
1,894,283 1,864,452
324,140 25,240
2,218,423 1,889,692
2022 2021
6,602,506 6,602,500
2022 31
1,000,000 100
5,000,000 100
100
2022 2021
77,674,358 19,172,553
215,000,000
77,674,358 234,172,553
170,000,000
247,674,358 234,172,553
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13
2022 2021
70,364,701 34,332,475
78,689,252 45,850,749
149,053,953 80,183,224
2017 LTI
2017 10 2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI 261,817
2021 502,126

2017 LTI
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2021 2022
31
2017 LTI
2018 2018 415,371 (234,982) (6,500)  (173,889)
2021 30 g g g g
2019 2019 466,273 (26,835) (5,361)  (434,077)
2021 30 ’ ’ ’ ’
2019 466,272 (5.733) (4,932) 455,607 1,034,961
2022 30 g g g ; ey
2020 29
2020 29 5022 30 768,321 (8,929) (9,888) 749,504 749,504
2020 29
5023 30 768,321 (8,929) (9.888) 749,504 749,504
2021
2021 5023 30 592,377 (8,347) (7,183) 576,847 965,581 C )
2021
5024 30 592,420 (8,349) (7,184) 576,887 965,646 ( )
2,884,558 1,184,797  (302,104)  (11,861) (647,041) 3,108,349 4,465,196
) 100
)
)
14
2022 2021
10,000,000 10,000,000
2009 27 10
2023 26 2022 31
10 2021 10
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15

16

17

18

19

20

2022 2021
225,710,966 186,623,641
9,531,881 15,374,367
235,242,847 201,998,008
2021 2022 31 22,000,000 22,000,000
2022 2021
327,066 1,849,891
(327,066) (1,849,891)
288,539 1,580,765
(103,126,146) (41,415,842)
764,114 (3.298,035)
33,244,839 (45,956,212)
753,064 (1,252,035)
68,870,729 (56,334,970)
12,456,688 (3,114,172)
13,251,827 (149,790,501)
2022 2021
14,458,181 15,601,624
692,437,731 489,265,194
2022
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
ARAETEAMLAT

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Management fee income
Direct costs

Interest income
Administrative expenses
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

The notes on pages 18 to 30 form part of these financial statements,

- 13-

Note

=
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2022 zo21
HES HEs
706,805,012 04,860,818
(a73226,015)  (27R077,761)
327,066 1,849,891
(333.668,907)  (226,789,057)
327,066 1,840,801
327,066 1,848,801
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
SRR B RLL

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH zo2z

2o 2021
HKS HE$
Profit for the year 327,066 1,840,801
Other comprehensive income - *
Total comprehensive ineome for the year 327,066 1,844,801

The notes on pages 18 to 30 form part of these financial statements.
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HERETEAmeT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022

Note 2022 2021
HES HES
ASSETS AND LIAEILITIES
Aszels
Investiments in subsidiaries 10 f o 506 f,BO2,500
Reeeivables, deposits and prepayments 2,840,182 2,060,638
Taxation recoverable - 13, 456,688
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 11 176,060,228 75.034,083
Amount due from Link Real Estate Investment Trust 11 3,920,804 4,684,017
Bank depasits 12 170,000,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents 12 -7,674,458 234,172,559
Total assects 440,107,077 336,018,379
Liabilitics
Long-term incentive schemes provision 13 149,053.953 Ho,183,224
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary 14 10,000,000 1, 00N, D0
Accruals and other pavables 15 245,242,847 20,958,008
Amounts due o fellow subsidiaries 1 1,663,570 G10,506
Tuotal liabilities 395,960,370 203,091,738
Net assels 44,416,707 43,819,641
EQUITY
Share capital 16 22,000,000 22,000,000
Retained eamings 22,146,707 21,819,641
Member's funds 44,146,707 43,810,641

The notes on pages 18 to 30 form part of these financial statements.

The financinl statements on pages 13 to 30 were approved by the board of directors of the Company an
1June 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
A WA R E

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH zo22

Share Retained

capital earnings Total

HES HES HES

At 1 April 2021 20 000,000 21,815,641 43,810,641
Total comprehensive income for the year - 427,066 327,060
At 31 March 2022 22,000,000 22,146,707 44,146,707
Al 1 April zozo 22,000,000 10,960,750 41,969,750
Total comprehensive income for the yeir - 1,849,891 1,849,891
At 21 March 2021 22 000,000 21,819,641 43,819,641

The notes on pages 18 to 90 form part of these financial statements.

- 1=
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R R AR T

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Note 022 2021
HES HES
Operating activities
Met cash generated from {used in) operating activities 16 13,251,827 {149,790,501)
Investing activitics
Interest income received 249,984 2,220,502
Increase in bank deposits with original maturity of
more than three months (170,000,000) -
Investment in subsidiarics (6) ;
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (169,750,022) 2,220,502
Met change in cash and eash eguivalents (156,498,195)  [(147.560,000)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 234,172,553 381,733,462
Cash and eash equivalents at 31 March 12 77674358 234,172,553

The notes on pages 18 to 50 form part of these financial statements.

- l;r..
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
AERETEARLE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i Corporate information
Link Asset Management Limited (the "Company™) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its prineipal activity is asset management. The address of ils registered office is
20/F., Tower 1, The Quayside, 77 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong. Kowloon, Hong Kong,

The Company is licensed to carry out Type 9 “Asset Management” regulated activity under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company acts as the management company of Link Real Estate Investment Trust (“Link”).

=z Basis of prepacation

(a)  Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordanee with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HEFRSs") and the Hong Kong Company Ordinance. HKFRSs is a collective
term which includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ["HKASs™) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants,

b} Accounting convention and Munetional currency
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost eonvention.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Daollars, the functional carrency of the
Company.

(e}  Adoption of new and revised accounting policies

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has adopted all the following new standards and
amendments that are currently in issne and effective.

HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HEFRS g, HEFRS  Interest Rate Benchmork Reform — Phase 2
16 and HEAS 39 Amendments

HEFRS 16 Amendments COVID-10-Related Rent Concessions
HKFRS 16 Amendments COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond go June
2021

The adoption of these new standards and amendments has not had any significant effect on the
results reported and financial position of the Company.

18-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HERETEYMAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Adoption of new and revised accounting policies (Continued)

The following new standards, amendments, interpretations and revised accounting guidelines

which have been published but are not yet effective, have not been early adopted in the consolidated
financial statements, These are effective for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after

1 April 2023,
HKAS 1 Amendments Classification of Liabilitics as Current or Non-current
HEKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1=
Amendments
HEAS 8 Amendments Definition of Accounting Estimates
HEAS iz Amendmenls Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction '
HEKFRS 5. HKAS 16 and HEAS 37 Narrow-Scope Amendments (1
Amendments

HEFRS 10 and HEAS 28 Amendments Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venlure

HEFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

HEFRS 17 Amendments Amendments to HEFRS 17 1=

Revised Aceounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations
il

Hong Kong Interpretation § (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by

the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repmyment on Demand Claase (&
Annual Improvements 2018-20z0 Cyele

i gffpctive for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 20232
1 effective for acoounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
2 po mandatory efective date is determined yet, but cardy application is permitted

The Company is in the process of making #n assessment of the {mpact of these new standards,
amendments, interpretations and revised accounting guidelines upon initial application.

Summary of significant necounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set
out below, These policies have been consistently applisd to all the years presented,

Investments in subsidinries

Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, over which the Company has control. The
Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity.

In the Company's statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses, The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
omn the basis of dividend received and receivahle,

No consolidated financial statements are prepared as exempted under HKFRS 10 "Consolidated
Financial Statements™, The Company's ultimate holding entity is Link and the consolidated

financial statements of Link have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs and are publicly
available.

_.g_
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FRFE WAL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 Summary of significant aceounting policies (Continued)

(h) Receivables
Reccivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, Jess
provision for impairment. The Company holds the receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash Mows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The Company applies the HEFRS g in assessing expected credit losses.
Receivables are considered to be low risk, and therefore the impairment provision is determined as
12 months expected credit losses.

{c)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts.

(dy  Accruals and other payvables
[} Accruals and other payvables

Accruals and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(ii)  Provisions

Provisions ape recognised when thene is a present legal or constructive obligation asa result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required Lo settle the
obligation and a relisble estimateof the amount can be made. Where a provision is expected
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as o separate asset but only when the
reimbursement & virtually certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required
1o settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects enrrent market assessments of the
tisne value of morey and the risks specific to the obligation. The increasge in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense,
(e}  Impairment of non-financial nssets
Assets are reviewed for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the earrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and valoe in use. Non-financial assets

ather than goodwill that is subject to impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment al each reporting date.

(fy Revenue recognition
Management fee income is recognised over time when services are rendered.

Interest income it recognized on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

(g) Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised on an accrual basis.

-0 -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
U R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefits

Employee benefits such as wages, salaries and bonuses are recognised as an expense when the
employee has rendered the service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they acerue to employees. A provigion
is made for the estimated lability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the reporting date. Emplovee entitlements 1o sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
umtil the time of leave. The emplovers contributions 1o the Mandatory Provident Fund for
emplovess are expensed as incurred.

Employees’ long-term incentive schemes

Incentives in the form of a long-term incentive schemes are provided to eligible employees
(inchuding directors).

Emplovee services rendered In exchange for the grant of the long-term incentive schemes awards
are recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase in the Hability incurred. This expense
is charged to the income statement over the vesting periods. Until the liability is settled, the value
of the lability is re-measured at each reporting date and at the date of settlement, with any changes
in value recognised in the income statement for the year, Al each reporting date, estimates of the
number of long-term incentive schemes awands that are expected to vest will be revised and the
impact of the revigion is recognised in the income statement. The carrying value of the long-term
incentive schemes awards is reviewed every six months and is independently valued by external
valuers at least annually. If the awards do not vest on the vesting dates, the amounts changed to the
income statement will be written back.

Presentation of the Statement of Financial Position

The Company has adopted the liquidity basis in the presemtation of the statement of financial
position as it is considered to be more relevant and meaningful to readers hased on the timing of
their realisation or settlement of assets and liabilities as justified by the market situation.
Finanecial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a varicty of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate
risk and currency risk), eredit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management is carvied out by the Company, The Company's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and secks to minimise patential
adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.
(i) Market risk
(A)  Interestrate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will impact the

earnings of the Company. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk since the
Company’s deposits at banks bear variable interest rates.

-3 -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R A AT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Market risk (Continued)
(A)  Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 51 March 2o2z, if interest rates on deposits at banks had been 100 basis

points (2a21: 100 basis points) higher/lower with all ather variables held eonstant,

profit for the year would have been approdmately HES7r7000 (2021
HESz2,150,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/Tower interest income
from deposits at banks.

(B) Currency risk

Currency risk arises on account of monclary assets and labilities denominated in
a currency that s not the funetional currency. As al 31 March 2021 and 2022, there
are no significant monetary balances that are held in @ non-functional eurrency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed by the ultimate holding entity on a group basis. Credit risk arises
from the potential failure of the Company’s counterparties to meet their obligations under
financial contracts. The Company is exposed to eredit risk on its receivables doe from group
companies/Link as well as cash and cazh equivalents and bank deposits.

The Company manages its deposits with banks by limiting the level of deposits o be placed
with any connterparties. Deposits placed with any individual counterparty cannot exeeed a
pre-defined limit assigned to the individual counterparty. As at 31 March 2022, all deposits
were placed with banks with external eredit ratings of no less than A"

For amounts due from group companies, the Company regulardy reviews the recoverable
amount of cach reecivable and applies the HKFRS g in assessing expected credit losses that
is determined as 12 months expected credit losses which consider current and forward-
looking information to ensure that ndequate provision for impairment losses is made for
potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
finarcial asset in the statement of financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance, As at 31 March 2022, the Company's exposure to credit risk arising from
amounts due from proup companies/Link amounted to HES182.081031 (2021
HES$80,619,000), The Company’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and bank deposits amounted to HE$247,674,358 (2021: HE$234,172.553) and
is se1 omt in Note 12.

Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding frem committed credit facilities and aperating cash flow.

As at 51 March 2022, the Company has cash and eash equivalents and bank deposits of
HKS$247,674,358 (2021: HE$234,172,553). Management considers that the Company does
not have significant liquidity risk.

_22_
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HERETEARLT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)
4 Finoncinl risk management {Continued)
{n)  Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iif) Liguidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Companys financial liabilities into relevant maturity

groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2022 2021
HES HES
Less than i year
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow
subsidiary 10,006, D00 100,000, D00
Aceruals and other paynbles 235,292,847 201,948,008
Amounts diue to fellow subsidiaries 1,663,570 Q10,500

(b}  Capital management

The Company’s ohjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern whilst seeking te maximise benefits to member.

The Company considers the equity of the Company (as shown in the statement of financial position)
as ils capital.

As the Company is a licensed corporation for Type 9 “Asset Management” regulated activity under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), it has to comply with
the following requirements regarding its capital as stipalated in the Securities and Futures
(Finaneial Resourees) Rules:

(il 1 minimum level of paid up share eapital has to be met; and
(i) a minimum level of liquid capital has to be met.

The Company reviews the capital structure periodically and manages its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends and issuance of new shares. [ts share capital and liguid capital
levels are closely monitored to ensure strict compliance with the statutory minimum requirements.
(e} Fair value estimation
The carrving values less impairment provision of receivables and the carrying values of bank
deposits and acoruals and other payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values due to
their short-term maturities.
5 Critical aceounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical aceounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Company’s accounting policies,
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experfence and

ather factors, ineluding expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances,

=09s
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R E AR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment te the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next year are discnssed below.,

Long-term incentive schemes valuation

The value of awards granted is estimated based on valuation techniques and assumptions on unit
prices, outstanding length of the awards, distribution pay-out rates and other market conditions,
which management considers as representing the best estimate of the value of the liability for such
awards at the reporting date. The carrying value of the long-term incentive schemes awards is
reviewed every six months and s independently valued by external valuers at least annually.

Management fee income

Management fee income

Stafl costs (including directors’ emoluments)

Wages and salaries
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Long-term incentive schemes awards (Note 13)

Stafl costs (Nole g)

b T

Fees

Base pay, allowanees and other benefits
Contribution to pension scheme

Variable remuneration related to performance
Long-term incentive schemes awards (Note)

386/449

2022 2021

HES HES
706,805,912 504,866,818
o022 2021

HEs HES
68,184,386 461,180,442
0.367.955 0,045,507
114,793,408 13,321,272
602, 375,727 483,547,311
2092 2021

HES HES
10,927,260 9,516,117
15,200,204 17,668,137
36,000 56,000
43,677,680 25,616,000
73382861 8.021,740
143,233,020 61,758,003
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITEL
FRE AL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) (Continued)

Mote: Values of the long-term incentive schemes awards are estimated based on valuation
techniques with assumptions on unit prices, outstanding length of the awards, distribution
pay-out rates and other market conditions. There is no commitment to pay out the
estimated values provided. The eventual amounts to be paid depend on the seale of
achievement against certain performance and service related vesting conditions. For the
portion of the awards which do not vest on the vesting dates, the amounts previously
charged to the income statement will be written back. Details on the long-term incentive

schemes are sel out in Note 13,

The amounts recognised as expenses represent the provision of the swards granted under
the 2017 LTI Scheme recognised as set out in the accounting policy Note 3(i).

Taxation

Mo Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as there is no estimated assessable profit for the
year (2oc1: Nil),

“The differences hetween the Company's expected tax charge, using the Hong Kong profils tax rate,
and the Company’s taxation for the vear were as follows:

2022 2021
HE% HES
Profit before taxation 427,066 1,840,801
Expected tax caleulated at the Hong Kong profits tax rate of
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) 53,066 305,232
Tax cffect of non-taxable income (53,066) (305,232)

Taxation

As at 31 March 2022, the Company has unrecognised tax losses to be corried forward against future
taxable income ameunted to HK$ 8,115,706 (2021: HE$19,362,325), These tax losses have no expiry

dates.

- 95 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

9 Profit for the year

Profit for the vear is stated after charging:

Stalf costs (Nole 7)

Auditor's remuneration
Audit and avdit-related assurance services
Others

Tatal auditor's remuneration

10 Investments in subsidiaries

Investments, at cost
Unlisted shares

20232 2021
HE% HES

692,375.727 483,547,311

The Company held the following subsidiaries as at 31 March 2022;

Flace of
establishment
and kind of legal

Mame entity

Dirgctly el

Link Froperty Hong Kong,
Management Servioes limfted linkility
Limited company

R (SIS People's Republic of

] (formerly known is China, limited liability manlagtmrnl

MEBEEEI( A company

)
Link Asset Management  Australia,
{Auswaliz] Pty Ltd limited lability
COMpRny

11 Balances with group companies/Link

1,804,283 | 1,864,452
24,140 | 25,240
2,218 423 1,880,602
20223 2021
HEKs HES
b, 600 506 6,603 500
Particulars of
issued share
capital/
Principal registered Interest
activities eapital held
Froperty HES1,000,000 100%
management
Corporate RMBs000,000 100
SEIVICes
Corporate AUm 100%
management
SCIVICES

The balances with group companies/Link are mainly management fee receivables. Amounts due
from/to group companies and amount due from Link were unsecured, interest free, repayable on

demand and denominated in Hong Kong Dollar.

- O -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R W AR )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
1z Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

2022 2021
HES HES
Cash at bank 77674958 19,172,551
Bank deposits with original maturity of less than three
months - 215,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents 77,674,358 234,172,553
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three
manths 170, D00, CHHE

247,674,358 234,172,553

The carrving amounts of cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits are expected to be recovered
within 1 year.

13 Long-term incentive schemes provision

2022 2021
HES HES

Long-term incentive schemes provision
- expected to be settled within 1 year 70,364,701 94,932,475
- expected to be settled after 1 year 78,680,252 45,850,749

149,053,053 80,183,224

2017 LTI Scheme

On 10 July 2017, Link adopted a new long-term incentive scheme (the “2017 LTI Scheme”). Under
the 2017 LTI Scheme, restricted unit awards and conditional cash awards may be granted to
directors of the Company and key emplovess of the group.

During the year, certain directors and key employees of the Company were granted restricted unit
awards and conditional cash mwards at nil monetary consideration under the 2017 LTI Scheme, The
restricted unit awards granted under the 2o17 LTI Scheme, in general, will vest approximately twvo
to three years from the date of grant. Under the 2017 LT1 Scheme, Units will be purchased in the
grantees’ favour from open stock market 1o satisfy restricted units awards vested. For those
restricted unit awards granted with performance goals, the eventual numbers of Units o be
purchased in ench grantee's favour upon vesting are linked to the pedformance of Link bised on the
total Unitholders return, net property income or certain vesting conditions. Conditional cash
awards were also granted in conjunction with the restricted unit awards, bestowing upon each
grantee a conditional right to receive a cash payment representing an amount equivalent 1o the
aggregate of the distributions during the vesting period, eatch-up adjustments and ex-gratia
payments pursuant to the 2017 LTI Scheme, if applicable.

During the year, 261,817 units (2021: 502,126 units) purchased from the market for restricted units
awards which have vested in accordance with the 2017 LTI Scheme.

ol
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
IR N A T AL ]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Long-lerm incentive schemes provision (Continued)
2017 LTI Scheme (Continued)

During Uhe vesting period, a liability is recognised representing the estimated value of the awards
granted under both the 2017 LTI Scheme and the portion of the vesting period expired as ot the
reporting date. The value of the awards was estimated at the reporting date by Towers Watson Hong
Kong Limited, an independent externad valuer based on valuation techniques and assumptions on
unit prices, outstanding length of the awards, distribution pay-out rates and other market
conditions, if appropriate. The change in value of the outstanding awards was charged to the income
statement. In the event that the vesting conditions are not met, the amount previously acerued will
he written back accordingly.

Movements in the number of restricted unit award during the year and the maximum number of
units to be vested upon vesting of restricted unit award are as follows:

Oratstamiding Madismum

Enistandlng  Granted Vientmd  Camcclbed Lupreell s al ko he vested
e al during dhiiring. ilisrlag haring At March  sn vesting
e el grami Vst lng perinil pApril 2oas The year e pear o ke year Al vear FETTY date=
RoTy LT S
A& July am i 4 dubyaoil
1m i Funia Sy finym . {rankal LLE L] 788y
& Juliy amag § duly 2iH
10 B Fubid S bTy . [ECT T (5 h] Hatpa o7
& duly doiw
in b Sesar Pinkd whhaT . &7 . Ligarl R UL L
20 uly B 2 July 3080
1 50 Fuser BOEL hEam - [LEEUT] . [ BHE) TARSAY pr UL T
s duly 2030
1 30 Jume 2031 THEAZL B LE 0] = (.288) TS0 T
7 duly aman = Juby 3631
30 June 3033 4 AT LS e - [RA 3] b B g H =
#ulysuza
8 30 June 3034 . AT LE L] = ir.a84l Lo LU R
Total FS - TR 1,184,797 [ELERTE)] . |11l—n|_| [y, g1} EALLEET _q.dl'y!!-
Motes:
n Restricted unit award vesting percentages during the vear ranged frem 0% to 100%.
] If eertain vesting eonditions are met.
f) Additional units beyond these amounts are subject to approval of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.
-ag-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
U T WA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
14 Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary

2022 2021
HES HES&
Approved subordinated boan from a fellow subsidiary 10,000,000 10,000,000

On 27 March 2o0g, an agreement in respect of a revolving subordinated loan facility of HKS10
million from a fellow subsidiary was signed among the Company, the fellow subsidiary and The
Seeurities and Futures Commission and the availability of the facility had been extended to 26
March 2023, As at 31 March 2022, HE$10 million (2o21: HKS10 million] was drawdown from the
facility.

The approved subordinated loan from the fellow subsidiary is unsecured, interest free, repayable
on demand after two years from the drawdown date and denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

The carrying amount of the approved subordinated loan from the fellow subsidiary approximates
its fair value,

15 Aceruals and other payables

2022 2021
HES HES$
Acerued staff costs 235,710,066 186,627 641
Other payables 9,531,881 15,374,367

235,242,847 201,998,008

16 Share capital

Number of
ghares HES
Issned and fully paid:
At 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 22,000,000 22 000,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Nel cash generated from/{used in) operaling activities
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2022 2021
HES HES
Profit before taxation 327066 1,840,891
Interest income (327.006) (1,849,891)
Decrease in receivables, deposits and prepayments 288,539 1,580,765
Increase in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries (103,126,146) (41,415,842)
Decrease/{increase) fn amount due from Link 764,114 (%.298,035)
Inerease/(decrease) in acoruals and other pavables 33,244,839 (45.0950,212)
Increase/(decrease) in amaunts due to fellow subsidiaries 759,064 (1,252,035)
Increase/(decrease) in long-term incentive schemes
provision 68,870,720 (56,334.970)
Hong Kong profits tax refund/(paid) 12,456,688 (3.104,172)
Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities 13,251,827 (149,790,501)

Related party transactions

During the year, the Company undertook the following transactions with related parties at mutually

agreed rates in the normal course of its business:

T032
HES

Management fee income (Note &) from:
Link 14,458,181
Fellow subsidiaries B, 437,741

2021
HES

15,601,624
480,265,104

The management fee income is subject to the terms agreed by the parties involved, which is based

on reimbursement of the actual costs incurred by the Company.
Ultimate holding entity

The directors regard Link as being the ultimate holding entity.
Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Compan
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF LINK REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST

(acollective investment scheme authorised under section 104 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong))

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Link Real Estate Investment Trust (“Link”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”), which are set out on pages 94 to 153, comprise:
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022;
the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,;
the consolidated statement of distributions for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and net assets attributable to Unitholders for the
year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™").
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code’), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter identified in our
audit relates to the valuation of investment properties.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
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Vauation of Investment Properties

Refer to notes 3(d), 5(a) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Group’s investment properties are the
key component of the net asset value
attributable to the unitholders and underpins
the Group’s result for the year. The valuation
of investment properties in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March
2022 was HK$212,761 million and the fair
value gain of investment propertiesin the
consolidated income statement for the year
was HK$426 million, which were significant
components of the consolidated financial
statements. As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s
investment properties portfolio comprises
retail and office properties and car parksin
Hong Kong, Mainland China, Australiaand
the United Kingdom.

The valuations were carried out by athird
party valuer (the“Vauer”). Under the Code
on Real Estate Investment Trusts issued by
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission (the “REIT Code’), the Vauer
shall retire after it has conducted valuations
for three consecutive years, and may only be
reappointed after three years. The current
Valuer was first appointed for the year ended
31 March 2020 and engaged by the Trustee of
Link.

The valuation of the Group’s completed
investment properties is inherently subjective
due to, among other factors, the individual
nature of each property, itslocation and the
expected future rentals for that particular

property.

Vauation of Investment Properties
(Continued)

In determining a property’s valuation as at 31
March 2022, the Valuer took into account

property-specific information such as tenancy
agreements, rental income and direct property
expenses. The income capitalisation approach

Management’s controls and processes

We understood management’s controls and
processes to assess the valuation of the
investment properties and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty, the judgement involved in
determining assumptions to be applied and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

Experience of Vauer and relevance of their
work

We assessed the Valuer's qualifications and
their expertise and read their terms of
engagement with the Group to determine
whether there were any matters that might
have affected their objectivity or may have
imposed scope limitations upon their work.
We found no evidence to suggest that the
objectivity of the Valuer in their performance
of the valuations was compromised.

We read the Valuer's report and understand
that the valuation was carried out in
accordance with the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors RICS Vauation —
Global Standards, incorporating the
International Valuation Standards Council’s
International Vauation Standards, the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors HKISValuation
Standards 2020 and Chapter 6 of the REIT
Code.

Valuation methodology used by the Valuer

We involved our property valuation experts
to assess and evaluate the reasonabl eness of
the valuation methodol ogies and models used
by the Valuer by comparing against our
knowledge in valuation and the properties
industry.

Data used by the Valuer

We checked, on a sample basis, the data used
by the Vauer to perform the valuation to
appropriate supporting documents, including:

437/449



was used, with cross reference to the direct
comparison approach where applicable. The
Valuer applied assumptions for capitalisation
rates and reversionary net passing income,
which were influenced by the prevailing
market yields and comparable market
transactions to arrive at the final valuation.

Judgements are made in respect of
capitalisation rates and market rents.

The adoption of income capitalisation
approach isin line with market practice of
property valuation and is compliant with the
Trust Deed.

There were a number of specific factors
affecting the valuations in the year which we
considered when making our judgements:

revitalisation of certain investment
properties through the Group’s Asset
Enhancement Program; and

the performance of the Group’s
investment property portfolio.

We focused on the valuation of investment
properties due to the significant judgements
and estimates involved in determining the
valuations.
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key terms of lease agreements;
operating expenditure details; and
rental income schedules.

Assumptions and estimates used by the
Valuer

We, including our valuation experts, attended
meetings with the Valuer where the valuation
approach and the key assumptions were
discussed. The assumptions used varied
across the portfolio depending on the age,
nature and location of each property but they
included estimated capitalisation rate and net
passing income. In each of these areas, and on
asample basis, we compared the estimates
and assumptions used by the Valuer against
the published industry benchmarks and
comparable market transactions, and our
experience in the sector.

We performed further work on the properties
where assumptions suggested possible
outliersin comparison to market data. Where
assumptions were outside the expected range
or were otherwise unusual, and/or valuations
showed unexpected movements, we held
further discussions with the Valuer to
understand the rationale and obtained
additional audit evidence to support the
explanations received.

Assumptions and estimates used by the
V aluer(Continued)

Overall, we considered that the
methodologies used in preparing the valuation
were appropriate and key assumptions were
supportablein light of available and
comparable market evidence.

We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures related to the valuation of
investment properties in the context of
HKFRS disclosure requirements and were
satisfied that appropriate disclosure has been
made.
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Other Information

Link Asset Management Limited (the “Manager” of Link) is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

439/449



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Audit and Risk Management Committee for the Consolidated
Financia Statements

The Manager is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give atrue
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the

Manager determinesis necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Manager is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

In addition, the Manager is required to ensure that the consolidated financia statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Second Amending and Restating
Deed dated 30 July 2021 (the “Trust Deed”), and the relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix C of the
REIT Code.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements asa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance isahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HK SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements. In addition, we are required to assess whether the consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been properly prepared, in al material respects, in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix C of the REIT
Code.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
dueto fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
amaterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of interna
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Manager.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that amaterial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
ininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk Management Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Matters Under the Relevant Provisions of the Trust Deed and the Relevant Disclosure
Provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared, in al material respects,
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure provisions of
Appendix C of the REIT Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wong Hung Nam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 1 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Link Asset Management Limited (the “ Company”) standing alone, which are set out on pages 13
to 30, comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022;

the income statement for the year then ended;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financia statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statementsgive atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company standing alone as at
31 March 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (*HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Compani es Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") and with reference to Practice Note
820 (Revised), “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements of the Company Standing Alone section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Directors Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’ s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directorsfor the Financial Statements of the Company Standing Alone

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financia statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no redlistic aternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financia statements are in accordance with the records kept under the

Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements of the Company Standing Alone

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as abody, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a materia misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materid if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of userstaken on the
basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules
and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements Standing Alone (Continued)

We communicate with directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures

(Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit)
Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 1 June 2022
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